
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Janet Pritchard 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Telephone No: 247 4327 
 

 
 

Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Steven Courtney 
Tel: 247 4707 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH ) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Tuesday, 20th October, 2009 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will be held for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
S Bentley - Weetwood; 

J Chapman - Weetwood; 

D Congreve - Beeston and Holbeck; 

M Dobson (Chair) - Garforth and Swillington; 

D Hollingsworth - Burmantofts and Richmond 
Hill; 

J Illingworth - Kirkstall; 

M Iqbal - City and Hunslet; 

G Kirkland - Otley and Yeadon; 

A Lamb - Wetherby; 

P Wadsworth - Roundhay; 

L Yeadon - Kirkstall; 

 
Co-opted Members 

 
       E Mack    -    Leeds Voice 
   Vacancy    -    Leeds LINk 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting).  
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
No exempt items or information have been 
identified on this agenda. 
 

 



 

 
C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members 
Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To receive and approve the minutes of the 
previous meeting held on 22nd September 2009. 
 

1 - 10 

7   
 

  SCRUTINY INQUIRY: THE ROLE OF THE 
COUNCIL AND ITS PARTNERS IN PROMOTING 
GOOD PUBLIC HEALTH (SESSION 1) 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development in relation to the first 
session of the Scrutiny Board’s inquiry that will 
consider the role of the Council and its partners in 
promoting good public health. 
 

11 - 
48 

8   
 

  UPDATED WORK PROGRAMME 2009/10 
 
To consider the attached report of the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development presenting the 
Board’s current outline work programme for the 
remainder of the current municipal year, for the 
Board to consider, amend and agree as 
appropriate. 
 
 

49 - 
108 



 

 
D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To note that the next meeting of the Board will be 
held on 24th November 2009 at 10.00am with a 
pre-meeting for Board Members at 9.30am. 
 

 

 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 20th October, 2009 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH ) 
 

TUESDAY, 22ND SEPTEMBER, 2009 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor M Dobson in the Chair 

 Councillors S Bentley, J Chapman, 
D Congreve, D Hollingsworth, J Illingworth, 
G Kirkland and A Lamb 

 
CO-OPTEE:    E Mack 
 
 

24 Chair's Welcome  
 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the September meeting, and particularly 
Councillor Hollingsworth who was attending for the first time as he had 
recently been appointed to the Board in place of Councillor Rhodes-Clayton. 
 
The Chair also welcomed as an observer Tracy Wallis, Scrutiny Officer for the 
City of York. 
 

25 Declarations of Interest  
 

Councillor Dobson declared a personal interest in respect of Agenda Item 8 
‘KPMG Health Inequalities Report’  (Minute No. 29 refers) in his capacity as a 
member of Leeds Initiative - Healthy Leeds Partnership. 
 
(Councillor Kirkland declared a personal interest later in the meeting under 
Minute No. 28.) 
 

26 Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Yeadon, Iqbal 
and Wadsworth.  The Chair advised that Councillor Wadsworth had been 
recently appointed to the Board in place of Councillor Latty. 
 

27 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

The Minutes were agreed as a correct record although it was noted that one 
Member of the Board did not consider that the minutes reflected the depth of 
concern that Members felt with regard to the provision of renal services in 
Leeds.  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 28th July 2009 be 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 

28 Update on local NHS priorities  
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 20th October, 2009 

 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report outlining 
for Members previously identified priority areas for each local NHS Trust for 
the current year and explaining that each of the Trusts had been invited to 
attend the meeting to provide an update on progress against these priority 
areas. 
 
The following representatives from local NHS Trusts were welcomed to the 
meeting: 

• Beverley Bryant (Executive Director of Performance, Improvement and 
Delivery) – NHS Leeds, and 

• Chris Butler (Chief Executive) – Leeds Partnerships NHS Foundation Trust 
(LPFT). 

 
Sylvia Craven (Director of Planning) – Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust 
(LTHT) joined the meeting later during the consideration of this item. 
 
The representatives reported on progress against the key issues and priorities 
as outlined in the report and responded to queries and comments from the 
Board. 
 
In brief summary, the issues raised with the Executive Director of 
Performance, Improvement and Delivery (NHS Leeds) were: 

• Exercising Choice  - concern was expressed by Members that the 
choice element had been removed for patients where services were 
being concentrated in one centre: 
Members were advised that it was recognised that it was necessary to 
have an open debate with the public as to where services were to be 
placed. 

• Dentistry Services – approval was expressed that there were 
proposals to increase the number of NHS dentists but concern that 
the Trust was putting obstacles in the way of a particular group of 
dentists who were trying to set up a practice in Otley: 
Officers could not comment on the specific example given but Members 
were advised that although many dentists left the NHS in 2006,  they were 
now returning from private practice.  Contracts had gone out to tender and 
it was important to ensure equity in the contracts. The north west of the 
city had experienced particular problems but a Helpline had been set up to 
assist patients find an NHS dentist. 

• Dentistry services and short-term contracts: 
Members were advised that an additional 28,000 NHS dental places for 
patients had been secured.  20,000 of these were permanent places and 
8,000 were short-term places.  It was intended to convert the short-term 
places to permanent arrangements through either current or alternative 
providers.   It was agreed to establish whether patients of dentists working 
under short-term arrangements  would be told of the potential short-term 
nature of their place and provide this information to the Board. 

• Dentistry and disabled access: 
With regard to disabled access to practices being a condition in the new 
contracts, Members were advised that it was a requirement that any new 
dentist premises met the minimum standards.  It was not known however 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 20th October, 2009 

 

how may existing practices were fully compliant with DDA legislation and 
officers agreed to provide this information to the Board. 

• Patient Choice of three GP Practices and how this might impact on 
hospital admissions: 
Members were advised that it was believed that choice of GP was an 
important right for the individual.  Accident and Emergency services were 
under pressure and it was hoped that the new system of choice would 
increase the number of GP home visits rather than patients having to 
telephone for an ambulance.  NHS Leeds monitored GP performance and 
those practices that were not performing well were given help to improve. 

• Sexual Health and Teenage Conception: 
Members were advised that there was a large public health team which 
focused on help and prevention.  There was a city-wide team but it was 
found that the best results were achieved when specific areas were 
targeted.  Mobile phone technology and the internet were being used to 
reach young people, as well as attendance at specific events, for example 
the Leeds Festival. 

• Partnership work between NHS Leeds and LCC: 
Members were advised that the partnership worked well but could always 
be improved on. 

• Public Health Reports: 
It was agreed to supply a copy of the Director of Public Health’s latest 
Annual Report to each Member of the Board. 
 

The issues raised with the Chief Executive – Leeds Partnerships NHS 
Foundation Trust were in brief summary: 

• Concern with regard to facilities for patients that suffered from 
mental and physical problems: 
Members were advised that there were services available for these 
patients in Ward 40 at the LGI but it was recognised that improvements 
could be made, particularly for younger people who suffered from 
dementia, as these services were currently structured towards older 
people.  Work was also ongoing to improve access for those with physical 
disabilities to mental health services. 

• Patient Safety: 
Members were advised that all three buildings where there had previously 
been concerns over fire safety had recently been through a fire safety 
audit by the fire service and the report was awaited.  However the Chief 
Executive was confident that fire safety provision was as it should be. 

• Health Fair at Pudsey Civic Centre: 
Members were informed that the event was well attended by people with 
learning disabilities. 
 

Sylvia Craven, (Director of Planning) – Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust, 
was welcomed to the meeting and offered to deliver a longer presentation to 
the Board at a later date on the issues that faced the Trust. 
 
After updating the Board on the key issues for the LTHT, Members raised, in 
brief summary, the following issues: 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 20th October, 2009 

 

• More productive bed space and the management of C. difficile and 
MRSA:  
It was confirmed that there was an integrated programme across the Trust 
that would lead to better patient care.  The management of C. difficile and 
MRSA were linked to bed space, as any patient contracting the infections 
would have to stay longer in hospital.  Members were also assured that 
although bed space would be reduced as services improved, patient care 
would not be compromised and the Trust would be able to treat more 
patients. 

• Theatre efficiency – operations being cancelled due to the 
unavailability of surgeons:   
Members were assured that this was not a problem in Leeds.  Operations 
however could be cancelled due to a variety of other reasons and the 
Trust were seeking to minimise these. 

• Missed appointments: 
Members were advised that ‘Did Not Attend’ rates were improving and the 
Trust acknowledged the need to work in partnership with patients to 
reduce the figures. 

 
The Chair thanked the officers from the NHS Trusts for attending and for their 
comprehensive reports. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the report and presentations from each of the local NHS Trusts be 

noted. 
(b) That the following information be provided to Members by the 

Executive Director of Performance, Improvement and Delivery – NHS 
Leeds: 

• Whether patients of dentists on short-term NHS contracts were 
being told of the potential short-term nature of their place. 

• How many existing dental practices were fully compliant with DDA 
legislation. 

• A copy of the Director of Public Health’s latest Annual Report. 
 
(NB: Councillor Kirkland declared a personal interest during the consideration 
of this item as the premises referred to in the discussions on dentistry 
provision were next door to his home.) 
 
(Note: Councillor Lamb joined the meeting at 11.05am during the 
consideration of this item and Mr Mack left the meeting at 11.25am at the 
conclusion of this item.) 
 

29 KPMG Health Inequalities Report  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report 
presenting Members with the KPMG report on Health Inequalities (June 2009) 
which provided an assessment of how the Council and NHS Leeds were 
addressing health inequalities across the city.  Also attached was the report of 
the Director of Adult Social Services to the Corporate Governance and Audit 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 20th October, 2009 

 

Committee (29th July 2009) which included the response to the 
recommendations contained within the KPMG report. 
 
The Chair welcomed the following officers to address any questions identified 
by the Board: 

• John England (Deputy Director – Partnerships and Organisational 
Effectiveness) – Leeds City Council, Adult Social Services, and 

• Brenda Fullard (Head of Healthy Living and Inequalities) – NHS Leeds. 
 
Members were advised that Leeds City Council and NHS Leeds were working 
together on a detailed action plan to address the recommendations made in 
the KPMG report and this would be presented to the Executive Board in 
December 2009. 
 
Officers advised the Board of the key issues brought out in the annual Public 
Health Report and the challenges that faced the Council and NHS Leeds to 
reduce health inequalities.  These were in brief: 

• Reducing smoking levels. 

• Locality commissioning. 

• A programme management approach relating to: 
o Increasing the number of people coming through GP surgeries for 

health checks, 
o Infant mortality, 
o Excessive winter deaths, 
o Healthy living services. 

• Joint working and a partnership approach to reducing cardiovascular 
deaths and levels of obesity. 

• Reducing alcohol related hospital admissions. 

• Maintaining investments with the voluntary sector as an interface between 
services and disadvantaged groups. 

• Strengthening the need for staff to be accountable for delivering targets. 

• Encouraging hard to reach groups to access services. 

• Considering the impact of the recession on health and well being across 
the City. 

 
Officers also advised that it was a relatively short period of time that health 
inequalities had been included on the Council agenda but inroads were being 
made in terms of Council services recognising the contribution that they could 
make to address these issues. 
 
In brief summary, the main issues raised by Members were: 

• That health inequalities were a manifestation of other inequalities in 
society. 

• Alcohol excess and promotions - the restrictions that local authorities had 
in terms of licensing laws and the need to press the Government for 
change.   
Members were advised that it was an infringement of a bar’s license if their 
staff served alcohol to people that were already drunk. 

• High levels of obesity. 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 20th October, 2009 

 

• Air pollutants eg high pollen and sulphur dioxide levels created under 
certain weather conditions which resulted in hospital admissions due to 
respiratory problems. 

• Recreation provision in the inner city - the importance of protecting playing 
fields and ensuring that planning regulations and legislation were robust. 

• Addressing the life expectancy gap between the highest area of the city 
(Adel and Wharfedale) and the lowest (City and Hunslet):  
– the affects of pollution from the many major roads and motorways in 

the south of the city on people suffering from respiratory problems, 
– the proposed closure by the Council of facilities in the south of the city 

such as the sports centre and a day centre, which would seem at 
conflict with the health needs of people in that area. 

• Drugs. 
Members were advised that officers had recently agreed to revitalise and 
update the drug misuse strategy and that consultation had started on the 
content. 

• Greater investment required in the third sector and hard to reach people – 
that good practice should be rolled out across the city and not just limited 
to the south of the city. 

• Weight loss summer camp run by Carnegie Weight Management in Leeds 
– Concern that Leeds did not send children to this camp but other 
authorities did.   

 
The Chair referred Members of the Board to the proposed Inquiry into the role 
of the Council and its partners in promoting good public health, the draft terms 
of reference of which were attached as Appendix 1 to the Report on the 
Updated Work Programme later on in the agenda and where the above issues 
would be scrutinised if Members agreed to hold this revised Inquiry. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the contents of the reports be noted. 
(b) That the issues be further scrutinised in the Board’s proposed Inquiry 

into the role of the Council and its partners in promoting good public 
health, subject to Members agreeing to hold this Inquiry and agreeing 
the terms of reference (see Minute No. 32). 

 
30 Joint Performance Report: Quarter 1 - 2009/10  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a joint report from 
NHS Leeds and Leeds City Council providing an overview of progress against 
key improvement priorities and performance indicators relevant to the Board 
at Quarter 1, 2009/10. 
 
The following officers were welcomed to the meeting to address any specific 
questions identified by the Board: 

• Graham Brown (Performance Manager) – NHS Leeds, and 

• John England (Deputy Director – Partnerships and Organisational 
Effectiveness) – Leeds City Council, Adult Social Services. 

 

Page 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 20th October, 2009 

 

The issue of concerns regarding the data quality of NI 70 (Reduce emergency 
hospital admissions caused by injury to children) was raised by Members.  
Members were advised that this was a fairly new indicator and the data was to 
be available via the central Government Data Hub, but it had not been made 
available when it was promised. 
 
The Board agreed to ask the Director of Children’s Services to respond to the 
Board’s concerns on the quality of the data of NI 70. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 
(b) That the Director of Children’s Services be requested to respond to the 

Board’s concerns to the quality of the data of NI 70: Reduce 
emergency hospital admissions caused by injury to children. 

 
31 Scrutiny Inquiry: Improving Sexual Health Among Young People - 

response to recommendations  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report attaching 
the formal response by the Director of Children’s Services to the Executive 
Board on 22nd July 2009 to the recommendations presented in the Scrutiny 
Inquiry report: ‘Improving Sexual Health Among Young People (April 2009)’. 
 
Also attached to the report was the Ministerial Report presenting the outcome 
of the March 2009 review by the Teenage Pregnancy National Support Team. 
 
Steven Courtney, Principal Scrutiny Advisor, advised Members that the 
Executive Board approved the proposed responses to the previous Scrutiny 
Board (Health)’s recommendations, as contained within the report of the 
Director of Children’s Services and that the progress of each recommendation 
would be monitored in future quarterly recommendation tracking reports to the 
Board. 
 
The following Officers were welcomed to the meeting to respond to any 
questions identified by the Board: 

• Paul Bollom, Priority Outcome Commissioner (Leeds City Council, 
Children’s Services), and 

• Keira Swift, Teenage Pregnancy Co-ordinator (Leeds City Council, 
Children’s Services). 

 
In brief summary, Members raised the following issues: 

• That YSHAG (Young Sexual Health Action Group) should be consulted on 
the response – The Chair referred to the proposed inquiry into the role of 
the Council and its partners in promoting good public health which was to 
be considered under the next agenda item and where under Session 1 it 
was proposed to consider issues associated with improving sexual health 
and reducing the level of teenage pregnancies. 
The Priority Outcome Commissioner advised that his was a new post and 
assured the Board that young people would be involved in setting up 
strategic commissioning. 

Page 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 20th October, 2009 

 

The Teenage Pregnancy Co-ordinator advised that workshops had been 
held recently which had proved very useful. 

• Teenage Pregnancy – Concern was expressed that this data (NI 112: 
Teenage pregnancy rates) was 18 months out of date, that it was therefore 
difficult to monitor progress and that the targets should be challenged as 
unachievable.   
Members were also keen that officers should adopt the good practice of 
other local authorities such as Derby, which had greatly reduced teenage 
pregnancy rates. 
Officers advised that it was a national target to reduce teenage pregnancy 
rates to 22.7 per 1,000 girls aged 15 to 17 by 2010 and agreed that it was 
worth investigating national as well as European best practice to reduce 
rates. 

 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 
(b) That the issues raised above be further scrutinised in the Board’s 

proposed Inquiry into the role of the Council and its partners in 
promoting good public health, subject to Members agreeing to hold this 
Inquiry and agreeing the terms of reference (see Minute No. 32).  

 
32 Work Programme  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report 
presenting an outline work programme for the Board to consider, amend and 
agree as appropriate. 
 
Appended to the report were copies of the following documents for the 
information/comment of the Board:- 
•  Draft Terms of Reference for a Scrutiny Board (Health) Inquiry into the role 

of the Council and its partners in promoting good public health (Appendix 1 
refers) with the associated inquiry selection criteria pro-forma (Appendix 
2). 

•  Scrutiny Board (Health) - Draft Work Programme 2009/2010 (Appendix 3). 
•  Scrutiny Board (Health) – Health Proposals Working Group Terms of 

Reference (Appendix 4). 
•  Minutes of the Executive Board meetings held on 22nd July and 26th 

August 2009 (Appendices 5 and 6). 
 
The Chair advised Members that the Board were being requested to 
reconsider their decision at their meeting on 30th June 2009 not to re-establish 
the Health Proposals Working Group.  The was due to subsequent 
discussions with officials at NHS Leeds revealing the degree to which the 
working group had provided a useful vehicle to keep members of the Scrutiny 
Board appraised of developments across local NHS Trusts.  As such, the 
previously proposed terms of reference were attached to the report for 
Members’ reconsideration. 
 
Following discussion, Members agreed to reinstate the Health Proposals 
Working Group.  With regard to membership of the working group, it was 

Page 8



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 20th October, 2009 

 

agreed that there would be a core membership of Councillors Dobson and 
Chapman and that all other members of the Board would attend whenever 
possible. 
 
With reference to the Executive Board Minutes of 26th August 2009 and the 
Council’s proposal to establish barbecue areas on Woodhouse Moor, a 
Member of the Scrutiny Board raised the issue of whether respiratory 
conditions were affected by barbecue smoke.   
 
Following discussion it was agreed to seek advice from NHS Leeds regarding 
the impact of air pollutants, such as barbecue smoke and emissions caused 
by road traffic and power stations, on people with respiratory difficulties.   
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 
(b) That the draft terms of reference for the Inquiry into the role of the 

Council and its partners in promoting good public health (Appendix 1) 
and the associated inquiry selection criteria pro-forma (Appendix 2) be 
agreed in lieu of the previously agreed terms of reference for a scrutiny 
inquiry solely around alcohol related harm. 

(c) That the outline work programme, as attached at Appendix 3 to the 
report, be agreed. 

(d) That the Health Proposals Working Group be re-established in line with 
the draft terms of reference as attached at Appendix 4 to the report, 
and that there would be a core membership of Councillors Dobson and 
Chapman, with other Members of the Board attending whenever 
possible. 

(e) That NHS Leeds be requested to provide advice on the impact of air 
pollutants, such as barbecue smoke and emissions caused by road 
traffic and power stations, on people with respiratory difficulties, in 
order for the Board to determine whether this issue required scrutiny. 

 
33 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 

Noted that the next meeting of the Board would be held on Tuesday 20th 
October 2009 at 10.00am, with a pre-meeting for Board Members at 9.30am. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 12.40pm. 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date: 20 October 2009 
 
Subject: Scrutiny Inquiry: The role of the Council and its partners in promoting good 
public health (Session 1) 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to introduce the first session of the Scrutiny Board’s 

inquiry that will consider the role of the Council and its partners in promoting good 
public health. 

 
2.0 Background 
 

2.1 At its previous meeting (22 September 2009), the Scrutiny Board (Health) agreed 
terms of reference for the above inquiry.  In this regard, the Board agreed to consider 
arrangements relating to four specific areas of public health, namely: 

 

• Improving sexual health and reducing the level of teenage pregnancies; 

• Reversing the rise in levels of obesity and promoting an increase in the levels of 
physical activity; 

• Promoting responsible alcohol consumption; and, 

• Reducing the level of smoking; 
 
2.2 In considering the promotion of good public health, the overall purpose of the inquiry 

is to make an assessment of the role of all partners in developing, supporting and 
delivering targets associated with improving specific aspects of public health.  

 
3.0 Health and Wellbeing 
 
3.1 Health and wellbeing is one of eight key themes within the Leeds Strategic Plan 

(2008-2011), with reducing teenage conception and improving sexual health being a 
specific improvement priority. 

 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Steven Courtney 
 
Tel: 247 4707 
 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



3.2 The recently agreed Health and Wellbeing Partnership Plan (2009 – 2012) is part of 
the broader Leeds Strategic Plan, and is based on the outcomes and priorities 
agreed by the Council and its partners and shaped by local people.  

 
3.3 The Health and Wellbeing Partnership Plan (2009 – 2012) concentrates on the main 

high level actions necessary to help deliver the agreed strategic outcomes and 
priorities.  These high level actions are detailed in the attached action plan for the 
improvement priorities (Appendix 1).   

 
Reducing teenage conception and improving sexual health 

 
3.4 Actions associated with reducing teenage conception and improving sexual health 

are detailed in action plan number 5.  Within the action plan, four other key and 
related strategies are identified – the main two being: 

 

• Teenage pregnancy and parenthood strategy (2008 – 2011) – attached at 
Appendix 2; and, 

• Sexual health strategy (2009 – 2014) – identified as ‘under development’. 
 
3.5 To help members of the Scrutiny Board consider this particular aspect of its inquiry, 

relevant officers from the Council and NHS Leeds have been invited to attend the 
meeting. 
 
Previous Scrutiny Inquiry 

 
3.6 Members will recall that during the previous municipal year (2008/09), the Scrutiny 

Board (Health) conducted an inquiry into improving sexual health among young 
people.  The Scrutiny Board concluded its inquiry and agreed its inquiry report in 
April 2009, setting out its conclusions and recommendations. 

 
3.7 At its previous meeting, on 22 September 2009, the Scrutiny Board (Health) was 

presented with the agreed response to the recommendations identified during the 
previous inquiry, alongside a ministerial report arising from a review by the Teenage 
Pregnancy National Support Team (TPNST), undertaken in March 2009.   

 
3.8 Members are reminded that, as a matter of routine, recommendations arising from 

inquiries are incorporated into the quarterly recommendation tracking reports.  These 
reports help the Scrutiny Board to monitor and review progress against previous 
recommendations.   The next recommendation tracking report is scheduled for the 
meeting in December 2009. 

 
 
4.0 Recommendations 
 

4.1 Members are asked to consider the details presented in this report and discussed at 
the meeting and: 
(i) Identify any specific areas/ issues to be included in the Board’s scrutiny inquiry 

report; and,  
(ii) Determine any specific matters where additional information may be required 

and/or where further scrutiny may be needed. 
 
5.0 Background Documents 
 

Leeds Strategic Plan (2008 – 2011) 

Page 12



Scrutiny Inquiry: The role of the Council and its partners in promoting good public 
health – Terms of reference (agreed 22 September 2009) 
Scrutiny Board (Health) – Inquiry Report: Improving Sexual Health Among Young 
People (April 2009)  
Scrutiny Inquiry: Improving Sexual Health Among Young People – response to 
recommendations – report to the Scrutiny Board (Health) – 22 September 2009 
 

 

 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



N
o

te
s 

Fo
r 

e
ac

h 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

h
e 

at
ta

ch
e
d
 t

ab
le

 g
iv

es
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
:

th
e 

jo
in

tl
y 

ac
co

u
n
ta

b
le

 d
ir

e
ct

o
rs

, 
th

e 
ke

y 
p
ar

tn
e
rs

h
ip

s,
 s

tr
at

e
gi

c 
le

ad
s 

an
d
 t

h
e 

re
la

te
d
 

st
ra

te
gi

es
;

th
e 

n
at

io
n
al

 in
d
ic

at
o
rs

 a
n
d
 t

ar
ge

ts
 t
o
ge

th
e
r 

w
it
h 

th
e 

m
e
as

u
re

s 
o
f s

u
cc

es
s 

th
at

 a
re

 b
e
in

g 
u
se

d
; 

an
 o

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f t

h
e 

m
ai

n 
ar

e
as

 fo
r 

ac
ti
o
n 

o
ve

r 
th

e 
n
e
x
t 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s.
 T

h
is
 is

 n
o
t 
in

te
n
d
e
d
 

to
 d

u
p
lic

at
e 

th
e 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 in

d
iv

id
u
al

 s
tr

at
e
gi

es
 a

n
d
 a

ct
io

n 
p
la

n
s 

w
h
ic

h 
ar

e 
si

gn
p
o
st

e
d
 s

o
 

th
at

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

u
n
d
. 

T
h
es

e 
ac

ti
o
n 

p
la

n
s 
w

ill
 in

fo
rm

 t
h
e 

p
e
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
e
m

e
n
t p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r 
th

e 
Le

e
d
s 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n
. 
T

h
e 

ac
ti
o
n 

p
la

n
s 

an
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

e
d
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
at

e
d
 a

n
n
u
al

ly
. 
Fo

llo
w

in
g 

a 
p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

E
q
u
al

it
y 

Im
p
ac

t 
A

ss
es

sm
e
n
t 

in
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
0
9,

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e 

u
n
d
e
rt

ak
e
n 

se
x
u
al

 o
ri

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
, a

ge
, r

e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
b
e
lie

f.)
 T

h
is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

fo
rm

e
d
 b

y 
co

n
ti
n
u
o
u
s 

se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

e
n
t 

an
d
 d

ev
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

fo
rm

al
ly

 in
cl

u
d
e
d
 in

 t
h
e 

an
n
u
al

 r
ef

re
sh

.

Pa
ge

 1

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

T
he

 a
gr

ee
d 

im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t 
p
ri
o
ri
tie

s 
fo

r 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 a

re
:

1.
R

ed
u
ce

 p
re

m
at

u
re

 m
o
rt

al
it
y 

in
 t

h
e 

m
o
st

 d
ep

ri
ve

d
 a

re
as

.

2
.

R
ed

u
ce

 t
h
e 

n
u
m

b
er

 o
f 
p
eo

p
le

 w
ho

 s
m

o
ke

.

3
.

R
ed

u
ce

 a
lc

o
ho

l r
el

at
ed

 h
ar

m
.

4
.

R
ed

u
ce

 r
at

e 
o
f 

in
cr

ea
se

 i
n 

o
b
es

it
y 

an
d
 r

ai
se

 p
hy

si
ca

l 
ac

ti
vi

ty
 

fo
r 

al
l.

5
.

R
ed

u
ce

 t
ee

na
ge

 c
o
n
ce

p
ti
o
n 

an
d
 im

p
ro

ve
 s

ex
u
al

 h
ea

lt
h
.

6
.

Im
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

an
d
 c

ar
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

o
f 

ch
ild

re
n
, 

fa
m

ili
es

 a
n
d
 v

u
ln

er
ab

le
 a

d
u
lt
s.

7.
Im

p
ro

ve
 p

sy
ch

o
lo

gi
ca

l, 
m

en
ta

l 
h
ea

lt
h
, 

an
d
 l

ea
rn

in
g 

d
is
ab

ili
ty

 
se

rv
ic

es
 f
o
r 

th
o
se

 w
ho

 n
ee

d
 t

h
em

.

8
.

In
cr

ea
se

 t
h
e 

n
u
m

b
er

 o
f 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 p

eo
p
le

 h
el

p
ed

 t
o
 l

iv
e 

at
 

ho
m

e
.

9.
In

cr
ea

se
 t

h
e 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n 

o
f 

p
eo

p
le

 i
n 

re
ce

ip
t 

o
f 

co
m

m
u
n
it
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 e
nj

o
yi

ng
 c

ho
ic

e 
an

d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l o

ve
r 

th
ei

r 
d
ai

ly
 li

ve
s.

10
.

Im
p
ro

ve
 s

af
eg

u
ar

d
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

an
d
 

ad
u
lt
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

b
et

te
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
, 

re
co

gn
it
io

n 
an

d
 

re
sp

o
ns

e 
to

 r
is
k.

 

Page 15



1
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 p
re

m
a
tu

re
 m

o
rt

a
li
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 d
e
p

ri
v
e
d

 a
re

a
s 

A
cc

o
un

ta
bl

e 
D

ire
ct

o
rs

 a
nd

 K
ey

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
Le

ad
 a

nd
 c

o
nt

ri
bu

tin
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

Ia
n

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
 /

 S
a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
H

e
al

th
y 

Le
e
d
s 

Jo
in

t 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d
 –

 P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g 

H
e
al

th
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g 
Su

b
gr

o
u
p

R
o

se
m

a
r
y
 A

rc
h

e
r/

S
a
r
a
h

 S
in

c
la

ir
 

C
h
ild

re
n 

Le
e
d
s 

In
te

gr
at

e
d
 S

tr
at

e
gi

c 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

Le
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
Le

e
d
s 

P
ar

tn
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o
u
n
d
at

io
n 

N
H

S 
T
ru

st
Le

e
d
s 

T
e
ac

h
in

g 
H

o
sp

it
al

s 
N

H
S 

T
ru

st
V

C
F 

se
ct

o
r 

th
ro

u
gh

 L
e
e
d
s 

V
o
ic

e 
H

e
al

th
 F

o
ru

m
 

N
at

u
ra

l E
n
gl

an
d

W
es

t 
Y
o
rk

sh
ir

e 
Fi

re
 a

n
d
 R

es
cu

e 
Se

rv
ic

e

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Le

ad
s

B
re

n
d
a 

Fu
lla

rd
, N

H
S 

Le
e
d
s

Jo
h
n 

E
n
gl

an
d
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
Sh

ar
o
n 

Y
e
lli

n
, N

H
S 

Le
e
d
s

In
fa

n
t 

M
o

r
ta

li
ty

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
0

9
L

e
e

d
s 

T
h

e
 L

e
e

d
s 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 P

la
n

 2
0

0
9

 t
o

 2
0
1
4

 
L

e
e

d
s 

T
o

b
a
c
c
o

 C
o

n
t
ro

l 
S

t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0

6
 t

o
 2

0
1
0

F
o

o
d

 M
a
tt

e
r
s
: 
a
 f

o
o

d
 s

t
r
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r
 L

e
e

d
s 

2
0

0
6

 t
o

 2
0
1
0

A
c
ti

v
e

 L
e

e
d

s 
: 
a
 p

h
y
si

c
a
l 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
 s

t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0

8
 t

o
 2

0
1
2

A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
P

re
v
e

n
ti

o
n

 F
r
a
m

e
w

o
r
k

 2
0

0
8

 t
o

 2
0
11

O
ld

e
r
 B

e
tt

e
r
 2

0
0

6
 t

o
 2

0
11

A
lc

o
h

o
l 

S
t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0
7

 t
o

 2
0
1
0

S
e

lf
 C

a
re

 S
t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0

9
Le

e
d
s 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 2
0
0
9
 t

o
 2

01
2

Le
e
d
s 

A
ff
o
rd

ab
le

 W
ar

m
th

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 2
0
07

 t
o
 2

01
6

Le
e
d
s 

Fi
n
an

ci
al

 I
n
cl

u
si

o
n 

P
ro

je
ct

Pa
ge

 2

Page 16



1
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 p
re

m
a
tu

re
 m

o
rt

a
li
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 d
e
p

ri
v
e
d

 a
re

a
s

In
di

ca
to

rs
 a

nd
 t
ar

ge
ts

M
ea

su
re

s 
o
f s

uc
ce

ss

N
I 

1
2

0
 A

ll
 A

g
e

 A
ll

 C
a
u

se
 M

o
r
ta

li
ty

 r
a
te

 
p

e
r
 1

0
0

,0
0

0
D

is
ag

gr
e
ga

te
d
 t

o
 n

ar
ro

w
 t

h
e 

ga
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

0
%

 
m

o
st

 d
e
p
ri

ve
d
 S

O
A

s 
an

d
 a

ll 
o
f 
Le

e
d
s)

B
a
se

li
n

e
 2

0
0
1

 -
2

0
0

3
(f
or

 p
op

ul
a
tio

n 
liv

in
g 

in
 1

0
%

 m
os

t 
de

p
ri
ve

d 
SO

A
s)

M
e
n
 

 
W

o
m

e
n

11
78

 
 

69
2
 

 

3
 y

e
a
r
 t

a
r
g
e

t 
t
r
a
je

c
to

r
y
 f

o
r
 2

0
1
0

 -
2

0
1
2

(f
or

 p
op

ul
a
tio

n 
liv

in
g 

in
 1

0
%

 m
os

t 
de

p
ri
ve

d 
SO

A
s)

M
e
n 

 
 

W
o
m

e
n

91
8
 

 
6
0
2

Fo
r 
Le

ed
s 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
M

e
n 

 
 

W
o
m

e
n 

6
62

 
 

4
6
3

C
it
yw

id
e 

ta
rg

e
t 

47
2
 p

e
r 

10
0
,0

0
0

N
I 

1
2
1

 M
o

r
ta

li
ty

 r
a
te

 f
ro

m
 c

ir
c
u

la
to

r
y
 

d
is

e
a
se

s 
a
t 

a
g
e

s 
u

n
d

e
r
 7

5
 (

p
e

r
 1

0
0

,0
0

0
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

)

B
y
 2

0
1
3

 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s 
a
s 

a
 w

h
o

le
:

th
e
ir
 r

is
k 

o
f 
b
e
co

m
in

g 
u
nw

e
ll

B
y
 2

0
1
3

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 d
e

p
r
iv

e
d

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

L
e

e
d

s

ri
sk

 o
f 
b
e
co

m
in

g 
u
nw

e
ll

In
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 d

e
p

r
iv

e
d

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

L
e

e
d

s 

sm
o
ki

n
g 

ce
ss

at
io

n
/a

lc
o
h
o
l h

ar
m

 r
e
d
u
ct

io
n
/i
n
cr

e
as

e
d
 p

hy
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

it
y)

Pa
ge

 3

Page 17



1
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 p
re

m
a
tu

re
 m

o
rt

a
li
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 d
e
p

ri
v
e
d

 a
re

a
s

H
ig

h 
Le

ve
l A

ct
io

ns
 2

0
09

 -
 2

01
2

h
o
u
si

n
g,

 lo
w

 in
co

m
e
, s

ki
lls

 a
n
d
 e

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t,
 t

ra
n
sp

o
rt

 s
ys

te
m

 a
n
d
 t

h
e 

av
ai

la
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 b

e 
ac

ti
ve

. 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y 

in
 q

u
al

it
y 

an
d
 a

ff
o
rd

ab
le

 h
o
u
si

n
g.

to
 e

n
ab

le
 f
am

ili
es

 t
o
 m

o
ve

 o
u
t 

o
f 
p
o
ve

rt
y.

an
d
 f
ro

m
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s.

n
ew

 f
ac

ili
ti
es

 a
re

 im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

L
iv

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 l

e
a
d

:

to
 in

cl
u
d
e 

p
ro

vi
d
in

g 
sy

st
e
m

at
ic

 b
ri

ef
 in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
s;
 m

ar
ke

ti
n
g 

m
at

e
ri

al
s 

an
d
 p

e
e
r 

/ 
co

m
m

u
n
it
y 

e
n
ga

ge
m

e
n
t.
 

(s
ee

 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Pr
io

ri
ty

 2
).

(s
ee

 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Pr
io

ri
ty

 3
)

(s
ee

 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Pr
io

ri
ty

 4
).

S
e

r
v
ic

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

se
:

ce
ss

at
io

n
/a

lc
o
h
o
l b

ri
ef

 in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s/

h
e
al

th
 t

ra
in

e
rs

) 
an

d
 b

ro
ad

e
r 

p
o
ve

rt
y/

w
e
ll 

b
e
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
.

q
u
it

te
rs

 a
n
d
 im

p
ro

ve
d
 b

lo
o
d
 p

re
ss

u
re

 a
n
d
 c

h
o
le

st
e
ro

l c
o
n
tr

o
l. 

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s.

h
ap

p
e
n 

in
 t

h
e 

10
%

 m
o
st

 d
e
p
ri

ve
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s.

e
m

p
o
w

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 s

e
lf 

ca
re

 a
n
d
 t

h
at

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

s 
h
av

e 
th

e 
re

le
va

n
t 

kn
o
w

le
d
ge

 a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

se
lf 

ca
re

 a
p
p
ro

ac
h
es

.

is
su

es
 a

ro
u
n
d
 a

lc
o
h
o
l, 

sm
o
ki

n
g 

an
d
 w

e
ig

h
t 

m
an

ag
e
m

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e 

e
q
u
it
ab

le
 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n 

o
f 
C

H
D

, c
an

ce
r 

an
d
 r

es
p
ir

at
o
ry

 c
ar

e 
se

co
n
d
ar

y 
se

rv
ic

es
.

lo
w

 u
p
ta

ke
, h

ig
h 

d
e
p
ri

va
ti
o
n 

an
d
 w

it
h
in

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s.

 

as
so

ci
at

e
d
 in

it
ia

ti
ve

s.
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t
:

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
h
e
al

th
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

gr
am

m
es

. 

se
e
ki

n
g 

b
e
h
av

io
u
r. 

d
ev

e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
y 

th
e 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
, C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

&
 F

ai
th

 s
e
ct

o
r. 

Pa
ge

 4

Page 18



2
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

m
o

k
e

A
cc

o
un

ta
bl

e 
D

ire
ct

o
rs

 a
nd

 K
ey

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
Le

ad
 a

nd
 c

o
nt

ri
bu

tin
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

Ia
n

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
 /

 S
a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
H

e
al

th
y 

Le
e
d
s 

Jo
in

t 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d
 –

 P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g 

H
e
al

th
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g 
Su

b
gr

o
u
p

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

Le
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
Le

e
d
s 

P
ar

tn
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o
u
n
d
at

io
n 

N
H

S 
T
ru

st
Le

e
d
s 

T
e
ac

h
in

g 
H

o
sp

it
al

s 
N

H
S 

T
ru

st
V

C
F 

se
ct

o
r 

th
ro

u
gh

 L
e
e
d
s 

V
o
ic

e 
H

e
al

th
 F

o
ru

m
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Le

ad
s

B
re

n
d
a 

Fu
lla

rd
, N

H
S 

Le
e
d
s

Jo
h
n 

E
n
gl

an
d
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
L

e
e

d
s 

T
o

b
a
c
c
o

 C
o

n
t
ro

l 
S

t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0

6
 t

o
 2

0
1
0

T
h

e
 L

e
e

d
s 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 P

la
n

 2
0

0
9

 t
o

 2
0
1
4

 
In

fa
n

t 
M

o
r
ta

li
ty

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
0

9

2
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

m
o

k
e

In
di

ca
to

rs
 a

nd
 t
ar

ge
ts

M
ea

su
re

s 
o
f s

uc
ce

ss

N
I 

1
2

3
 S

to
p

p
in

g
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 

10
%

 m
o
st

 d
e
p
ri

ve
d
 S

O
A

s 
an

d
 t

h
e 

re
st

 o
f 
Le

e
d
s)

B
a
se

li
n

e
 (

2
0

0
4

)
31

%
 s

m
o
ke

rs
 in

 t
h
e 

Le
e
d
s 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

T
a
r
g
e

t 
(2

0
1
0

-1
1
)

21
%

 s
m

o
ke

rs
 in

 t
h
e 

Le
e
d
s 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

27
%

 s
m

o
ke

rs
 in

 1
0
%

 m
o
st

 d
e
p
ri

ve
d
 S

O
A

s

V
it

a
l 

si
g
n

s 
V

S
B

0
5

4
 w

e
e
ks

 s
m

o
ki

n
g 

q
u
it

te
rs

 w
h
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 N

H
S 

St
o
p
 S

m
o
ki

n
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

. 

T
a
r
g
e

t 
2
01

0
/1

1
 4

3
4
5
 p

e
o
p
le

 s
to

p
p
in

g 
sm

o
ki

n
g 

w
it
h
 N

H
S 

St
o
p
 S

m
o
ki

n
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

-
h
e
lp

in
g 

2
2
,0

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 s

to
p
 s

m
o
ki

n
g 

b
y 

2
01

3
-

P
ro

te
ct

in
g 

n
o
n
-s

m
o
ke

rs

b
e 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 s

m
o
ki

n
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
e
r 

ye
ar

Pa
ge

 5

Page 19



2
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

m
o

k
e

H
ig

h 
Le

ve
l A

ct
io

ns
 2

0
09

 -
 2

01
2

co
n
tr

o
l i

s 
st

re
n
gt

h
e
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
st

ai
n
e
d
.

sm
o
ke

 f
re

e 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n
. 

p
ro

m
o
te

 a
ll 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
to

b
ac

co
 c

o
n
tr

o
l w

o
rk

 in
cl

u
d
in

g:
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

sm
o
ki

n
g 

ce
ss

at
io

n
, p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n 

o
f 
sm

o
ke

 f
re

e 
h
o
m

es
 a

n
d
 c

am
p
ai

gn
s 

to
 r

e
d
u
ce

 t
h
e 

av
ai

la
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
sm

u
gg

le
d
 a

n
d
 il

lic
it
 t

o
b
ac

co
 p

ro
d
u
ct

s.
 

se
rv

ic
es

) 
to

 in
fo

rm
 t

o
b
ac

co
 c

o
n
tr

o
l a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
o
f 
sm

o
ki

n
g 

ce
ss

at
io

n
 s

e
rv

ic
es

.

L
iv

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 l

e
a
d

:

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
ev

e
lo

p
 if

 n
e
ce

ss
ar

y 
an

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
rl

y 
in

 t
h
e 

m
o
st

 d
e
p
ri

ve
d
 a

re
as

. 

in
cl

u
d
in

g:
- 

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g 

sm
o
ki

n
g 

ce
ss

at
io

n 
to

 w
o
m

e
n 

o
f 
ch

ild
 b

ea
ri

n
g 

ag
e 

an
d
 li

n
k 

w
it
h
 t

h
e 

ci
ty

 
w

id
e 

in
fa

n
t 

m
o
rt

al
it
y 

ac
ti
o
n 

p
ro

gr
am

m
e
.

- 
R

e
ac

h
in

g 
p
re

gn
an

t 
sm

o
ke

rs
 a

s 
so

o
n 

as
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
ro

u
gh

o
u
t 

p
re

gn
an

cy
.

- 
Su

p
p
o
rt

in
g 

p
re

gn
an

t 
w

o
m

e
n 

to
 s

to
p
 s

m
o
ki

n
g 

th
ro

u
gh

o
u
t 

p
re

gn
an

cy
.

ar
ea

s.
 

S
e

r
v
ic

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

se
:

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

cl
u
d
in

g:
 h

o
sp

it
al

s,
 w

o
rk

p
la

ce
s 

an
d
 p

ri
so

n
s.

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s,
 p

re
gn

an
t 

w
o
m

e
n 

an
d
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

re
co

m
m

e
n
d
at

io
n
s 

fo
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
ev

e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

sy
st

e
m

at
ic

 a
n
d
 r

o
u
ti
n
e 

m
an

n
e
r 

an
d
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e 

re
fe

rr
al

 p
at

hw
ay

s 
ar

e 
d
ev

e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 

m
ai

n
ta

in
e
d
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t
:

p
ar

ti
cu

la
rl

y 
co

u
n
te

rf
e
it
 a

n
d
 s

m
u
gg

le
d
 t

o
b
ac

co
 p

ro
d
u
ct

s.
 

th
at

 in
cl

u
d
es

 s
ig

n
p
o
st

in
g 

to
 s

m
o
ki

n
g 

ce
ss

at
io

n 
su

p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 t

h
e 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n
 o

f 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 t
o
 

su
p
p
o
rt

 b
e
h
av

io
u
r 

ch
an

ge
.

b
as

e
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
sm

o
ki

n
g 

ce
ss

at
io

n 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
s.

 

Pa
ge

 6

Page 20



3
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

A
cc

o
un

ta
bl

e 
D

ire
ct

o
rs

 a
nd

 K
ey

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
Le

ad
 a

nd
 c

o
nt

ri
bu

tin
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

Ia
n

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
 /

 S
a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
 /

 N
e

il
 E

v
a
n

s
H

e
al

th
y 

Le
e
d
s 

Jo
in

t 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d
 –

 P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g 

H
e
al

th
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g 
Su

b
gr

o
u
p

Sa
fe

r 
Le

e
d
s/

 H
e
al

th
y 

Le
e
d
s 

A
lc

o
h
o
l B

o
ar

d

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

Le
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
Le

e
d
s 

P
ar

tn
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o
u
n
d
at

io
n 

N
H

S 
T
ru

st
Le

e
d
s 

T
e
ac

h
in

g 
H

o
sp

it
al

s 
N

H
S 

T
ru

st
V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
, C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

an
d
 F

ai
th

 s
e
ct

o
r 

th
ro

u
gh

 L
e
e
d
s 

V
o
ic

e 
H

e
al

th
 F

o
ru

m
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Le

ad
s

B
re

n
d
a 

Fu
lla

rd
, N

H
S 

Le
e
d
s

Jo
h
n 

E
n
gl

an
d
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
Jim

 W
ill

so
n
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l

L
e

e
d

s 
A

lc
o

h
o

l 
S

t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0
7

 t
o

 2
0
1
0

S
a
fe

r
 L

e
e

d
s 

P
a
r
t
n

e
r
s
h

ip
 P

la
n

 2
0

0
8

 t
o

2
0
11

3
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

In
di

ca
to

rs
 a

nd
 t
ar

ge
ts

M
ea

su
re

s 
o
f s

uc
ce

ss

N
I 

3
9

 H
o
sp

it
al

 a
d
m

is
si

o
n
s 

fo
r 

al
co

h
o
l r

e
la

te
d
 

h
ar

m

R
e
d
u
ce

 t
h
e 

in
cr

e
as

e 
in

 t
h
e 

ra
te

 o
f 
al

co
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 

h
o
sp

it
al

 a
d
m

is
si

o
n 

b
y 

at
 le

as
t 

1%
 p

e
r 

ye
ar

Pa
ge

 7

Page 21



3
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

H
ig

h 
Le

ve
l A

ct
io

ns
 2

0
09

 -
 2

01
2

d
o
m

es
ti
c 

ab
u
se

. 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n 

o
f 
th

e 
Li

ce
n
si

n
g 

A
ct

 2
0
03

 a
n
d
 e

n
co

u
ra

ge
 t

h
e 

lic
e
n
si

n
g 

au
th

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 

co
n
si

d
e
r 

sa
fe

gu
ar

d
in

g 
is

su
es

 f
o
r 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o
p
le

.

-
th

e 
al

co
h
o
l r

e
la

te
d
 r

e
co

rd
e
d
 v

io
le

n
t 

cr
im

e;
 

-
th

e 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

ge
 o

f 
ca

se
s 

w
h
e
re

 a
lc

o
h
o
l u

se
 is

 li
n
ke

d
 t

o
 o

ff
e
n
d
in

g;
 

-
th

e 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

ge
 o

f 
d
o
m

es
ti
c 

vi
o
le

n
ce

 w
h
e
re

 a
lc

o
h
o
l i

s 
a 

co
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g 

fa
ct

o
r;
 

-
th

e 
u
se

 o
f 
al

co
h
o
l i

n 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
ge

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

18
; a

n
d

L
iv

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 l

e
a
d

:

in
 s

ch
o
o
l a

n
d
 n

o
n
-e

d
u
ca

ti
o
n
al

 s
e
tt

in
gs

. 

ch
ild

re
n
. 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 c

h
o
ic

es
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
ir
 a

lc
o
h
o
l u

se
 a

n
d
 s

h
if
t 

at
ti
tu

d
es

 t
o
 h

ar
m

fu
l d

ri
n
ki

n
g.

 

h
e
lp

 g
u
id

es
. 

av
ai

la
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
al

co
h
o
l. 

S
e

r
v
ic

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

se
:

e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n 

sy
st

e
m

.

an
d
 t

h
e 

vo
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
ct

o
r 

w
h
o
 a

re
 t

ra
in

e
d
 t

o
 id

e
n
ti
fy

 a
lc

o
h
o
l m

is
u
se

 a
n
d
 o

ff
e
r 

b
ri

ef
 

ad
vi

ce
. 

p
ro

b
le

m
s,

 in
cl

u
d
in

g 
al

co
h
o
l r

e
la

te
d
 in

ju
ri

es
 a

n
d
 a

cc
id

e
n
ts

, a
n
d
 t

o
 im

p
ro

ve
 f
ac

ili
ti
es

 f
o
r 

tr
e
at

m
e
n
t 

an
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

.

w
it
h 

al
co

h
o
l p

ro
b
le

m
s 

is
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
, a

p
p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

an
d
 a

cc
es

si
b
le

, w
it
h 

ad
e
q
u
at

e 
ca

p
ac

it
y 

to
 m

e
e
t 

d
e
m

an
d
, f

o
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
4
 t

ie
re

d
 f
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 f
ro

m
 M

o
d
e
ls
 o

f 
C

ar
e 

fo
r 

A
lc

o
h
o
l 

M
is

u
se

r.s

co
n
d
it
io

n
s,

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
d
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 A

&
E 

an
d
/o

r 
h
o
sp

it
al

 w
it
h 

al
co

h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 d

is
e
as

e)
 w

h
o
 

ar
e 

as
se

ss
e
d
, o

ff
e
re

d
 b

ri
ef

 in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s 

an
d
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 

tr
e
at

m
e
n
t 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

su
b
st

an
ce

 m
is

u
se

, i
n
cl

u
d
in

g 
sm

o
ki

n
g.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t
:

al
co

h
o
l p

ro
d
u
ct

s.
 

ac
ti
vi

ty
 in

cl
u
d
es

 s
ig

n
p
o
st

in
g 

to
 s

e
rv

ic
es

 t
h
at

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 r
e
d
u
ct

io
n 

in
 a

lc
o
h
o
l h

ar
m

 a
n
d
 t

h
e 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n 

o
f 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 b
e
h
av

io
u
r 

ch
an

ge
.

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
al

co
h
o
l t

re
at

m
e
n
t 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s.

Pa
ge

 8

Page 22



4
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 r
a
te

 o
f 

in
c
re

a
se

 i
n

 o
b

e
si

ty
 a

n
d

 r
a
is

e
 p

h
y
si

c
a
l 
a
c
ti

v
it

y
 f

o
r 

a
ll

A
cc

o
un

ta
bl

e 
D

ire
ct

o
rs

 a
nd

 K
ey

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
Le

ad
 a

nd
 c

o
nt

ri
bu

tin
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

R
o

se
m

a
r
y
 A

rc
h

e
r
 

C
h
ild

re
n 

Le
e
d
s 

In
te

gr
at

e
d
 S

tr
at

e
gi

c 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d

Ia
n

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
 /

 S
a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
H

e
al

th
y 

Le
e
d
s 

Jo
in

t 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d
 –

 P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g 

H
e
al

th
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g 
Su

b
gr

o
u
p

L
e

e
d

s 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

C
h
ild

re
n 

Le
e
d
s 

P
ar

tn
e
rs

N
H

S 
Le

e
d
s

Sp
o
rt

 E
n
gl

an
d

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n 

Le
e
d
s

Y
o
u
th

 S
p
o
rt

s 
T
ru

st
V

C
FS

 S
e
ct

o
r

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Le

ad
s

Sa
ra

h
 S

in
cl

ai
r, 

N
H

S 
Le

e
d
s/

 L
e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
Jo

h
n 

E
n
gl

an
d
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
B

re
n
d
a 

Fu
lla

rd
, N

H
S 

Le
e
d
s

A
c
ti

v
e

 L
e

e
d

s 
: 
a
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
 C

it
y
 2

0
0

8
 t

o
 2

0
1
2

T
a
k

in
g
 t

h
e

 L
e

a
d

: 
st

r
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r
 s

p
o

r
t 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti

v
e

 r
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

in
 L

e
e

d
s 

2
0

0
6

 t
o

 2
0
1
2

F
o

o
d

 M
a
tt

e
r
s
: 
a
 f

o
o

d
 s

t
r
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r
 L

e
e

d
s 

2
0

0
6

 t
o

 2
0
1
0

L
e

e
d

s 
C

h
il

d
h

o
o

d
 O

b
e

si
ty

 S
t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0
1

 2
0
1
6

A
d

u
lt

 O
b

e
si

ty
 S

t
r
a
te

g
y
 (

in
 p

re
p

a
r
a
ti

o
n

)
L

e
e

d
s 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
M

e
a
ls

 S
t
r
a
te

g
y
 J

a
n

 2
0

0
7

T
h

e
 L

e
e

d
s 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 P

la
n

 2
0

0
9

 t
o

 2
0
1
4

Lo
ca

l a
n
d
 W

es
t 

Y
o
rk

sh
ir

e 
T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 P
la

n
s 

&
 C

yc
lin

g 
St

ra
te

gy

Le
e
d
s 

P
la

y 
St

ra
te

gy
 2

0
07

O
ld

e
r 

B
e
tt

e
r 

2
0
0
6
 t

o
 2

01
1

Pa
ge

 9

Page 23



4
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 r
a
te

 o
f 

in
c
re

a
se

 i
n

 o
b

e
si

ty
 a

n
d

 r
a
is

e
 p

h
y
si

c
a
l 
a
c
ti

v
it

y
 f

o
r 

a
ll

In
di

ca
to

rs
 a

nd
 t
ar

ge
ts

M
ea

su
re

s 
o
f s

uc
ce

ss

N
I 

5
7

 

q
u
al

it
y 

P
E 

an
d
 s

p
o
rt

B
as

e
lin

e 
91

%
 2

0
07

/0
8

N
I 

8
 

A
d
u
lt
 p

ar
ti
ci

p
at

io
n 

in
 s

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

ct
iv

e 
re

cr
e
at

io
n

B
as

e
lin

e 
2
0
.6

%
 2

0
0
5
/0

6
T
ar

ge
t 

 2
1.

6%
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

1

C
o
u
n
ci

l S
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 A

ct
iv

e 
R

e
cr

e
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e
, 

d
ay

va
ri

e
ty

 o
f 
p
ro

vi
d
e
rs

 

d
ir

e
ct

e
d
 c

ar
e

Pa
ge

 1
0

Page 24



4
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 r
a
te

 o
f 

in
c
re

a
se

 i
n

 o
b

e
si

ty
 a

n
d

 r
a
is

e
 p

h
y
si

c
a
l 
a
c
ti

v
it

y
 f

o
r 

a
ll

H
ig

h 
Le

ve
l A

ct
io

ns
 2

0
09

 -
 2

01
2

m
o
re

 a
ct

iv
e 

lif
es

ty
le

, c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

y 
at

te
n
ti
o
n 

to
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 is
su

es
 a

n
d
 t

o
 s

af
e
ty

. 

p
ro

lif
e
ra

ti
o
n 

o
f 
fa

st
 f
o
o
d
 o

u
tl
e
ts

 a
n
d
 t

ac
kl

e 
is

su
es

 o
f 
p
o
o
r 

fo
o
d
 a

cc
es

s.

n
ew

 f
ac

ili
ti
es

 a
re

 im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

p
ro

m
o
te

 c
o
n
si

st
e
n
t 

h
e
al

th
y 

ea
ti
n
g 

m
es

sa
ge

s 
u
si

n
g 

p
ri

n
ci

p
le

s 
o
f 
so

ci
al

 m
ar

ke
ti
n
g.

b
u
si

n
es

s 
si

gn
 u

p
 t

o
 h

ea
lt
hy

 w
o
rk

p
la

ce
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
.

an
d
 m

al
n
u
tr

it
io

n 
w

it
h
in

 i
ts

 c
at

e
ri

n
g 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 f
o
o
d
 p

ro
vi

si
o
n
. 

L
iv

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 l

e
a
d

:

in
to

 a
cc

o
u
n
t.
 

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
at

 a
re

 r
ig

h
t 

fo
r 

th
e
ir
 s

ta
ge

 o
f 
lif

e
.

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s 

an
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

gr
o
u
p
s.

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 m

ak
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 d

ie
t 

an
d
 a

ct
iv

it
y.

B
re

as
tf

e
e
d
in

g 
St

ra
te

gy
.

S
e

r
v
ic

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

se
:

in
d
iv

id
u
al

s 
lin

ki
n
g 

to
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f 
ag

e
n
ci

es
.

se
rv

ic
es

.

p
o
o
r 

h
e
al

th
, o

r 
in

 d
an

ge
r 

o
f 
d
ev

e
lo

p
in

g 
p
o
o
r 

h
e
al

th
 t

o
 c

h
an

ge
 t

h
e
ir
 li

fe
st

yl
es

 a
n
d
 

b
e
co

m
e 

h
e
al

th
y.

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
in

cl
u
d
in

g 
fr

e
e 

sw
im

m
in

g 
fo

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
0
9.

ch
an

ge
 in

cl
u
d
in

g 
u
si

n
g 

co
n
si

st
e
n
t 

m
es

sa
ge

s 
ar

o
u
n
d
 b

e
h
av

io
u
r 

ch
an

ge
, h

e
al

th
y 

w
e
ig

h
t,
 

b
al

an
ce

d
 d

ie
t 

an
d
 p

hy
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

it
y.

h
e
al

th
, s

o
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

an
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

p
ro

vi
d
e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

s.
 

h
e
al

th
 li

fe
st

yl
e 

m
es

sa
ge

s 
ar

o
u
n
d
 b

e
in

g 
a 

h
e
al

th
y 

w
e
ig

h
t,
 e

at
in

g 
a 

b
al

an
ce

d
 d

ie
t 

an
d
 

in
cr

e
as

in
g 

p
hy

si
ca

l a
ct

iv
it
y.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t
:

se
rv

ic
es

 r
e
la

ti
n
g 

to
 f
o
o
d
, p

hy
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

it
y 

an
d
 w

e
ig

h
t 

m
an

ag
e
m

e
n
t.
 

es
p
e
ci

al
ly

 in
 t

ar
ge

t 
ar

e
as

.

ac
ti
vi

ty
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
w

it
h
in

 a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

d
ev

e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

ap
p
ro

ac
h
. 

Pa
ge

 1
1

Page 25



5
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 t
e
e
n

a
g
e
 c

o
n

ce
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 

A
cc

o
un

ta
bl

e 
D

ire
ct

o
rs

 a
nd

 K
ey

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
Le

ad
 a

nd
 c

o
nt

ri
bu

tin
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

R
o

se
m

a
r
y
 A

rc
h

e
r
 

C
h
ild

re
n 

Le
e
d
s 

In
te

gr
at

e
d
 S

tr
at

e
gi

c 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d
 –

 T
e
e
n
ag

e 
P
re

gn
an

cy
 a

n
d
 

P
ar

e
n
th

o
o
d
 B

o
ar

d

Ia
n

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
 /

 S
a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
H

e
al

th
y 

Le
e
d
s 

Jo
in

t 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d
 –

 P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g 

H
e
al

th
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g 
Su

b
gr

o
u
p

L
e

e
d

s 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

C
h
ild

re
n 

Le
e
d
s 

P
ar

tn
e
rs

N
H

S 
Le

e
d
s

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n 

Le
e
d
s

Le
e
d
s 

T
e
ac

h
in

g 
H

o
sp

it
al

s 
N

H
S 

T
ru

st

V
C

F 
se

ct
o
r 

th
ro

u
gh

 L
e
e
d
s 

V
o
ic

e 
H

e
al

th
 F

o
ru

m
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Le

ad
s

Sa
ra

h
 S

in
cl

ai
r, 

N
H

S 
Le

e
d
s/

 L
e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
V

ic
to

ri
a 

E
at

o
n
, N

H
S 

Le
e
d
s

Jo
h
n 

E
n
gl

an
d
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l

T
e

e
n

a
g
e

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 p
a
re

n
t
h

o
o

d
 s

t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0

8
 t

o
 2

0
11

S
e

x
u

a
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 s

t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0

9
 t

o
 2

0
1
4

A
lc

o
h
o
l S

tr
at

e
gy

 2
0
0
7
 t

o
 2

01
0

5
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 t
e
e
n

a
g
e
 c

o
n

ce
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 a

nd
 t
ar

ge
ts

M
ea

su
re

s 
o
f s

uc
ce

ss

N
I 

11
2

di
sa

gg
re

ga
te

d 
to

 f
oc

us
 o

n 
th

e 
6
 w

ar
ds

 in
 t

he
 c

it
y 

w
it
h 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

ra
te

s 
of

 c
on

ce
p
tio

n

B
a
se

li
n

e
 (

1
9

9
8

)
5
0
.4

 p
e
r 

10
0
0
 g

ir
ls
 a

ge
d
 1

5
-1

7

L
e

e
d

s 
2

0
0

6
 r

a
te

  
5
0
.7

 p
e
r 

10
0
0
 g

ir
ls
 a

ge
d
 1

5
-1

7

T
a
r
g
e

t 
(2

0
0

9
/1

0
)

T
ar

ge
t 

ra
te

 4
2
.7

 p
e
r 

1,
0
0
0
 g

ir
ls
 a

ge
d
 1

5
-1

7
B
as

ed
 o

n 
15

%
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 6

 w
ar

ds
 w

it
h 

hi
gh

es
t 

co
nc

ep
tio

n 
ra

te

V
it

a
l 

S
ig

n
s

w
it
h
in

 4
8
 h

o
u
rs

 o
f 
co

n
ta

ct
in

g 
a 

se
rv

ic
e

Pa
ge

 1
2

Page 26



5
. 
R

e
d

u
ce

 t
e
e
n

a
g
e
 c

o
n

ce
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 

H
ig

h 
Le

ve
l A

ct
io

ns
 2

0
09

 -
 2

01
2

h
ea

lt
h
.

L
iv

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 l

e
a
d

:

lin
ks

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 s

e
x
u
al

 h
e
al

th
 a

n
d
 t

e
e
n
ag

e 
p
re

gn
an

cy
 w

o
rk

. 

ag
e
n
ci

es
.

n
o
n
-e

d
u
ca

ti
o
n
al

 s
e
tt

in
gs

. 

se
rv

ic
es

.

e
m

p
o
w

e
ri

n
g 

th
e 

m
o
st

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 t
o
 s

e
x
u
al

 h
e
al

th
. 

A
fr

ic
an

 a
n
d
 A

fr
ic

an
 C

ar
ib

b
e
an

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s.
 

S
e

r
v
ic

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

se
:

ap
p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

to
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 d

iff
e
re

n
t 

b
ac

kg
ro

u
n
d
s.

p
o
st

 p
re

gn
an

cy
 o

r 
te

rm
in

at
io

n
s.

an
d
 S

T
I a

n
d
 H

IV
 t

es
ti
n
g,

 S
T

I t
re

at
m

e
n
t 

an
d
 s

e
x 

an
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
sh

ip
s 

e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t
:

Pa
ge

 1
3

Page 27



6
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 a

ss
e
ss

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 c

a
re

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

, 
fa

m
il
ie

s 
a
n

d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d

u
lt

s 

A
cc

o
un

ta
bl

e 
D

ire
ct

o
rs

 a
nd

 K
ey

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
Le

ad
 a

nd
 c

o
nt

ri
bu

tin
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

R
o

se
m

a
r
y
 A

rc
h

e
r

C
h
ild

re
n 

Le
e
d
s 

In
te

gr
at

e
d
 S

tr
at

e
gi

c 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d

S
a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
 /

 J
il

l 
C

o
p

e
la

n
d

L
e

e
d

s 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

N
H

S 
Le

e
d
s

Le
e
d
s 

P
ar

tn
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o
u
n
d
at

io
n 

N
H

S 
T
ru

st
Le

e
d
s 

T
e
ac

h
in

g 
H

o
sp

it
al

s 
N

H
S 

T
ru

st
V

C
F 

se
ct

o
r 

th
ro

u
gh

 L
e
e
d
s 

V
o
ic

e 
H

e
al

th
 F

o
ru

m
 

C
h
ild

re
n 

Le
e
d
s 

p
ar

tn
e
rs

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Le

ad
s

Ja
ck

ie
 W

ils
o
n
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
D

e
n
n
is
 H

o
lm

es
 L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
C

ar
o
l C

o
ch

ra
n
e
, N

H
S 

Le
e
d
s

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e

r
v
ic

e
 P

la
n

s
T

h
e

 L
e

e
d

s 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 P

la
n

 2
0

0
9

 t
o

 2
0
1
4

 
P

u
tt

in
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 a
t 

th
e
 C

e
n

tr
e
 (

L
e

a
r
n

in
g
 D

is
a
b

il
it

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
) 

2
0

0
9
 t

o
 2

0
1
2

C
ar

e
rs

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 f
o
r 

Le
e
d
s 

2
0
0
9

6
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 a

ss
e
ss

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 c

a
re

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

, 
fa

m
il
ie

s 
a
n

d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d

u
lt

s

In
di

ca
to

rs
 a

nd
 t
ar

ge
ts

M
ea

su
re

s 
o
f s

uc
ce

ss

N
I 

1
3
2

ad
u
lt
s)

 B
as

e
lin

e 
8
0
.9

%
 2

01
0
-1

1
 T

ar
ge

t 
9
0
.0

%
 2

0
07

N
I 

1
3
3

 T
im

e
lin

es
s 

o
f 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
p
ac

ka
ge

s 

B
as

e
lin

e 
8
5%

  
2
01

0
-1

1
 T

ar
ge

t 
95

.0
%

N
I 

6
3

 S
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
la

ce
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
lo

o
ke

d
 a

ft
e
r 

ch
ild

re
n
: l

e
n
gt

h 
o
f 
p
la

ce
m

e
n
t

B
as

e
lin

e 
70

.5
%

  
2
01

0
-1

1
 T

ar
ge

t 
8
0
.0

%

N
I 

6
6

 L
o
o
ke

d
 a

ft
e
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

ca
se

s 
w

h
ic

h 
w

e
re

 
re

vi
ew

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 r
e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

im
es

ca
le

s

B
as

e
lin

e 
6
0
.2

%
  

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 T

ar
ge

t 
9
0
.0

%

Pa
ge

 1
4

Page 28



6
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 a

ss
e
ss

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 c

a
re

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

, 
fa

m
il
ie

s 
a
n

d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d

u
lt

s 

H
ig

h 
Le

ve
l A

ct
io

ns
 2

0
09

 -
 2

01
2

L
iv

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 l

e
a
d

:
S

e
r
v
ic

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

se
:

p
ro

ce
ss

.

im
p
ro

ve
d
 a

ss
es

sm
e
n
t 

an
d
 c

ar
e 

m
an

ag
e
m

e
n
t.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t
:

Pa
ge

 1
5

Page 29



7.
 I

m
p

ro
v
e
 p

sy
c
h

o
lo

g
ic

a
l,
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
, 
a
n

d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

il
it

y
 s

e
r
v
ic

e
s 

fo
r 

th
o

se
 w

h
o

 n
e
e
d

 t
h

e
m

A
cc

o
un

ta
bl

e 
D

ire
ct

o
rs

 a
nd

 K
ey

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
Le

ad
 a

nd
 c

o
nt

ri
bu

tin
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

S
a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
 /

 J
il

l 
C

o
p

e
la

n
d

R
o

se
m

a
r
y
 A

rc
h

e
r

C
h
ild

re
n 

Le
e
d
s 

In
te

gr
at

e
d
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d

L
e

e
d

s 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

N
H

S 
Le

e
d
s

Le
e
d
s 

P
ar

tn
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o
u
n
d
at

io
n 

N
H

S 
T
ru

st
C

h
ild

re
n 

Le
e
d
s 

P
ar

tn
e
rs

Le
e
d
s 

C
o
lle

ge
s 

V
C

F 
se

ct
o
r 

th
ro

u
gh

 L
e
e
d
s 

V
o
ic

e 
H

e
al

th
 F

o
ru

m
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Le

ad
s

D
e
n
n
is
 H

o
lm

es
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
Jo

h
n 

Le
n
n
o
n
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
C

ar
o
l C

o
ch

ra
n
e
, N

H
S 

Le
e
d
s

Ja
ck

ie
 W

ils
o
n
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l

L
e

e
d

s 
M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 S

t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0

6
 t

o
 2

0
11

L
e

e
d

s 
E

m
o

ti
o

n
a
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 S

t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0

8
 t

o
 2

0
11

 (
C

Y
P

)
P

u
tt

in
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 a
t 

th
e
 C

e
n

tr
e
 (

L
e

a
r
n

in
g
 D

is
a
b

il
it

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
) 

2
0

0
9
 t

o
 2

0
1
2

S
o

c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 S

t
r
a
te

g
y
 (

in
 p

re
p

a
r
a
ti

o
n

)

C
ar

e
rs

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 f
o
r 

Le
e
d
s 

2
0
0
9

7.
 I

m
p

ro
v
e
 p

sy
c
h

o
lo

g
ic

a
l,
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
, 
a
n

d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

il
it

y
 s

e
r
v
ic

e
s 

fo
r 

th
o

se
 w

h
o

 n
e
e
d

 t
h

e
m

In
di

ca
to

rs
 a

nd
 t
ar

ge
ts

M
ea

su
re

s 
o
f s

uc
ce

ss

N
I 

5
8

 E
m

o
ti
o
n
al

 a
n
d
 b

e
h
av

io
u
ra

l h
ea

lt
h 

o
f 

N
I 

1
3

0
 S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

C
lie

n
ts

 r
e
ce

iv
in

g 
se

lf-
d
ir

e
ct

e
d
 

su
p
p
o
rt

 

T
ar

ge
t 

3
0
%

 t
ak

e 
u
p
 o

f 
se

lf 
d
ir

e
ct

e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
o
p
ti
o
n
s 

b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1
 

V
S

C
O

2
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h 

d
e
p
re

ss
io

n 
an

d
/o

r 
an

x
ie

ty
 d

is
o
rd

e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

re
 o

ff
e
re

d
 

p
sy

ch
o
lo

gi
ca

l t
h
e
ra

p
ie

s.

T
ar

ge
ts

 a
n
d
 m

ile
st

o
n
es

 t
o
 b

e 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
0
0
9

lo
ca

lly

p
ri

m
ar

y 
an

d
 s

e
co

n
d
ar

y 
ca

re

Pa
ge

 1
6

Page 30



7.
 I

m
p

ro
v
e
 p

sy
c
h

o
lo

g
ic

a
l,
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
, 
a
n

d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

il
it

y
 s

e
r
v
ic

e
s 

fo
r 

th
o

se
 w

h
o

 n
e
e
d

 t
h

e
m

H
ig

h 
Le

ve
l A

ct
io

ns
 2

0
09

 -
 2

01
2

L
iv

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 l

e
a
d

:

o
n 

u
se

 o
f 
se

gr
e
ga

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
gs

.

su
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 in

d
iv

id
u
al

is
e
d
 b

u
d
ge

ts
.

ci
ty

 c
e
n
tr

e 
ch

an
gi

n
g 

p
la

ce
s.

S
e

r
v
ic

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

se
:

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h 

le
ar

n
in

g 
d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

.

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
. 

tr
e
at

m
e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
s 

an
d
 d

ev
e
lo

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e 

m
o
d
e
l.

a 
ra

n
ge

 o
f 
h
o
u
si

n
g 

o
p
ti
o
n
s 

in
 lo

ca
l c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 
an

d
 t

ra
n
sf

o
rm

in
g 

ca
re

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
se

rv
ic

es
.

p
la

ce
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0
.

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h 

co
m

m
o
n 

m
e
n
ta

l h
e
al

th
 p

ro
b
le

m
s.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t
:

Pa
ge

 1
7

Page 31



8
. 
In

c
re

a
se

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 h
e
lp

e
d

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h

o
m

e

A
cc

o
un

ta
bl

e 
D

ire
ct

o
rs

 a
nd

 K
ey

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
Le

ad
 a

nd
 c

o
nt

ri
bu

tin
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

S
a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
 /

 J
il

l 
C

o
p

e
la

n
d

S
a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
 /

 P
h

il
o

m
e

n
a
 C

o
r
r
ig

a
n

L
e

e
d

s 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

Le
e
d
s 

P
C

T
Le

e
d
s 

P
ar

tn
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o
u
n
d
at

io
n 

N
H

S 
T
ru

st
V

C
FS

 b
o
d
ie

s 
th

ro
u
gh

 L
e
e
d
s 

V
o
ic

e 
H

e
al

th
 F

o
ru

m
 

W
es

t 
Y
o
rk

sh
ir

e 
Fi

re
 a

n
d
 R

es
cu

e 
Se

rv
ic

e
Le

e
d
s 

C
o
lle

ge
s

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Le

ad
s

D
e
n
n
is
 H

o
lm

es
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
Jo

h
n 

Le
n
n
o
n
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
C

ar
o
l C

o
ch

ra
n
e
, N

H
S 

Le
e
d
s

Ja
ck

ie
 W

ils
o
n
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l

L
e

e
d

s 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 S

t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0

5
 t

o
 2

0
1
0

S
u

p
p

o
r
ti

n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 S
t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0

5
 t

o
 2

0
1
0

C
a
re

r
s 

S
t
r
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r
 L

e
e

d
s 

2
0

0
9

 t
o

 2
0
1
2

O
ld

e
r
 B

e
tt

e
r
 S

t
r
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0

6
 t

o
 2

0
11

8
. 
In

c
re

a
se

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 h
e
lp

e
d

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h

o
m

e

In
di

ca
to

rs
 a

nd
 t
ar

ge
ts

M
ea

su
re

s 
o
f s

uc
ce

ss

N
I 

1
4
1

 P
e
rc

e
n
ta

ge
 o

f 
vu

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
ch

ie
vi

n
g 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

liv
in

g
B
as

e
lin

e 
2
0
07

-8
  

5
8
.6

%
T
ar

ge
ts

 2
01

0
-1

1
  

76
%

N
I 

1
3
9

 T
h
e 

e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
ce

iv
e 

su
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
ey

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 li

ve
 in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y 

at
 h

o
m

e 
B
as

e
lin

e 
an

d
 t

ar
ge

t 
to

 b
e 

se
t 

fr
o
m

 P
la

ce
 S

u
rv

ey

N
I 

1
3
6

 P
e
o
p
le

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 li

ve
 in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y 

T
ar

ge
t 

6
6%

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

Pa
ge

 1
8

Page 32



8
. 
In

c
re

a
se

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 h
e
lp

e
d

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h

o
m

e

H
ig

h 
Le

ve
l A

ct
io

ns
 2

0
09

 -
 2

01
2

d
is

ab
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
ce

, i
n
cl

u
si

o
n 

an
d
 e

q
u
al

it
y.

p
o
ss

ib
le

.

L
iv

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 l

e
a
d

:

w
h
o
 a

re
 in

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

, e
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 o

r 
in

 v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

ct
iv

it
y.

S
e

r
v
ic

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

se
:

te
le

ca
re

. 

th
e 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

Li
vi

n
g 

P
ro

je
ct

.

ca
re

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
e
d
s.

 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
d
iff

e
re

n
t 

gr
o
u
p
s 

ar
e 

o
ve

rc
o
m

e
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t
:

te
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s.

Pa
ge

 1
9

Page 33



9
. 
 I

n
c
re

a
se

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 r
e
ce

ip
t 

o
f 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

e
r
v
ic

e
s 

e
n

jo
y
in

g
 c

h
o

ic
e
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e
r 

th
e
ir

 
d

a
il
y
 l
iv

e
s

A
cc

o
un

ta
bl

e 
D

ire
ct

o
rs

 a
nd

 K
ey

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
Le

ad
 a

nd
 c

o
nt

ri
bu

tin
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

S
a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
 /

 J
il

l 
C

o
p

e
la

n
d

S
a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
 /

 P
h

il
o

m
e

n
a
 C

o
r
r
ig

a
n

L
e

e
d

s 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

N
H

S 
Le

e
d
s

V
C

FS
 b

o
d
ie

s 
th

ro
u
gh

 L
e
e
d
s 

V
o
ic

e 
H

e
al

th
 F

o
ru

m
 a

n
d
 L

e
ar

n
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 F
o
ru

m
, O

ld
e
r 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Le

ad
s

D
e
n
n
is
 H

o
lm

es
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
Jo

h
n 

Le
n
n
o
n
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
C

ar
o
l C

o
ch

ra
n
e
, N

H
S 

Le
e
d
s

Ja
ck

ie
 W

ils
o
n
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 B
u

si
n

e
ss

 P
la

n
s

O
ld

e
r
 B

e
tt

e
r
 

C
ar

e
rs

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 f
o
r 

Le
e
d
s 

2
0
0
9
 t

o
 2

01
2

9
. 
 I

n
c
re

a
se

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 r
e
ce

ip
t 

o
f 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

e
r
v
ic

e
s 

e
n

jo
y
in

g
 c

h
o

ic
e
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e
r 

th
e
ir

 
d

a
il
y
 l
iv

e
s

In
di

ca
to

rs
 a

nd
 t
ar

ge
ts

M
ea

su
re

s 
o
f s

uc
ce

ss

N
I 

1
3

0
 S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

C
lie

n
ts

 r
e
ce

iv
in

g 
se

lf-
d
ir

e
ct

e
d
 

su
p
p
o
rt

 

T
ar

ge
t 

3
0
%

 t
ak

e 
u
p
 o

f 
se

lf 
d
ir

e
ct

e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
o
p
ti
o
n
s 

b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1
 

Pa
ge

 2
0

Page 34



9
. 
 I

n
c
re

a
se

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 r
e
ce

ip
t 

o
f 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

e
r
v
ic

e
s 

e
n

jo
y
in

g
 c

h
o

ic
e
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e
r 

th
e
ir

 
d

a
il
y
 l
iv

e
s

H
ig

h 
Le

ve
l A

ct
io

ns
 2

0
09

 -
 2

01
2

L
iv

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 l

e
a
d

:

p
o
si

ti
ve

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
o
ld

 a
ge

 a
n
d
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

.

gr
o
u
p
s.

S
e

r
v
ic

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

se
:

an
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 c
h
o
ic

e 
an

d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.

ti
m

es
.

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
s 

an
d
 a

ge
n
ci

es
.

co
n
d
it
io

n
s.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t
:

p
ro

ce
ss

es
 w

h
ic

h 
af

fe
ct

 t
h
e
ir
 li

ve
s.

in
vo

lv
e
d
 a

s 
ci

ti
ze

n
s 

o
f 
th

e 
ci

ty
.

Pa
ge

 2
1

Page 35



1
0
. 
 I

m
p

ro
v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s 

th
ro

u
g
h

 b
e
tt

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

, 
re

co
g
n

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
e
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 r

is
k

A
cc

o
un

ta
bl

e 
D

ire
ct

o
rs

 a
nd

 K
ey

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
Le

ad
 a

nd
 c

o
nt

ri
bu

tin
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

R
o

se
m

a
r
y
 A

rc
h

e
r

C
h
ild

re
n 

Le
e
d
s 

In
te

gr
at

e
d
 S

tr
at

e
gi

c 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d
 -

 C
h
ild

re
n 

Le
e
d
s 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

d
in

g 
B

o
ar

d

S
a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
 /

 J
il

l 
C

o
p

e
la

n
d

H
e
al

th
y 

Le
e
d
s 

Jo
in

t 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d
 -

A
d
u
lt
 S

af
eg

u
ar

d
in

g 
B

o
ar

d

L
e

e
d

s 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n 

Le
e
d
s

N
H

S 
Le

e
d
s

C
h
ild

re
n 

Le
e
d
s 

P
ar

tn
e
rs

V
C

FS
 b

o
d
ie

s 
th

ro
u
gh

 L
e
e
d
s 

V
o
ic

e 
C

Y
P
 F

o
ru

m
 a

n
d
 H

e
al

th
 F

o
ru

m
Le

e
d
s 

C
o
lle

ge
s

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Le

ad
s

D
e
n
n
is
 H

o
lm

es
, L

e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
Sa

ra
h
 S

in
cl

ai
r, 

N
H

S 
Le

e
d
s/

 L
e
e
d
s 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l
A

d
u

lt
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
r
d

in
g
 S

t
r
a
te

g
y

C
ar

e
rs

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 f
o
r 

Le
e
d
s 

2
0
0
9
 t

o
 2

01
2

1
0
. 
 I

m
p

ro
v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s 

th
ro

u
g
h

 b
e
tt

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

, 
re

co
g
n

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
e
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 r

is
k

In
di

ca
to

rs
 a

nd
 t
ar

ge
ts

M
ea

su
re

s 
o
f s

uc
ce

ss

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
ch

ild
re

n 
lo

o
ke

d
 a

ft
e
r 

(e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
a 

ra
te

 p
er

 1
0
,0

0
0
 e

xc
lu

di
ng

 u
na

cc
om

p
an

ie
d 

as
yl

um
 

se
ek

er
s)

B
as

e
lin

e 
83

.6
 T

ar
ge

t 
2
0
2
0
-1

1
 5

9.
1

E
st

im
at

e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
st

af
f 
e
m

p
lo

ye
d
 b

y 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

se
ct

o
r 

re
gi

st
e
re

d
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 

th
e 

co
u
n
ci

l a
re

a 
th

at
 h

av
e 

h
ad

 s
o
m

e 
tr

ai
n
in

g 
o
n 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

o
f 
ad

u
lt
s 

w
h
o
se

 c
ir
cu

m
st

an
ce

s 
m

ak
e 

th
e
m

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 t
h
at

 is
 e

it
h
e
r 

fu
n
d
e
d
 o

r 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n
e
d
 b

y 
LC

C
 -

 T
ar

ge
t 

to
 b

e 
se

t 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ca
lc

u
la

ti
o
n 

o
f 
b
as

e
lin

e

Pa
ge

 2
2

Page 36



1
0
. 
 I

m
p

ro
v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s 

th
ro

u
g
h

 b
e
tt

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

, 
re

co
g
n

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
e
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 r

is
k

H
ig

h 
Le

ve
l A

ct
io

ns
 2

0
09

 -
 2

01
2

m
ar

ke
ti
n
g.

L
iv

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 l

e
a
d

:

S
e

r
v
ic

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

se
:

an
d
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
ce

s 
o
f 
al

l s
ta

ke
h
o
ld

e
rs

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t
:

Pa
ge

 2
3

Page 37



R
e
la

te
d

 p
la

n
s

N
H

S 
Le

ed
s 

St
ra

te
gy

 2
0
0
8
 t

o
 2

0
1
1

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
7
0

Le
ed

s 
A

lc
o
ho

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
2
0
0
7
 t

o
 2

0
1
0

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
3
8

O
ld

er
 B

et
te

r 
2
0
0
6
 t

o
 2

0
1
1

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
5
8

Le
ed

s 
H

o
us

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 2
0
0
9
 t

o
 2

0
1
2

Su
p
p
o
rt

in
g 

Pe
o
p
le

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
2
0
0
5
 t

o
 2

0
1
0

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
5
6

Sa
fe

r 
Le

ed
s 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p
 P

la
n 

2
0
0
8
 t

o
 2

0
1
1

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
6
0

A
ct

iv
e 

Le
ed

s: 
a 

H
ea

lth
y 

C
ity

 2
0
0
8
 t

o
 2

0
1
2

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
3
2

Le
ed

s 
Fo

o
d
 M

at
te

rs
 2

0
0
6
 t

o
 2

0
1
0

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
4
6

Le
ed

s 
To

b
ac

co
 C

o
n
tr

o
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

2
0
0
6
 t

o
 2

0
1
0

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
6
8

In
fa

nt
 M

o
rt

al
ity

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
2
0
0
9

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
4
8

A
cc

id
en

t 
P
re

ve
n
tio

n 
Fr

am
ew

o
rk

 2
0
0
8
 t

o
 2

0
1
1

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
3
0

Se
lf 

C
ar

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 2

0
0
9

Le
ed

s 
A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 W
ar

m
th

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
2
0
0
7
 t

o
 2

0
1
6

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
3
4

Le
ed

s 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

n
cl

us
io

n 
P
ro

je
ct

a

Ta
ki

n
g 

th
e 

Le
ad

 2
0
0
6
 t

o
 2

0
1
2

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
6
4

Le
ed

s 
C

hi
ld

ho
o
d
 O

b
es

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

2
0
0
6
 t

o
 2

0
1
6

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
4
2

Le
ed

s 
Sc

ho
o
l M

ea
ls
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
5
4

A
d
ul

t 
O

b
es

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y

Lo
ca

l a
n
d
 W

es
t Y

o
rk

sh
ir
e 

Tr
an

sp
o
rt

 P
la

ns
 a

nd
 C

yc
lin

g 
St

ra
te

gy
 -

 v
ar

io
u
s

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/t

ra
ns

p
o
rt

/p
ag

e
.a

sp
x?

id
=

2
4
1
0

Te
en

ag
e 

P
re

gn
an

cy
 a

nd
 P

ar
en

th
o
o
d
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

2
0
0
8
 t

o
 2

0
1
1

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
6
6

Se
xu

al
 H

ea
lth

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
2
0
0
9
 t

o
 2

0
1
4

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
4
0

Le
ed

s 
So

ci
al

 In
cl

us
io

n 
an

d
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

2
0
0
6
 t

o
 2

0
1
1

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
6
2

Le
ed

s 
E
m

o
tio

na
l H

ea
lth

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
2
0
0
8
 t

o
 2

0
1
1

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
4
4

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
3
9
5
2

A
d
ul

t 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
d
in

g 
St

ra
te

gy

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.le
ed

si
ni

ti
at

iv
e
.o

rg
/W

o
rk

A
re

a/
sh

o
w

co
nt

en
t.a

sp
x?

id
=

1
4
1
6
0

Pa
ge

 2
4

Page 38



Page 39



$ESIGN฀FOR฀(EALTH฀s฀2EF�฀�������

Page 40



W
e 

w
an

t 
ev

er
y 

yo
u
n
g 

p
er

so
n
 g

ro
w

in
g 

u
p
 i

n
 

Le
ed

s 
to

 h
av

e 
th

e 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
an

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

to
 r

ea
ch

 t
he

ir
 fu

ll 
p
o
te

n
ti
al

. A
ch

ie
vi

n
g 

th
is
 m

ea
n
s 

gi
vi

ng
 t

he
m

 a
ll 

th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 a
n
d
 h

el
p
 t

h
ey

 n
ee

d
 

to
 m

ak
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 c
h
o
ic

es
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
ei

r 
liv

es
 a

n
d
 

th
ei

r 
ac

tio
ns

.

N
o
w

he
re

 i
s 

th
is
 m

o
re

 i
m

p
o
rt

an
t 

fo
r 

u
s 

th
an

 i
n
 

o
ur

 e
ffo

rt
s 

to
 r

ed
u
ce

 t
h
e 

nu
m

b
er

 o
f 

te
en

ag
e 

co
nc

ep
tio

ns
. T

hi
s 

is
 a

 m
aj

o
r 

ch
al

le
n
ge

, b
u
t 

o
n
e 

w
e 

m
us

t 
m

ee
t, 

b
ec

au
se

 
w

e 
kn

o
w

 
ab

o
u
t 

th
e 

im
p
ac

t 
th

at
 t

ee
n
ag

e 
p
re

gn
an

cy
 a

n
d
 p

ar
en

th
o
o
d
 

ca
n 

ha
ve

 o
n 

yo
u
n
g 

liv
es

. 
O

f 
co

u
rs

e 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

su
cc

es
sf

u
l 

te
en

ag
e 

p
ar

en
ts

 
w

h
o
 

al
so

 
re

al
is
e 

th
ei

r 
in

d
iv

id
ua

l p
o
te

n
ti
al

, b
u
t 

ev
id

en
ce

 s
h
o
w

s 
u
s 

th
at

 t
o
o
 o

ft
en

 h
av

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n
 a

t 
a 

yo
u
n
g 

ag
e 

ed
uc

at
io

n
 p

ro
sp

ec
ts

. 
It
 a

ffe
ct

s 
th

e 
h
ea

lt
h
 a

n
d
 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f 
b
o
th

 m
o
th

er
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

 –
 t

ee
n
ag

e 

m
o
th

er
s 

ar
e 

th
re

e 
ti
m

es
 m

o
re

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

p
o
st

-n
at

al
 d

ep
re

ss
io

n
 t

h
an

 o
ld

er
 m

o
th

er
s 

an
d
 

ar
e 

m
o
re

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 s

m
o
ke

 d
u
ri
n
g 

p
re

gn
an

cy
. T

h
e 

in
fa

nt
 m

o
rt

al
ity

 r
at

e 
fo

r 
b
ab

ie
s 

b
o
rn

 t
o
 t

ee
n
ag

e 

m
o
th

er
s 

is
 
6
0
%

 
h
ig

h
er

 
th

en
 
fo

r 
b
ab

ie
s 

b
o
rn

 

to
 o

ld
er

 m
o
th

er
s. 

 N
o
t 

o
n
ly

 t
h
is
, 
b
u
t 

w
e 

al
so

 

kn
o
w

 a
b
o
ut

 t
he

 s
tr

o
n
g 

lin
ks

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

ee
n
ag

e 

p
re

gn
an

cy
 
an

d
 
h
ig

h
 
le

ve
ls
 
o
f 

d
ep

ri
va

ti
o
n
. 

A
s 

su
ch

, 
th

e 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 
an

d
 s

o
ci

al
 e

xc
lu

si
o
n
 t

h
at

 

te
en

ag
e 

m
o
th

er
s 

fa
ce

 o
ft
en

 g
et

s 
p
as

se
d
 f

ro
m

 

o
ne

 g
en

er
at

io
n 

to
 t

h
e 

n
ex

t.

co
m

p
le

x 
is
su

e 
in

 L
ee

d
s 

an
d
 w

e 
ar

e 
d
et

er
m

in
ed

 

to
 a

d
d
re

ss
 it

. R
ed

u
ci

n
g 

te
en

ag
e 

co
n
ce

p
ti
o
n
s 

h
as

 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
P
la

n 
an

d
 

o
u
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 

an
d
 
Yo

u
n
g 

o
n 

us
 a

ll 
to

 w
o
rk

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

n
d
 p

la
y 

o
u
r 
p
ar

t 

in
 u

nd
er

st
an

d
in

g 
an

d
 a

d
d
re

ss
in

g 
th

e 
ch

al
le

n
ge

. 

O
ur

 
Te

en
ag

e 
P
re

gn
an

cy
 

St
ra

te
gy

 
u
n
d
er

p
in

s 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 d

o
 t

h
at

. I
t 

lin
ks

 t
o
 o

th
er

 r
el

ev
an

t 
ke

y 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

an
d
 

re
co

gn
is
es

 
th

e 
d
ir
ec

ti
o
n
 

o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 n
ee

d
s 

to
 m

o
ve

 i
n
 t

o
 e

n
ga

ge
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 

w
it
h
 t

h
o
se

 a
ffe

ct
ed

.  
It
 s

et
s 

th
e 

to
n
e 

fo
r 

a 
m

o
re

 

so
p
h
is
ti
ca

te
d
, 

co
lle

ct
iv

e 
fo

cu
s 

o
n
 
gu

id
in

g 
an

d
 

su
p
p
o
rt

in
g 

o
u
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
eo

p
le

.  
W

e 
w

ill
 a

d
d
re

ss
 

th
is
 c

h
al

le
n
ge

 b
y 

u
si
n
g 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
co

m
m

is
si
o
n
in

g;
 

b
y 

st
re

n
gt

h
en

in
g 

lo
ca

lit
y 

w
o
rk

in
g 

an
d
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 

se
rv

ic
e 

d
el

iv
er

y;
 

an
d
 

b
y 

d
ev

el
o
p
in

g 
m

o
re

 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 a

n
d
 p

er
so

n
al

is
ed

 f
ro

n
t 

lin
e 

re
sp

o
n
se

.

W
e 

h
av

e 
a 

va
ri
et

y 
o
f 

p
o
si
ti
ve

 
d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
ts

 

th
at

 w
e 

ca
n
 b

u
ild

 o
n
: e

xa
m

p
le

s 
o
f 

go
o
d
 w

o
rk

 

in
 l

o
ca

l 
co

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s; 
m

o
re

 i
nv

o
lv

em
en

t 
fr

o
m

 

sc
h
o
o
ls
, 
w

h
o
 r

ec
o
gn

is
e 

th
ei

r 
ro

le
 a

n
d
 i

m
p
ac

t; 

re
ce

n
tly

 
co

m
m

is
si
o
n
ed

 
in

n
o
va

ti
ve

 
p
ro

je
ct

s 
to

 

ta
rg

et
 t

h
e 

m
o
st

 v
u
ln

er
ab

le
 g

ro
u
p
s 

an
d
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g 

th
e 

h
ea

rt
 o

f 
gu

id
in

g 
o
u
t 

w
o
rk

. 
N

o
w

 w
e 

m
u
st

 

b
ri
n
g 

al
l 
th

is
 t

o
ge

th
er

 a
n
d
 t

ak
e 

fu
rt

h
er

 s
te

p
s 

so
 

th
at

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n
, 
p
o
si
ti
ve

 a
ct

io
n
 a

n
d
 s

h
ar

ed
 

re
sp

o
n
si
b
ili

ty
 s

h
ap

es
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 in
 t

h
is
 a

re
a.

A
s 

o
n
e 

o
f 

o
u
r 

m
o
st

 i
m

p
o
rt

an
t 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
es

, 
w

e 

ca
n
 
m

o
ve

 
fo

rw
ar

d
 
kn

o
w

in
g 

th
at

 
d
o
in

g 
m

o
re

 

to
 r

ed
u
ce

 t
ee

n
ag

e 
co

n
ce

p
ti
o
n
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
a 

re
al

 

an
d
 la

st
in

g 
p
o
si
ti
ve

 im
p
ac

t 
o
n
 m

an
y, 

m
an

y 
yo

u
n
g 

R
o

se
m

a
r
y
 A

rc
h

e
r

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 
C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r
 S

te
w

a
rt

 G
o

lt
o

n

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
M

em
be

r 
fo

r 
C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

T
h
is

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
w

as
 d

ev
el

o
p
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Te
en

ag
e 

P
re

gn
an

cy
 a

n
d
 P

ar
en

th
o
o
d
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

o
ar

d
 (

T
P
P
P
B

). 

T
h
e 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 c
o
n
si

st
s 

o
f 
re

p
re

se
n
ta

ti
ve

s 
fr

o
m

:

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
Le

ed
s

Le
ed

s 
C

ar
ee

rs

Le
ed

s 
C

ity
 C

o
un

ci
l

N
H

S 
Le

ed
s

Le
ed

s 
Te

ac
hi

ng
 H

o
sp

ita
ls
 T

ru
st

V
o
lu

nt
ar

y 
C

o
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 F

ai
th

 S
ec

to
r

Yo
ut

h 
Se

xu
al

 H
ea

lth
 A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

 (
Y

SH
A

G
) 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 L
e

e
d

s

6
th
 F

lo
o
r 

Ea
st

, M
er

ri
o
n 

H
o
us

e

M
er

ri
o
n 

C
en

tr
e
,

Le
ed

s

LS
2
 8

ET

P
ho

ne
: 0

1
1
3
 3

9
5
0
2
4
7

Em
ai

l: 
ch

ild
re

nl
ee

d
s@

le
ed

s.
go

v.
uk

W
eb

si
te

: w
w

w
.c

hi
ld

re
nl

ee
d
s.
go

v.
uk

Lo
ca

l p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
m

ak
in

g 
th

in
gs

 h
ap

p
en

1

Page 41



Le
ed

s 
M

en
ta

l 
H

ea
lt
h
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

(2
0
0
6
-2

0
1
1
)6

T
he

ef
fe

ct
s 

o
f 

te
en

ag
e 

p
re

gn
an

cy
 

an
d
 

b
ec

o
m

in
g 

a 
te

en
 

p
ar

en
t 

ca
n
 

h
av

e 
a 

p
ro

fo
u
nd

 
ef

fe
ct

 
o
n
 

m
en

ta
l 

h
ea

lt
h
 

an
d
 

w
el

l-
b
ei

ng
.

T
he

 
Le

ed
s 

H
ea

lt
h
 

an
d
 

W
el

l-
b
ei

n
g 

p
la

n
 

(2
0
0
5
-2

0
0
8
)7

. T
h
e 

h
ea

lt
hy

 L
ee

d
s 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 

re
co

gn
is
es

 
se

xu
al

 
ill

 
h
ea

lt
h
 
as

 
an

 
ar

ea
 
fo

r 

im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

as
 p

ar
t 

o
f 
th

e 
Im

p
ro

vi
n
g 

Le
ed

s 

in
iti

at
iv

e
. 

Le
ed

s 
Fa

m
ily

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 P

ar
en

ti
n
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 

(2
0
0
7
)8

W
hi

ls
t 

so
m

e 
yo

u
n
g 

w
o
m

en
 m

ak
e 

an
 i
n
fo

rm
ed

 

ch
o
ic

e 
to

 
b
ec

o
m

e 
p
re

gn
an

t, 
th

e 
m

aj
o
ri
ty

 
o
f 

un
d
er

 
1
8
 

co
n
ce

p
ti
o
n
s 

ar
e 

u
n
in

te
n
d
ed

 
an

d
 

ar
o
un

d
 a

 h
al

f 
le

ad
 t

o
 a

b
o
rt

io
n
 1

.

Te
en

ag
e 

p
re

gn
an

cy
 a

n
d
 p

ar
en

th
o
o
d
 c

an
 h

av
e 

an
d
 e

co
n
o
m

ic
 
h
ea

lt
h
 
an

d
 w

el
l-
b
ei

n
g.
 T

ee
n
ag

e 

an
d
 a

re
 m

o
re

 li
ke

ly
 t
o
 b

ri
n
g 

u
p
 t
h
ei

r 
ch

ild
 a

s 
lo

n
e 

p
ar

en
ts

 o
r 

in
 p

o
ve

rt
y. 

 T
h
e 

in
fa

n
t 

m
o
rt

al
it
y 

ra
te

 

fo
r b

ab
ie

s 
b
o
rn

 to
 te

en
ag

e 
m

o
th

er
s 
is
 6

0
 p

er
 c

en
t 

hi
gh

er
 t

h
an

 f
o
r 

b
ab

ie
s 

b
o
rn

 t
o
 o

ld
er

 m
o
th

er
s.  

Te
en

ag
e 

m
o
th

er
s 

ar
e 

th
re

e 
ti
m

es
 m

o
re

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 s

m
o
ke

 d
ur

in
g 

p
re

gn
an

cy
 t

h
an

 o
ld

er
 m

o
th

er
s 

an
d
 a

re
 l
es

s 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

re
as

tf
ee

d
, b

o
th

 o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 

ha
ve

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
he

al
th

 c
o
n
se

q
u
en

ce
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

ch
ild

. 

Te
en

ag
e 

m
o
th

er
s 

h
av

e 
th

re
e 

ti
m

es
 t

h
e 

ra
te

 o
f 

p
o
st

-n
at

al
 d

ep
re

ss
io

n
 o

f 
o
ld

er
 m

o
th

er
s 

an
d
 a

 

hi
gh

er
 r

is
k 

o
f p

o
o
r 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt
h
 fo

r 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s 

af
te

r 
th

e 
b
ir

th
. 

C
h
ild

re
n
 
o
f 

te
en

ag
e 

m
o
th

er
s 

ar
e 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 a
t 

in
cr

ea
se

d
 r

is
k 

o
f 

p
o
ve

rt
y, 

lo
w

 

ed
uc

at
io

n
al

 a
tt

ai
n
m

en
t, 

p
o
o
r 

h
o
u
si
n
g 

an
d
 p

o
o
r 

he
al

th
 a

n
d
 h

av
e 

lo
w

er
 r

at
es

 o
f e

co
n
o
m

ic
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

in
 
ad

ul
t 

lif
e
. 

R
at

es
 
o
f 

te
en

ag
e 

p
re

gn
an

cy
 
ar

e 

hi
gh

es
t 

am
o
ng

 
d
ep

ri
ve

d
 
co

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s, 
so

 
th

e 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

co
ns

eq
u
en

ce
s 

o
f 

te
en

ag
e 

p
re

gn
an

cy
 

ar
e 

d
is
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
at

el
y 

co
n
ce

n
tr

at
ed

 
am

o
n
g 

th
o
se

 w
h
o
 a

re
 a

lr
ea

d
y 

d
is
ad

va
n
ta

ge
d
 1

.

Te
en

ag
e 

p
re

gn
an

cy
 

al
so

 
h
ea

vi
ly

 
b
u
rd

en
s 

th
e 

N
H

S 
an

d
 w

id
er

 p
u
b
lic

 h
ea

lt
h
 s

er
vi

ce
s, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e 

co
st

 t
o
 t

h
e 

N
H

S 
al

o
n
e 

es
ti
m

at
ed

 t
o
 b

e 
£
6
3
 

m
ill

io
n
 a

 y
ea

r. 
 T

ee
n
ag

e 
m

o
th

er
s 

ar
e 

m
o
re

 li
ke

ly
 

to
 r

eq
u
ir
e 

ta
rg

et
ed

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 

se
rv

ic
es

, f
o
r 

ex
am

p
le

 t
o
 h

el
p
 t

h
em

 r
e-

en
ga

ge
 in

 

ed
u
ca

ti
o
n
, e

m
p
lo

ym
en

t 
an

d
 t
ra

in
in

g 
o
r 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

w
h
o
 
d
o
 
n
o
t 

en
te

r 
em

p
lo

ym
en

t 
in

 
th

e 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

b
ir

th
 c

an
 t
o
ta

l b
et

w
ee

n
 £

1
9
,0

0
0
 

an
d
 £

2
5
,0

0
0
 o

ve
r 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

1
.

R
ed

u
ci

n
g 

te
en

ag
e 

co
n
ce

p
tio

n
s 

is
 

an
 

im
p
o
rt

an
t 

n
at

io
n
al

 
an

d
 

lo
ca

l p
ri
o
ri
ty

. 

T
h
er

e 
is
 

a 
n
at

io
n
al

 
ta

rg
et

 
to

 
re

d
u
ce

 
te

en
ag

e 
co

n
ce

p
tio

n
s 

(1
5
-1

7
 
ye

ar
 
o
ld

s)
 
b
y 

5
0
%

 
b
y 

2
0
1
0
 (

fr
o
m

 1
9
9
8
 b

as
el

in
e)

. 

T
h
e 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
Le

ed
s 
is
 to

 r
ed

u
ce

 
te

en
ag

e 
co

n
ce

p
ti
o
n
s 

b
y 

5
5
%

 b
y 

2
0
1
0
.

T
he

re
 
is
 
an

 
ad

d
iti

o
na

l 
na

tio
na

l
ta

rg
et

 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 

th
e 

p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
o
f 

yo
un

g 
p
ar

en
ts

 
in

to
 e

d
uc

at
io

n,
 e

m
p
lo

ym
en

t 
an

d
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 t
o
 6

0
%

 b
y 

2
0
1
0

Te
en

ag
e 

p
re

gn
an

cy
 i
s 

a 
co

m
p
le

x 
is
su

e
, a

ffe
ct

ed
 

an
d
 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p
s 

an
d
 

th
ei

r 
ac

ce
ss

 
to

 
ad

vi
ce

 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l 

at
ta

in
m

en
t, 

p
ar

en
ta

l, 
cu

ltu
ra

l, 
p
ee

r 

W
hi

ls
t 

so
m

e 
te

en
ag

er
s 

ca
n

b
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

su
p
p
o
rt

, i
t 

re
m

ai
ns

 t
ha

t 
te

en
ag

e 
p
re

gn
an

cy
 c

an
 

ha
ve

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 o

n 
th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 

w
el

l-
b
ei

ng
 o

f 
b
o
th

 t
he

 y
o
un

g 
w

o
m

an
 a

nd
 t

he
 

ch
ild

1
. 

Yo
un

g 
p
re

gn
an

t 
w

o
m

en
 

an
d
 

te
en

ag
e 

m
ai

ns
tr

ea
m

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d
 a

re
 a

t 
gr

ea
te

r 
ri
sk

 o
f 

is
o
la

tio
n 

an
d
 h

ea
lth

 in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s.

In
 o

rd
er

 t
o
 d

ri
ve

 d
o
w

n 
th

e 
un

d
er

-1
8
 c

o
nc

ep
tio

n 

ra
te

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
d
e 

ap
p
ro

p
ri
at

e 
su

p
p
o
rt

 fo
r t

ee
na

ge
 

p
ar

en
ts

, t
he

re
 is

 a
 n

ee
d
 t
o
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
cl

ea
r 

vi
si
o
n 

fo
r 

te
en

ag
e 

p
re

gn
an

cy
 in

 L
ee

d
s 

w
ith

in
 t
he

 w
id

er
 

p
ro

vi
d
es

 t
ha

t 
vi

si
o
n 

an
d
 b

ui
ld

s 
o
n 

th
e 

ex
ce

lle
nt

 

w
o
rk

 a
lr
ea

d
y 

go
in

g 
o
n 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 c

ity
 t

o
 r

ed
uc

e 

te
en

ag
e 

co
nc

ep
tio

ns
 a

nd
 s
up

p
o
rt

 y
o
un

g 
p
ar

en
ts

. 

It
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

d
ev

el
o
p
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 s
up

p
o
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

N
at

io
na

l 
Su

p
p
o
rt

 T
ea

m
 f

o
r 

Te
en

ag
e 

P
re

gn
an

cy
, 

ke
y 

st
ak

eh
o
ld

er
s 

an
d
 m

o
st

 i
m

p
o
rt

an
tly

 y
o
un

g 

p
eo

p
le

.

T
o

 
e

m
p

o
w

e
r
 
a
n

d
 
su

p
p

o
rt

 
y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 t
o

 m
a
k

e
 in

fo
r
m

e
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s 

to
 

p
re

v
e

n
t 

te
e

n
a
g
e

 
c
o

n
c
e

p
ti

o
n

s 

a
n

d
 m

a
k

e
 h

e
a
lt

h
y
 l

if
e

 c
h

o
ic

e
s.

th
e
ir

 p
o

te
n

ti
a
l.

T
hi

s 
vi

si
o
n 

ne
ed

s 
to

 
b
e 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 

in
to

 
al

l 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 w

it
h 

su
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
m

o
ng

 l
o
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. T

hi
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 

sh
o
ul

d
 n

o
t 

b
e 

us
ed

 i
n 

is
o
la

tio
n 

b
ut

 s
ho

ul
d
 l
in

k 

w
ith

 
o
th

er
 

cr
o
ss

-c
ut

tin
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
. 

O
n
ly

 
b
y 

w
o
rk

in
g 

to
ge

th
er

 
ca

n 
w

e 
ac

hi
ev

e 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 

ta
rg

et
s 

an
d
 i

m
p
ro

ve
 t

he
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 w
el

l-
b
ei

ng
 

o
f 
o
ur

 y
o
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 a
nd

 f
ut

ur
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n
s. 

Le
ed

s 
(2

0
0
6
-2

0
0
9
)2

 F
o
r 

al
l 
yo

un
g 

p
eo

p
le

 t
o
 

re
ac

h 
th

ei
r 

p
o
te

nt
ia

l, 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 
m

us
t 

w
o
rk

 

to
ge

th
er

 t
o
 r

ai
se

 t
he

 a
sp

ir
at

io
ns

, s
el

f-
es

te
em

 

an
d
 

em
p
o
w

er
m

en
t 

o
f 

yo
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 
in

 

Le
ed

s.

Le
ed

s 
Se

xu
al

 H
ea

lth
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

(i
n 

p
ro

gr
es

s)
3

Yo
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 h
av

e 
o
th

er
 s

ex
ua

l h
ea

lth
 n

ee
d
s 

an
d
 c

ro
ss

 c
ut

ti
ng

 t
he

m
es

 fr
o
m

 b
o
th

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 f
o
cu

se
d
 w

o
rk

 t
ar

ge
ts

 y
o
un

g 

p
eo

p
le

 in
 L

ee
d
s

A
lc

o
ho

l 
St

ra
te

gy
 

(2
0
0
7
-2

0
1
0
)4

 
T

he
 

lin
k 

b
et

w
ee

n 
hi

gh
 a

lc
o
ho

l 
co

ns
um

p
tio

n 
in

cr
ea

se

in
 n

um
b
er

s 
o
f 

se
xu

al
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d
 l

ac
k 

o
f 

co
nd

o
m

 
us

e 
m

us
t 

b
e 

ad
d
re

ss
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 

d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
an

d
 

ne
go

tia
tio

n 
sk

ill
s 

an
d
 

se
lf-

es
te

em
 w

o
rk

 w
ith

 y
o
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

.

D
ru

gs
 S

tr
at

eg
y–

Le
ed

s 
m

u
lti

-a
ge

nc
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 
to

 
ta

ck
le

 
su

b
st

an
ce

 
m

is
us

e 
(2

0
0
6
-2

0
0
8
)5

ca
n 

gr
ea

tly
 im

p
ac

t 
o
n 

se
xu

al
 h

ea
lth

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

an
d
 r

is
k 

ta
ki

ng
 b

eh
av

io
ur

.

3
2

Page 42



Le
ed

s 
ha

s 
hi

gh
 r

at
es

 o
f 
te

en
ag

e 
co

n
ce

p
ti
o
n
s. 

W
h
ils

t 
m

u
ch

 g
o
o
d
 w

o
rk

 is
 c

u
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

n
g 

d
o
n
e 

to
 r

ed
u
ce

 

T
he

 t
ab

le
 b

el
o
w

 s
h
o
w

s 
p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 L
ee

d
s 

u
p
 t

o
 2

0
0
6
 (

th
is
 b

ei
n
g 

th
e 

la
te

st
 a

va
ila

b
le

 d
at

a)
. 

(R
at

es
 a

re
 p

er
 t

h
o
u
sa

n
d
 1

5
-1

7
 y

ea
r 

o
ld

s)

o
f 
3
2
.  

o
f 
co

nc
ep

tio
ns

 a
m

o
n
gs

t 
1
5
-1

7
 y

ea
r 

o
ld

s 
p
er

 1
0
0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 in

 L
ee

d
s 

h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d
 s

in
ce

 2
0
0
3
.

C
o
nc

ep
ti
o
n 

ra
te

s 
va

ry
 b

et
w

ee
n
 w

ar
d
s 

in
 L

ee
d
s 

an
d
 a

re
 s

tr
o
n
gl

y 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
it
h
 d

ep
ri
va

ti
o
n
. A

 t
h
ir
d
 o

f 

Le
ed

s 
w

ar
d
s 

ar
e 

h
o
ts

p
o
ts

 w
it
h
 r

at
es

 a
m

o
n
gs

t 
th

e 
h
ig

h
es

t 
in

 E
n
gl

an
d
. 

T
he

 p
ro

b
le

m
 is

 c
o
n
fo

u
n
d
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

d
el

ay
 in

 t
h
e 

n
at

io
n
al

 r
ep

o
rt

in
g 

o
f 
d
at

a.
 T

h
is
 m

ea
n
s 

th
at

 t
h
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f 

in
te

rv
en

ti
o
ns

 is
 n

o
t 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
p
p
ar

en
t.

1
9
9
8
 B

as
el

in
e 

2
0
0
6

D
iff

er
en

ce

Le
ed

s
5
0
.4

5
0
.7

0
.4

%

W
es

t Y
o
rk

sh
ir

e 
5
3

4
7
.8

-9
.8

%

E
n
gl

an
d

4
6
.6

4
0
.4

-1
3
.3

%

6
0

5
0

4
0

3
0

2
0

1
0 0

1
9
9
8
  
  
1
9
9
9
  
  
 2

0
0
0
  
  
 2

0
0
1
  
  
  
2
0
0
2
  
  
 2

0
0
3
  
  
 2

0
0
4
  
  
 2

0
0
5
  
  
  
2
0
0
6

Ye
ar

Rate per 1000

R
at

e

5
4

Page 43



Le
ed

s 
ha

s 
b
ee

n 
w

o
rk

in
g 

w
ith

 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l 

Su
p
p
o
rt

 
Te

am
 

fo
r 

Te
en

ag
e 

P
re

gn
an

cy
 

si
nc

e 

N
o
ve

m
b
er

 
2
0
0
7
 
to

 
re

vi
ew

 
p
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 
d
at

e 

an
d
 

to
 

id
en

tif
y 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t. 

T
he

 

N
at

io
na

l 
Su

p
p
o
rt

 T
ea

m
 p

ra
is
ed

 t
he

 g
o
o
d
 w

o
rk

 

al
re

ad
y 

b
ei

ng
 d

o
ne

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
he

 c
ity

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 

re
co

m
m

en
d
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t. 

T
he

y 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 

th
e 

ne
ed

 
to

 
re

vi
ew

 
th

e 
Te

en
ag

e 

P
re

gn
an

cy
 a

nd
 P

ar
en

th
o
o
d
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

o
f 
p
ro

vi
d
in

g 
m

o
re

 t
im

el
y 

d
at

a 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
ab

le
 

u
s 

to
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
m

o
n
it
o
r 

an
d
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

im
p
ac

t 

o
f 
in

te
rv

en
ti
o
n
s 

o
n
 c

o
n
ce

p
ti
o
n
 r

at
es

. 

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

ac
ro

ss
 a

ge
n
ci

es

N
ee

d
s 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

T
h
er

e 
is
 

a 
n
ee

d
 

fo
r 

a 
co

m
p
re

h
en

si
ve

 

co
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
 s

tr
at

eg
y. 

T
h
is
 s

h
o
u
ld

 in
cl

u
d
e 

th
e 

ad
ve

rt
is
in

g 
an

d
 

d
is
se

m
in

at
io

n
 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 

o
n
 t

h
e 

av
ai

la
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
se

xu
al

 h
ea

lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

se
rv

ic
es

 
fo

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
eo

p
le

. 
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n
 

o
n
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
av

ai
la

b
le

 
m

u
st

 
b
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

co
m

m
u
n
ic

at
ed

 
to

 
yo

u
n
g 

p
eo

p
le

 
an

d
 

o
th

er
 

m
em

b
er

s 
o
f 

th
e 

p
u
b
lic

 
as

 
w

el
l 

as
 

to
 

al
l 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

s 
w

h
o
 

h
av

e 
co

n
ta

ct
 

w
it
h
 

yo
u
n
g 

p
eo

p
le

 i
n
 o

rd
er

 t
h
at

 t
h
ey

 c
an

 p
ro

vi
d
e 

su
p
p
o
rt

 

an
d
/o

r 
si
gn

p
o
st

 
as

 
ap

p
ro

p
ri
at

e
. 

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

u
se

rs
, 

in
cl

u
d
in

g 
th

e 

co
n
ti
nu

ed
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

o
f 

Y
SH

A
G

 
is
 

a 
vi

ta
l 

as
p
ec

t 
o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

p
la

n
n
in

g,
 
d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

an
d
 

ev
al

u
at

io
n
. P

ro
ac

ti
ve

 a
n
d
 r
ea

ct
iv

e 
m

ed
ia

 h
an

d
lin

g 

w
ill

 n
ee

d
 m

an
ag

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y. 

T
h
er

e 
n
ee

d
s 

to
 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 b

et
w

ee
n
 p

ar
tn

er
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n
s. 

T
h
is
 w

ill
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
ey

 r
em

ai
n
 f

u
lly

 i
n
fo

rm
ed

 o
f 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

re
la

ti
n
g 

to
 t

ee
n
ag

e 

p
re

gn
an

cy
 
an

d
 
p
ar

en
th

o
o
d
 
in

 
o
rd

er
 
to

 
ke

ep
 

th
is
 h

ig
h
 o

n
 t

h
e 

ag
en

d
a.
 T

h
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

b
et

w
ee

n
 
th

e 
Te

en
ag

e 
P
re

gn
an

cy
 

an
d
 

Pa
re

n
th

o
o
d
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
B
o
ar

d
, 

Te
en

ag
e 

T
hi

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 
w

as
 
d
ev

el
o
p
ed

 
b
y 

th
e 

Te
en

ag
e 

P
re

gn
an

cy
 a

nd
 P

ar
en

th
o
o
d
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

o
ar

d
 

(T
P
P
P
B
) 

w
hi

ch
 c

o
n
si
st

s 
o
f 
re

p
re

se
n
ta

ti
ve

s 
fr

o
m

 

N
H

S 
Le

ed
s, 

Le
ed

s 
C

it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l, 
Le

ed
s 

C
ar

ee
rs

, 

Le
ed

s 
Te

ac
hi

ng
 H

o
sp

it
al

s 
Tr

u
st

, E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 L

ee
d
s 

an
d
 V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

an
d
 F

ai
th

 S
ec

to
r, Y

o
u
th

 

Se
xu

al
 
H

ea
lth

 
A

ct
io

n
 
G

ro
u
p
 
(Y

SH
A

G
), 

w
h
o
 

sh
ar

e 
d
el

eg
at

ed
 r

es
p
o
n
si
b
ili

ty
 f
o
r 

th
e 

lo
ca

l w
o
rk

 

ar
o
un

d
 t
ee

na
ge

 p
re

gn
an

cy
 a

n
d
 p

ar
en

th
o
o
d
. T

h
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 
o
ut

lin
es

 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

an
d
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 k

ey
 a

ct
io

n
s.

T
he

re
 
is
 
a 

cl
ea

r 
n
ee

d
 
to

 
u
n
d
er

ta
ke

 
a 

Yo
u
n
g 

(H
N

A
) 

as
 p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

b
ro

ad
er

 S
ex

u
al

 H
ea

lt
h
 

N
ee

d
s 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

T
h
is
 

w
ill

 
h
el

p
 

to
 

id
en

ti
fy

 

ga
p
s 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 

im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t, 

fo
cu

ss
in

g 
la

rg
el

y 
o
n
 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 

gr
o
up

s.

T
he

 p
ro

d
uc

tio
n 

o
f a

 lo
ca

l t
ee

n
ag

e 
p
re

gn
an

cy
 d

at
a 

se
t 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 in
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t. 
T

h
is
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

m
o
re

 d
et

ai
le

d
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

yo
u
n
g 

p
eo

p
le

 

b
ec

o
m

in
g 

p
re

gn
an

t 
in

 
Le

ed
s. 

It
 

w
ill

 
in

cl
u
d
e 

d
at

a 
o
n 

liv
e 

b
ir

th
s, 

st
ill

b
ir

th
s, 

te
rm

in
at

io
n
s 

an
d
 

se
co

nd
/s

u
b
se

q
u
en

t t
ee

n
ag

e 
co

n
ce

p
ti
o
n
s 
b
ro

ke
n
 

d
o
w

n 
b
y 

Su
p
er

 O
u
tp

u
t 

A
re

as
/ 

w
ar

d
 l

ev
el

 a
n
d
 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 g

ro
up

s. 
T

h
e 

an
al

ys
is
 a

n
d
 d

is
se

m
in

at
io

n
 

o
f 
lo

ca
l d

at
a 

w
ill

 a
ct

 a
s 

a 
le

ve
r 

to
 e

n
ga

ge
, i
n
fo

rm
 

an
d
 
su

p
p
o
rt

 
p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 
ta

rg
et

 
in

te
rv

en
ti
o
n
s 

m
o
re

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

to
w

ar
d
 t

h
e 

yo
u
n
g 

p
eo

p
le

 w
h
o
 

7
6

Page 44



P
re

gn
an

cy
 

an
d
 

Pa
re

nt
ho

o
d
 

C
o
m

m
is
si
o
ni

ng
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
an

d
 

th
e 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

an
d
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

C
o
m

m
itt

ee
 
in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
, 

w
o
rk

 

p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t.

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

st
ra

te
gy

he
al

th
 s

er
vi

ce
s

A
ll 

yo
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 s
ho

ul
d
 h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 h

ig
h 

q
ua

lit
y 

co
nt

ra
ce

p
tio

n 
an

d
 s

ex
ua

l h
ea

lth
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 in
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
se

tt
in

gs
. T

he
se

 

se
rv

ic
es

 s
ho

ul
d
 b

e 
yo

un
g 

p
eo

p
le

 f
ri
en

d
ly

 a
nd

 

9

an
d
 
th

e 
M

ed
FA

SH
 
R

ec
o
m

m
en

d
ed

 
St

an
d
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

Se
xu

al
 

H
ea

lth
 

Se
rv

ic
es

1
0
. 

Se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

is
 

es
se

nt
ia

l 
to

 
in

fo
rm

 
se

rv
ic

e 

im
p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 
an

d
 

ev
al

ua
tio

n.
 

Fe
ed

b
ac

k 
an

d
 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
ns

 f
ro

m
 y

o
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 
al

o
ng

 
w

ith
 

av
ai

la
b
le

 
ev

id
en

ce
 

o
n 

b
es

t 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
to

 
re

d
es

ig
n 

an
d
 

im
p
ro

ve
 

se
rv

ic
es

 

w
he

re
 

ap
p
ro

p
ri
at

e
. 

A
p
p
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
2
0
%

 
o
f 

b
ir

th
s 

co
nc

ei
ve

d
 t

o
 u

nd
er

-1
8
s 

ar
e 

se
co

nd
 o

r 

su
b
se

q
ue

nt
 c

o
nc

ep
tio

ns
 a

nd
 7

.5
%

 o
f 

ab
o
rt

io
ns

 

to
 u

nd
er

-1
8
s 

ar
e 

to
 y

o
un

g 
w

o
m

en
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

ha
d
 a

 p
re

vi
o
us

 a
b
o
rt

io
n.

 A
ll 

p
re

gn
an

t 
te

en
ag

er
s 

an
d
 t

ee
na

ge
 m

o
th

er
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
fe

rr
ed

 t
o
 a

nd
 

fo
llo

w
ed

 
up

 
b
y 

co
nt

ra
ce

p
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 
as

 
an

 

ap
p
ro

ac
h 

to
 
re

d
uc

e 
se

co
nd

 
an

d
 
su

b
se

q
ue

nt
 

p
re

gn
an

ci
es

. A
ll 

co
m

m
is
si
o
ne

d
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

sh
o
ul

d
 

ha
ve

 c
le

ar
 S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

 A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

/ 
Se

rv
ic

e 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

Se
rv

ic
es

 (
H

Y
P
S)

cl
ea

r 
SL

A
s, 

in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

d
ar

d
s, 

an
d
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

o
ni

to
ri
ng

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

in
 

p
la

ce

Se
xu

al
 H

ea
lth

 N
ee

d
s 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

A
ll 

yo
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 s
ho

ul
d
 h

av
e 

th
e 

ri
gh

t 
to

 g
o
o
d
 

q
ua

lit
y 

se
x 

an
d
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 a
llo

w
 

th
em

 t
o
 m

ak
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

b
o
ut

 t
he

ir
 

se
xu

al
 

he
al

th
 

ch
o
ic

es
. 

T
he

 
p
ro

vi
si
o
n 

o
f 

th
is
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d
 g

ui
d
an

ce
 s
ho

ul
d
 b

eg
in

 a
t a

n
 e

ar
ly

 

ag
e 

w
ith

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
ar

er
s 
b
ei

ng
 e

nc
o
ur

ag
ed

 t
o
 

d
is
cu

ss
 a

nd
 e

xp
lo

re
 r

el
at

io
ns

h
ip

 is
su

es
 w

ith
 t
he

ir
 

ch
ild

re
n.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 n

ee
d
 to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

se
x 

an
d
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p
 e

d
uc

at
io

n 
p
ro

vi
si
o
n 

w
ith

in
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d
 

no
n-

ed
uc

at
io

n 
es

ta
b
lis

hm
en

ts
 

ac
ro

ss
 L

ee
d
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 y

o
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 a
re

 

o
ffe

re
d
 

ap
p
ro

p
ri
at

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 

ad
vi

ce
 

an
d
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 t
o
 h

el
p
 t

he
m

 d
ev

el
o
p
 t

he
ir
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

m
ak

e 
sa

fe
, 

in
fo

rm
ed

 c
ho

ic
es

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 i

n
cl

ud
e 

to
 fo

rm
 h

ea
lth

y 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p
s, 

d
el

ay
 s

ex
 a

nd
 r
es

is
t 

p
ee

r 
p
re

ss
ur

e
. S

ch
o
o
l n

ur
se

s 
ha

ve
 a

n 
im

p
o
rt

an
t 

ro
le

 t
o
 p

la
y 

an
d
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
to

 e
xp

lo
re

 r
o
lli

ng
 o

ut
 H

ea
lth

y 
Yo

un
g 

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p
 E

d
uc

at
io

n 
(S

R
E)

 w
ith

in
 e

d
uc

at
io

n 

an
d
 n

o
n-

ed
uc

at
io

na
l s

et
tin

gs

in
 s

ch
o
o
ls
 a

nd
 y

o
ut

h 
se

rv
ic

e

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
o
f 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e     

Pe
rs

o
na

l 
So

ci
al

 
H

ea
lth

 
E
d
uc

at
io

n 
(P

SH
E)

/

SR
E

Lo
o
ke

d
 a

ft
er

 c
h
ild

re
n

Yo
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 
w

h
o
 

ar
e 

o
r 

w
h
o
 

h
av

e 
b
ee

n
 

lo
o
ke

d
 
af

te
r 

ar
e 

at
 
gr

ea
te

r 
ri
sk

 
o
f 

b
ec

o
m

in
g 

te
en

ag
e 

m
o
th

er
s. 

St
at

is
ti
cs

 
o
n
 

Lo
o
ke

d
 
A

ft
er

 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
re

le
as

ed
 b

y 
D

FE
S 

in
 N

o
ve

m
b
er

 2
0
0
5
 

sh
o
w

ed
 t

ha
t 

4
.1

%
 o

f 
1
5
-1

7
 y

ea
r 

o
ld

 f
em

al
es

 i
n
 

ca
re

 w
er

e 
m

o
th

er
s-

 t
h
is
 w

as
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
re

e 
ti
m

es
 

hi
gh

er
 t
ha

n 
th

e 
p
re

va
le

n
ce

 a
m

o
n
g 

al
l g

ir
ls
 u

n
d
er

 

1
8
 in

 E
ng

la
nd

.

B
la

ck
 a

n
d
 m

in
o
ri

ty
 e

th
n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s

Yo
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 f
ro

m
 c

er
ta

in
 e

th
n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s 

ar
e 

m
o
re

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 e

xp
er

ie
n
ce

 t
ee

n
ag

e 
p
re

gn
an

cy
 

am
o
ng

 t
ee

na
ge

 m
o
th

er
s. 

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

p
ro

vi
si
o
n,

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
rl
y 

in
 r

el
at

io
n
 t
o
 v

u
ln

er
ab

le
 

gr
o
up

s, 
th

o
se

 a
t 
ri
sk

 fr
o
m

 s
u
b
se

q
u
en

t 
te

en
ag

e 

p
re

gn
an

ci
es

 
an

d
 

ge
o
gr

ap
h
ic

al
 

lo
ca

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

te
en

ag
e 

p
re

gn
an

cy
 h

o
ts

p
o
ts

fo
r 

Lo
o
ke

d
 A

ft
er

 C
h
ild

re
n
 r

o
le

T
he

re
 

is
 

th
e 

n
ee

d
 

to
 

en
su

re
 

th
at

 
al

l 
th

o
se

 

w
o
rk

in
g 

w
ith

 y
o
u
n
g 

p
eo

p
le

 u
n
d
er

ta
ke

 o
n
go

in
g 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 t
o
 e

q
ui

p
 t

h
em

 w
it
h
 t

h
e 

sk
ill

s 
to

 e
n
ab

le
 

th
em

 
to

 
ta

lk
 
to

 
yo

u
n
g 

p
eo

p
le

 
ab

o
u
t 

se
xu

al
 

he
al

th
 a

n
d
 r

el
at

io
n
sh

ip
s. 

T
h
e 

tr
ai

n
in

g 
w

ill
 c

o
n
si
st

 

o
f 

b
as

ic
 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
to

 
m

o
re

 
ad

va
n
ce

d
 

an
d
 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
tr

ai
ni

ng
. S

ch
o
o
l N

u
rs

in
g,
 M

id
w

ife
ry

 a
n
d
 

H
ea

lt
h
 V

is
it
in

g 
st

af
f 

w
ill

 r
ec

ei
ve

 t
ra

in
in

g 
ar

o
u
n
d
 

SR
E
 a

n
d
 s

te
p
s 

to
 p

re
ve

n
t 

se
co

n
d
 /

su
b
se

q
u
en

t 

p
re

gn
an

ci
es

.

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

st
ra

te
gi

es
 in

 r
el

at
io

n
  
to

 S
R

E
 

o
n
e 

to
 o

n
e 

in
te

rv
en

ti
o
n
s 

in
 r

el
at

io
n
 t

o
 N

IC
E
 

gu
id

an
ce

N
u
rs

in
g,
 M

id
w

ife
ry

 a
n
d
 H

ea
lt
h
 V

is
it
in

g 
st

af
f

T
h
er

e 
is
 a

 g
re

at
 d

ea
l o

f g
o
o
d
 w

o
rk

 c
u
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

n
g 

an
d
 r

ai
se

 a
sp

ir
at

io
n
s 

o
f 
yo

u
n
g 

p
eo

p
le

. W
e 

n
ee

d
 

to
 i
d
en

ti
fy

 a
re

as
 o

f 
go

o
d
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

an
d
 e

n
su

re
 a

 

co
n
si
st

en
t 
ap

p
ro

ac
h
 a

cr
o
ss

 t
h
e 

ci
ty

.  T
h
er

e 
n
ee

d
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

fo
cu

s 
o
n
 a

d
d
re

ss
in

g 
th

e 
n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 
gr

o
u
p
s. 

Ta
rg

et
ed

 Y
o
u
th

 
Su

p
p
o
rt

 

se
rv

ic
es

 h
av

e 
a 

ro
le

 i
n
 h

el
p
in

g 
te

en
ag

e 
p
ar

en
ts

 

to
 c

o
p
e 

w
it
h
 t
h
e 

ch
al

le
n
ge

s 
o
f e

ar
ly

 p
ar

en
th

o
o
d
, 

b
y 

p
ro

vi
d
in

g 
co

-o
rd

in
at

ed
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 a

 l
ea

d
 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 w
h
o
 c

an
 a

ct
 a

s 
an

 a
d
vo

ca
te

 f
o
r 

th
e 

yo
u
n
g 

m
o
th

er
 a

n
d
 f
at

h
er

 a
n
d
 p

u
t 
th

em
 in

 t
o
u
ch

 

w
it
h
 a

ny
 s

p
ec

ia
lis

t 
su

p
p
o
rt

 t
h
ey

 m
ay

 n
ee

d
. T

h
is
 

su
p
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 h
el

p
 to

 a
d
d
re

ss
 th

e 
em

o
ti
o
n
al

 h
ea

lt
h
 

n
ee

d
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

it
h
 b

ei
n
g 

a 
te

en
 p

ar
en

t.

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

H
ea

lt
h
 E

d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 T

ea
m

 t
o
 g

en
er

ic
 s

er
vi

ce

R
ai

si
n
g 

as
p
ir
at

io
n
s 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

o
 h

av
e 

a 

p
o
si
ti
ve

 e
ffe

ct
 i
n
 r

ed
u
ci

n
g 

te
en

ag
e 

co
n
ce

p
ti
o
n
s. 

Yo
u
n
g 

p
eo

p
le

 
n
ee

d
 

to
 

re
ce

iv
e 

co
n
si
st

en
t 

m
es

sa
ge

s 
fr

o
m

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

s. 
C

ar
ee

rs
 e

d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 

9
8

Page 45



an
d
 

gu
id

an
ce

 
is
 

a 
ke

y 
el

em
en

t 
o
f 

ra
is
in

g 

as
p
ir
at

io
ns

. 
Sc

ho
o
ls
 

an
d
 

co
lle

ge
s 

ar
e 

id
ea

lly
 

p
la

ce
d
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

yo
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 w
ith

 t
he

 s
ki

lls
 

an
d
 k

no
w

le
d
ge

 th
ey

 r
eq

ui
re

 to
 d

ev
el

o
p
 th

ei
r 
se

lf-

aw
ar

en
es

s, 
ga

in
 a

n 
un

d
er

st
an

d
in

g 
o
f o

cc
up

at
io

na
l 

an
d
 l

ea
rn

in
g 

o
p
p
o
rt

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 t

o
 b

e 
ab

le
 t

o
 

p
la

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 a
nd

 m
ak

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri
at

e 
ca

re
er

 

d
ec

is
io

ns
. L

ee
d
s 

C
ar

ee
rs

 p
ro

vi
d
es

 t
he

 s
p
ec

ia
lis

t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 
ad

vi
ce

, 
gu

id
an

ce
 
an

d
 
su

p
p
o
rt

 
to

 

he
lp

 y
o
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 a
p
p
ly

 w
ha

t 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

le
ar

ne
d
 

to
 
th

ei
r 

o
w

n 
in

d
iv

id
ua

l 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

an
d
 
to

 

tu
rn

 t
he

se
 o

p
p
o
rt

un
iti

es
 in

to
 r

ea
lit

y.

Sc
ho

o
ls
 a

nd
 c

o
lle

ge
s 

sh
o
ul

d
 b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 t
o
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d
 d

ev
el

o
p
 P

SH
C

E 
p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
nd

 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

ca
re

er
s 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d
 g

ui
d
an

ce
 i

s 

re
co

gn
is
ed

 a
s 

an
 im

p
o
rt

an
t 

el
em

en
t 

o
f 
th

is
. 

Fo
r 

yo
un

g 
m

o
th

er
s, 

th
ei

r 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

is
 

o
ft
en

 

d
is
ru

p
te

d
 a

t 
th

e 
m

o
st

 c
ri
tic

al
 t
im

e
, i
n 

th
e 

ru
n-

up
 

in
 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 

em
p
lo

ym
en

t 
o
r 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
(E

ET
) 

b
ey

o
nd

 t
he

 c
o
m

p
ul

so
ry

 s
ch

o
o
l 

le
av

in
g 

ag
e 

is
 

ve
ry

 l
o
w

. S
tu

d
ie

s 
sh

o
w

 t
ha

t 
m

en
 w

ho
 b

ec
o
m

e 

fa
th

er
s 

at
 a

 y
o
un

g 
ag

e 
(u

nd
er

 a
ge

 2
3
) 

ar
e 

tw
ic

e 

as
 l
ik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
un

em
p
lo

ye
d
 a

t 
ag

e 
3
0
 t

ha
n 

m
en

 

w
ho

 b
ec

am
e 

fa
th

er
s 

ag
ed

 o
ve

r 
2
3

1
1
.  
Su

p
p
o
rt

 

sh
o
ul

d
 f

o
cu

s 
o
n 

he
lp

in
g 

te
en

ag
e 

p
ar

en
ts

 t
o
 r

e-

en
ga

ge
 in

 E
ET

.

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

to
 r

ai
se

 a
sp

ir
at

io
ns

T
he

re
 i

s 
a 

st
ro

ng
 n

ee
d
 f

o
r 

p
ar

en
t 

an
d
 c

ar
er

 

ad
d
re

ss
 
se

xu
al

 
he

al
th

 
an

d
 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p
 
is
su

es
 

w
ith

 y
o
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 t
o
 e

q
ui

p
 t

he
m

 w
ith

 t
he

 s
ki

lls
 

d
el

ay
 s

ex
.

K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p
 is

su
es

fo
r 

p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
ar

er
s 

o
n 

ta
lk

in
g 

to
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

ab
o
ut

 s
ex

 a
nd

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

p
 is

su
es

A
ll 

p
ar

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d
 h

av
e 

go
o
d
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

o
ut

 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
va

ila
b
le

 t
o
 t

he
m

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
ac

ce
ss

 

to
 
p
ar

en
tin

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 
su

p
p
o
rt

. 

T
hi

s 
su

p
p
o
rt

 
sh

o
ul

d
 

b
eg

in
 

d
ur

in
g 

p
re

gn
an

cy
 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o
 m

ax
im

is
e 

th
e 

ch
an

ce
s 

o
f 

p
re

gn
an

t 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
in

to
 p

ar
en

th
o
o
d
. 
G

o
o
d
 p

ar
en

ti
ng

 i
s 

es
se

nt
ia

l 
if 

ch
ild

re
n 

ar
e 

to
 s

ta
y 

sa
fe

, b
e 

he
al

th
y, 

m
ak

e 
a 

p
o
si
tiv

e 
co

nt
ri
b
ut

io
n,

 e
nj

o
y 

an
d
 a

ch
ie

ve
 

an
d
 b

e 
fr

ee
 fr

o
m

 p
o
ve

rt
y 

9
. W

e 
ne

ed
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 o
n 

th
e 

go
o
d
 w

o
rk

 w
hi

ch
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 e
xi

st
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

su
p
p
o
rt

 fo
r 

te
en

ag
e 

p
ar

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
d
in

g 
in

cr
ea

se
d
 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 w
o
rk

in
g.
 S

er
vi

ce
s 
sh

o
ul

d
 b

e 
ta

ilo
re

d
 

to
 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

yo
u
ng

 
m

o
th

er
s 

an
d
 

fa
th

er
s. 
T

he
 p

re
ss

ur
es

 o
f e

ar
ly

 p
ar

en
th

o
o
d
 r

es
ul

t 

in
 t

ee
na

ge
 m

o
th

er
s 

ex
p
er

ie
nc

in
g 

hi
gh

 r
at

es
 o

f 

p
o
o
r 

em
o
tio

na
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 w
el

l-
b
ei

ng
. R

es
ea

rc
h 

sh
o
w

s 
th

at
 t

ee
na

ge
 m

o
th

er
s 

ha
ve

 h
ig

he
r 

ra
te

s 

o
f 

p
o
o
r 

m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 
af

te
r 

b
ir

th
 
th

an
 
o
ld

er
 

m
o
th

er
s, 

an
d
 t
ha

t 
th

es
e 

hi
gh

er
 r

at
es

 a
re

 e
vi

d
en

t 

fo
r 

up
 t

o
 t

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
 a

ft
er

 b
ir

th
. S

o
ci

al
 is

o
la

tio
n 

an
d
 h

ig
h 

ra
te

s 
o
f 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p
 b

re
ak

d
o
w

n
 a

re
 

ke
y 

fa
ct

o
rs

 w
hi

ch
 c

o
nt

ri
b
ut

e 
to

 t
hi

s 
si
tu

at
io

n.
 

Fo
r 

yo
un

g 
fa

th
er

s, 
p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 t
ho

se
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 

fr
o
m

 t
he

ir
 c

hi
ld

re
n,

 t
he

re
 i

s 
al

so
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d
 

ri
sk

 
o
f 

em
o
tio

na
l 

an
d
 

re
la

tio
n
sh

ip
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s. 

Yo
un

g 
p
ar

en
ts

 
re

q
ui

re
 

ad
d
iti

o
na

l 
su

p
p
o
rt

 
at

 

th
is
 v

ul
ne

ra
b
le

 t
im

e
. S

er
vi

ce
s 

ne
ed

 t
o
 b

e 
m

o
re

 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
to

 y
o
un

g 
fa

th
er

s 
to

 e
nc

o
ur

ag
e 

th
em

 

to
 b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 t
he

 c
ar

e 
o
f 
th

ei
r 

ch
ild

re
n
. 

A
ll 

p
ar

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d
 h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
at

e 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o
 c

re
at

e 
a 

sa
fe

 e
nv

ir
o
n
m

en
t 

in
 w

hi
ch

 t
o
 r

ai
se

 t
he

ir
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

 T
he

re
 n

ee
d
s 

to
 

b
e 

cl
o
se

 w
o
rk

in
g 

w
ith

 h
o
us

in
g 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 

av
ai

la
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
ap

p
ro

p
ri
at

el
y 

d
ec

en
t 

ho
us

in
g 

fo
r 

yo
un

g 
p
ar

en
ts

.

1
1

1
0

Page 46



K
e

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

te
en

ag
er

s 
an

d
 

m
o
th

er
s 

ar
e 

fo
llo

w
ed

 

up
 b

y 
co

nt
ra

ce
p
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es

1
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

ki
lls

 (
2
0
0
6
), 

Te
en

ag
e 

P
re

gn
an

cy
 N

ex
t 

St
ep

s: 
G

u
id

an
ce

 f
o
r 

Lo
ca

l 

A
ut

ho
ri
tie

s 
an

d
 P

ri
m

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

u
st

s 
o
n
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
o
f 
Lo

ca
l S

tr
at

eg
ie

s. 
C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p
yr

ig
h
t

2
0
0
6
-2

0
0
9
. L

ee
d
s 

In
it
ia

ti
ve

 

w
w

w
.c

h
ild

re
n
le

ed
s.

o
rg

.u
k

3
Le

ed
s 

Se
xu

al
 H

ea
lt
h
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

(i
n
 p

ro
gr

es
s)

4
H

ea
lt
hy

 L
ee

d
s 

&
 S

af
er

 L
ee

d
s, 

A
lc

o
h
o
l s

tr
at

eg
y 

(2
0
0
7
 -

 2
0
1
0
), 

D
es

ig
n
 f
o
r 

H
ea

lt
h

5
Sa

fe
r 

Le
ed

s 
(2

0
0
6
), 

D
ru

gs
 S

tr
at

eg
y-

 L
ee

d
s 

m
u
lt
i-
ag

en
cy

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 t
ac

kl
e 

su
b
st

an
ce

 m
is
u
se

 

(2
0
0
6
-2

0
0
8
) 

D
es

ig
n
 f
o
r 

H
ea

lt
h
 

6
Le

ed
s 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt
h
 M

o
d
er

n
is
at

io
n
 T

ea
m

 (
2
0
0
6
), 

Le
ed

s 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lt
h
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

(2
0
0
6
-2

0
1
1
), 

Le
ed

s

7
H

ea
lt
hy

 L
ee

d
s 

Pa
rt

n
er

sh
ip

 (
2
0
0
5
), 

T
h
e 

Le
ed

s 
H

ea
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

el
l-
b
ei

n
g 

P
la

n
 2

0
0
5
-2

0
0
8
, L

ee
d
s 

In
iti

at
iv

e 

w
w

w
.le

ed
si

n
it
ia

ti
ve

.o
rg

8
C

hi
ld

re
n 

Le
ed

s 
(2

0
0
7
), 

E
ve

ry
 P

ar
en

t 
M

at
te

rs
: F

am
ily

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 P

ar
en

ti
n
g 

St
ra

te
gy

.  
Le

ed
s 

In
iti

at
iv

e 

w
w

w
.c

h
ild

re
n
le

ed
s.

o
rg

.u
k

Pe
o
p
le

 F
ri
en

d
ly
. C

ro
w

n
 C

o
py

ri
gh

t. 
Lo

n
d
o
n
 

w
w

w
.d

h
.g

o
v.

u
k/

p
u
b
lic

at
io

n
s

1
0

M
ed

ic
al

 F
o
un

d
at

io
n
 f
o
r 
A

id
s 

an
d
 S

ex
u
al

 H
ea

lt
h
 (

2
0
0
5
), 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
ed

 S
ta

n
d
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

Se
xu

al
 

H
ea

lt
h 

D
H

, L
o
n
d
o
n

1
1

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

fo
r 

E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

ki
lls

 (
2
0
0
7
) T

ee
n
ag

e 
Pa

re
n
ts

 N
ex

t 
St

ep
s: 

G
u
id

an
ce

 f
o
r 

Lo
ca

l 

A
ut

ho
ri
tie

s 
an

d
 P

ri
m

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

u
st

s. 
C

ro
w

n
 C

o
py

ri
gh

t 

w
w

w
.d

cs
f.g

o
v.

u
k

1
3

1
2

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date: 20 October 2009 
 
Subject: Updated Work Programme 2009/10  
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present and update members on the current outline 

work programme.  The Board is asked to consider, amend and agree its work 
programme, as appropriate. 

 
2.0 Background 
 

2.1 At its meeting on 30 June 2009, the Board received a number of inputs to help 
members consider the Board’s priorities during the current municipal year.  This 
included specific inputs from: 

 

• Executive Board Member for Adult Health and Social Care 

• Deputy Director (Adult Social Services) 

• NHS Leeds 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT) 

• Leeds Partnerships Foundation Trust (LPFT) 
 
2.2 At that meeting a number of potential work areas were identified by members of the 

Board.   These potential areas were confirmed in a further report, along with an 
outline work programme, presented at the Board meeting held on 28 July 2009. 

 
2.3 Subsequently, the outline work programme, including any emerging issues, is 

routinely presented to the Scrutiny Board consideration, amendment and/or 
agreement. 

 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

 

 

 

Originator: Steven Courtney 
 
Tel: 247 4707 
 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 49



3.0 Specific work areas and the overall work programme (2009/10) 
 

The role of the Council and its partners in promoting good public health – Scrutiny 
Inquiry 
 

3.1 At the previous meeting (22 September 2009), members of the Scrutiny Board 
(Health) agreed terms of reference for the above inquiry.  In this regard, the Board 
agreed to consider arrangements relating to four specific areas of public health. 

 
3.2 The first session of this inquiry, which focused on issues around improving sexual 

health and reducing teenage pregnancies, has been considered elsewhere on the 
agenda.  Further sessions are planned as follows: 

 

• Obesity and levels of physical activity – November 2009; 

• Alcohol consumption – January 2010; and, 

• Smoking – February 2010; 
 

Provision of renal services at Leeds General Infirmary (LGI) 
 

3.3 At its meeting on 28 July 2009, the Scrutiny Board considered the current proposals 
from Leeds Teaching Hospitals Trust (LTHT) associated with the provision of renal 
services (dialysis) across the Trust, particularly in terms of provision at Leeds 
General Infirmary (LGI).   

 
3.4 The Scrutiny Board was advised that, at its meeting on 30 July 2009,  the LTHT 

Board would be presented with a recommendation that a renal dialysis unit should 
not be created at the LGI site.  The Scrutiny Board took evidence froma range of 
stakeholders, including the service commissioners, LTHT, Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service and patient representatives from the Kidney Patients Association (KPA)  for 
LGI and St. James’ University Hospital (SJUH). 

 
3.5 Based on the Department of Health Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny for Health 

and the evidence presented at the meeting, the Scrutiny Board concluded that the 
proposed changes to renal dialysis provision represented a substantial variation to 
service delivery.  As such, the Board recommended that a statutory period of 
consultation should take place prior to any decision of the (LTHT) Board. 

 
3.6 The Scrutiny Board produced a statement to this affect, which was presented to the 

LTHT Board meeting on 30 July 2009.  At that meeting, the LTHT Board agreed to 
defer its decision  

 
3.7 As part of the Scrutiny Board’s statement, it was also highlighted that there were a 

number of outstanding issues that the Scrutiny Board wished to pursue.  These were 
confirmed by way of a set of supplementary questions (Appendix 1), issued to LTHT 
and other key stakeholders on 6 August 2009.  A formal response which addresses 
the issues raised is yet to be received. 

 
Provision of dermatology services at Ward 43 (Leeds General Infirmary (LGI)) 
 

3.8 Members of the Scrutiny Board (Health) will be aware of the recent publicity 
associated with potential changes to the above service.  The Board will also be 
aware that two separate requests for scrutiny (one coming from patients and one 
from the British Association of Dermatologists).     

 
3.9 Given the timing of the recent publicity, the requests for scrutiny and the Board’s 

meeting cycle, following discussions with members of the Scrutiny Board (Health), 

Page 50



the Chair of the Board has, initially, taken this issue forward on members’ behalf.  
The action taken to date has included: 

 

• Issuing a  letter to the Chief Executive of LTHT (copied to NHS Leeds) seeking a 
moratorium on any further action until the Scrutiny Board has had the opportunity 
to consider the issues in more detail.  The letter also sought a range of additional 
information and points of clarification regarding the proposals; 

 

• Acknowledging receipt of the requests for scrutiny  and inviting those making the 
requests to attend a future meeting of the Scrutiny Board (date to be 
determined).  The letter also advised of the other action taken.   

 
3.10 At the time of writing this report, a formal response from LTHT and/or NHS Leeds 

had not been received. 
 

Use of 0844 Numbers at GP Surgeries 
 

3.11 As Members of the Scrutiny Board will be aware, in September 2009, the Chair of 
the Scrutiny Board received correspondence from a member of Shadwell Parish 
Council, following concerns raised by local residents regarding the use of a 0844 
telephone number at Shadwell Medical Centre.   

  
3.12 The Department of Health undertook formal public consultation on the use of 084 

telephone numbers within the NHS, between December 2008 and March 2009.  The 
outcome of that consultation was published on 14 September 2009 and can be 
summarised as follows: 

 

• The Department of Health intends to amend legislation and issue supporting 
guidance to NHS organisations to ensure that they review their current 
arrangements for telephony services and do not enter into future 
contracts/arrangements (or renew or extend an existing contract) where the 
overall effect of those arrangements is that patients pay more than the equivalent 
cost of calling a geographic number. 

 

• The Department of Health intends to issue guidance to the NHS on the use of 
telephony systems that facilitate automated answering, recommending that the 
option to speak to a person should always be made available to the caller. 

 

• The Department of Health does not intend to ban the 084 number range; rather, it 
intends to amend legislation and issue supporting guidance to the NHS to ensure 
that patients contacting the NHS do not pay more than the equivalent cost of a 
call to a geographic number, regardless of the number they call. 

 
3.13 Following an exchange of correspondence between the Chair of the Scrutiny Board 

and NHS Leeds, it is clear that NHS Leeds intends to work with locally affected GP 
practices to understand the impact the results of the consultation may have.  In a 
recent response, the Chair has asked that the Scrutiny Board be kept up-to-date with 
developments and has also sought clarification on the folowing: 

 

• The overall number and location of the practices across Leeds currently 
utilising 0844 numbers; 

• Who represent ‘the providers of the service’; 

• Details of how NHS Leeds intend to reflect the concerns of patients and 
user groups, during any discussions with GP practices and the providers 
of the service; 

• Details of the likely timescales involved. 
 

Page 51



3.14 The information received from NHS Leeds has been shared with the member of 
Shadwell Parish Council, along with details of how this is being taken forward on 
behalf of the Scrutiny Board.  This has resulted in positive feedback both in terms of 
the action taken and the speed of response. 

 
Health Proposals Working Group 

 

3.15 At its previous meeting on 22 September 2009, the Scrutiny Board (Health) agreed 
to re-establish the working group and the associated terms of reference.  The Board 
also agreed that Councillors Dobson and Chapman would form the core membership 
of the working group, with other members of the Board attending whenever possible. 

 
3.16 At the time of writing this report, a date for the first meeting of this working group was 

yet to be agreed. 
 

Openness in the NHS 
 

3.17 The Department of Health publication ‘Code of Practice on Openness in the NHS’ 
(2003) sets out general principals for open and transparent decision-making within 
local NHS bodies.   

 
3.18 In order to attempt to better understand how each of the local NHS Trusts interpret 

and implement the national guidance, Members will recall that, in August 2009, the 
Chair of the Scrutiny Board wrote to each Trust in this regard.   

 
3.19 To date, responses from Leeds Partnerships NHS Foundation Trust (LPFT) and 

NHS Leeds have been received.  A response from Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Trust (LTHT) is being actively sought.  Once received, these details will be presented 
and considered by the Board, as appropriate.  

 
Children’s cardiac and neurosurgery services – national reviews 

 

3.20 In September 2009, members of the Scrutiny Board were made aware of a national 
review of Children’s Cardiac Surgery Services currently being undertaken.  The 
review is at a relatively early stage, with the review programme expected to run for 
approximately two years.  The key milestones are set out below: 

 

Date Milestone 

Sep 2009 Draft clinical standards circulated to stakeholders for comment 

Oct 2009 National stakeholder event in London 

Nov 2009 Final version of clinical standards circulated 

Jul 2010 SCGs submit recommendations for future service delivery 

Jul 2010 NHS Management Board considers the recommendations 

Sep 2010 Public consultation on the recommendations begins 

Jan 2011 Implementation of recommendations begins (subject to the 
outcome of the consultation) 

 
3.21 The draft clinical standards, received earlier this month and circulated to 

stakeholders for comment, are attached at Appendix 2. 
 
3.22 Currently, 11 centres across England provide Children’s Cardiac Surgery Services, 

with around 3,800 procedures being undertaken each year.   One of the issues to be 
considered as part of the review will be a higher number of surgical procedures 
being carried out by each clinical team, with a larger number of surgeons in each 
surgical centre, and a smaller number of centres. 

Page 52



 
3.23 More recently, it has emerged that a similar national review of Children’s 

Neurosurgery Services is also being undertaken. 
 
3.24 Again, this review is at a relatively early stage and is expected to run for 

approximately two years.  Currently, 15 centres across England provide Children’s 
Neurosurgery Services.  As yet, details of the key milestones and associated dates 
for the review have not been provided but are actively being sought.   

 
3.25 A copy of the recently received Children’s Neurosurgery Services Bulletin is attached 

at Appendix 3, for information. 
 
3.26 Members of the Scrutiny Board will be interested to note that currently, both 

Children’s Cardiac Surgery Services and Children’s Neurosurgery Services are 
provided by Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust. 

 
Executive Board Minutes 

 
3.27 For information, the minutes from the Executive Board meeting held on 17 

September 2009 are attached at Appendix 4.  The Scrutiny Board is asked to 
consider these minutes within the context of making any adjustments to its work 
programme. 

 
Work programme 
 

3.28 A revised outline work programme is presented at Appendix 5 for consideration.   
 
3.29 Members will be aware that the outline work programme should be regarded as a 

‘live’ document, which may evolve and change over time to reflect any in-year 
change in priorities and/or emerging issues over the course of the year.  As such, the 
Scrutiny Board is asked to consider the attached outline work programme and agree 
/ amend as appropriate.  

 
4.0 Recommendations 
 

4.1 Members are asked to; 
 

(i) Note the content of this report and associated appendices, particularly in terms 
of the updated positions reported across a number of work areas; and, 

(ii) Consider the outline work programme attached at Appendix 5 and agree / 
amend as appropriate. 

 
5.0 Background Documents 
 

• Scrutiny Inquiry into the role of the Council and its partners in promoting good 
public health – agreed terms of reference (22 September 2009) 

• Proposed Renal Services Provision at Leeds General Infirmary – Scrutiny Board 
Position Statement (29 July 2009) 

• The use of 084 telephone numbers in the NHS – Department of Health response 
to consultation (September 2009) 

• Code of Practice on Openness in the NHS – Department of Health (2003) 

• Children’s Cardiac Surgery Newsletter (August 2009) 
 
 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

 

Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 

Renal Services: Provision at Leeds General Infirmary 
 

Follow-up questions 
 

Strategy 
 

1. Following the decision to close the Wellcome Wing, and based on the information 
presented to the Scrutiny Board (dating back to early 2006), the provision of a 10 
station dialysis unit at LGI has always been part of the longer-term plan for the 
provision of renal services.  Please explain the rationale (including the clinical 
need) that informed the decision at that time, and outline what has subsequently 
changed.  

 
2. At the recent Scrutiny Board meeting (28 July 2009), it was stated that renal 

dialysis formed part of a wider strategy for renal replacement therapy (RRT).  
Please provide the following information: 

 

• An outline of the wider/ overall RRT strategy and details of how and when this 
strategy was developed and adopted – including any involvement of overview 
and scrutiny committees across the region. 

• Confirmation of the renal centres across Yorkshire and the Humber, including 
the services/ treatments provided, the population/ geographical areas each 
centre serves and the current number of patients accessing haemodialysis. 

• Confirmation of the current number of kidney transplants per annum 
(regionally and locally). 

• Confirmation of the current number of patients using home dialysis (regionally 
and locally) 

• Confirmation of the ‘ambitious targets’ for increasing the number of 
transplants and the level of home dialysis (regionally and locally), including 
details of how this will be delivered. 

 
 

Previously agreed plans 
 
3. As recently as February 2009, it was reported to the NHS Leeds Trust Board that: 
 

‘The longer term agreed plan for these stations is to maintain 18 stations at 
Seacroft and to relocate 10 stations to a renovated area within LGI. The 
new unit will open on Ward 44 at Leeds General Infirmary in December 
2009.   As of October 2008 LTH report that discussions were ongoing with 
patient representatives regarding the roll out of this development.’ 

 
In March 2009, the LGI scheme had been withdrawn from the capital programme 
endorsed by the LTHT Board.  This took place without the involvement or 
knowledge of the kidney patients, the wider population or the Scrutiny Board.  It 
would also appear to have been taken forward without the knowledge or 
involvement of the service commissioners. 
 
Please explain how these circumstances arose.  For example: 
 

• When did discussions about proposals not to proceed with the dialysis unit at 
LGI first take place within LTHT and who was involved?   

Page 55



APPENDIX 1 

 

• What, if any, considerations were given to involving other interested parties in 
these discussions, i.e. commissioners, patients and cares (i.e. KPA) and the 
Scrutiny Board. 

• Why is there evidence to suggest that there was a parallel process running 
during the early part of 2009, whereby the KPA were still involved in 
discussions around the delivery of a unit at LGI? 

• When did NHS Leeds and SCG first become aware of LTHT’s proposals not 
to proceed with the dialysis unit at LGI? 

• Does this signify a breakdown in communication between LTHT and NHS 
Leeds as commissioners? 

• What does this situation say about the general relation between local NHS 
bodies? 
 

4. The report presented to the LTHT Board (30 July 2009) refers to 34 dialysis 
stations on R&S ward at Seacroft 

 

• Who agreed this change?   

• When was this agreed?   

• Who was consulted over this change?  

• Why was the Scrutiny Board never specifically advised of this change in 
capacity/ provision and any implications for the longer-term strategy? 

• Was this a decision a deliberate move by LTHT to increase capacity at 
Seacroft  by stealth and undermine the plans to re-provide services at the 
LGI as promised? 

 
5. The LTHT report (30 July 2009) also states that ‘…the ward 44 scheme involves 

a level transfer of 10 stations from Seacroft unit to LGI’. Given the context of the 
LGI unit being part of the longer term plans, at what point did the planned unit at 
LGI involve the transfer of stations from Seacroft. 

 
 

Demand and capacity 
 
6. Please complete and/or correct the summary table presented at Appendix 1. 
 
7. In the report presented to the LTHT Board (30 July 2009), the projected level of 

demand for renal haemodialysis is detailed as 558 (by 2013/14) from the current 
level of demand (i.e.  492).  However, the Scrutiny Board received the following 
evidence from the National Kidney Federation: 

 

It is anticipated nationally that numbers of patients requiring all forms of 
renal replacement therapy will continue to grow for the foreseeable future, 
with the greatest demand coming in the hospital based haemodialysis 
sector, (forecast to rise by up to 8% per annum). 

 

Please explain the methodology used that predicts local demand to rise by less 
than an average of 2% over 5 years. 

 
8. The Scrutiny Board heard that currently there are 400 patients (approximately) 

awaiting pre-dialysis education.  Please confirm the number of patients (both 
regionally and locally) and explain how this relates to the predicted level of 
demand. 

 
9. The Scrutiny Board heard evidence to suggest that currently some patients are 

receiving a reduced level of dialysis – both in terms of time spent dialysing and 

Page 56



APPENDIX 1 

 

the number of dialysis sessions.  Staff absence was cited as one reason.  Please 
comment.  

 
 
10. The Scrutiny Board also heard how current staffing issues across renal services 

is having an impact on the timely delivery of home dialysis.  Please provide 
evidence that such services have adequate resources and capacity to offer this 
alternative to a wide group of patients in the short, medium and longer-term. 

 
 

Patient survey 
 

11. The report presented to the LTHT Board (30 July 2009) states that, ‘…in a 
recent patient survey only 11 patients expressed a preference to dialyse at 
LGI…’. Please provide a full summary of the outcome of the survey, including 
the questions posed and the options available.  Please confirm whe the survey 
was carried out (and by whom) and the involvement of the KPAs. 

 
 

Patient Transport 
 

12. Pease provide details of the catchment areas for the current satellite units. i.e. 
Where are patients currently travelling from and to for their treatment? 

 
13. What are the travelling times for patients from the North/ North-West of the City, 

who dialyse at Seacroft? 
 
 

Role of the Scrutiny Board 
 

14. The legislation and guidance around health scrutiny places a duty on local NHS 
bodies to consult with the Scrutiny Board on any proposed  substantial 
development or variation in the provision of local health services.  The guidance 
also states that NHS Trusts should discuss any proposals for service change at 
an early stage, in order to agree whether or not the proposal is considered 
substantial.  In this instance it is clear that the local NHS bodies involved have 
failed in this duty. 

 

• Please explain how this has happened and outline what steps will be taken to 
prevent a similar situation arising in the future. 
 

• What evidence is there to demonstrate that the statutory role of the Scrutiny 
Board is recognised, understood and valued within the organisations that 
make up the local health economy? 
 

• What assurances can be given to the Board that this situation is not reflective 
of a wider indifference to the role of scrutiny?  

 

Page 57



APPENDIX 1 
LTHT RENAL CENTRE / SATELLITE UNITS – SUMMARY INFORMATION  

 

Unit 
No. of 
dialysis 
stations 

Maximum 
capacity  
(2 sessions/day) 

Current 
demand 
(2009) 

Current 
utilisation/ 
occupancy1 

Maximum 
capacity  
(3 sessions/day) 

Projected 
demand 
(2013/14) 

Comment 

Beeston 10 40      

Halifax 10 40      

Huddersfield 10 40      

Seacroft  
(B ward) 

10 40      

Dewsbury  48      

Wakefield  48      

Seacroft 
(R&S ward) 

34 136      

SJUH 
(Wards 55/53) 

27 110     
17 adult stations 
5 Hep B stations  
5 paediatric stations 

TOTALS  502 492 98%  558  

                                            
1
 Demand divided by capacity 

P
a
g
e
 5

8



APPENDIX 1 
LTHT RENAL CENTRE / SATELLITE UNITS – SUMMARY INFORMATION  

 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

9



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Children’s heart surgery centres in England

Draft service specification standards

September 2009

Safe and Sustainable
Paediatric Cardiac Surgery Services

Page 61



02 Page 62



i. Welcome from the Chair of the working group

ii. Background to the Safe and Sustainable programme

iii. Draft service specification standards

iv. Related standards

v. Appendix A:  Membership of the working group

vi. Appendix B:  List of children’s heart surgery centres in England

vii. Glossary (words in bold throughout this document appear in the glossary)

viii. How to make your views known

Contents

03Page 63



In 2006, a national workshop attended by

children’s heart surgeons and cardiologists,

other NHS staff and patient representatives

concluded that the current configuration of

children’s heart surgery services in England

was not sustainable. In response to this view

the NHS Medical Director, Professor Sir Bruce Keogh, asked the

National Specialised Commissioning Group to deliver

recommendations that will ensure a safe and sustainable

children’s heart surgery service in England. This is called the

Safe and Sustainable programme, and its motivation is to

deliver the best possible care for children and their families

into the future. 

Welcome

04 Page 64



The Safe and Sustainable programme is
overseen by a steering group chaired by 
Dr Patricia Hamilton, Director of Medical
Education for England and Immediate Past
President of the Royal College of
Paediatrics and Child Health.

The steering group has asked me to chair a
working group that has been tasked with
developing a framework of service standards
to inform and guide the process for future
service configuration and future service
delivery. Members of the working group
are listed in this document.  I would like to
acknowledge the contribution of members
of previous reviews of children’s heart
surgery services. Our work builds upon their
previous recommendations, most notably the
report of the Paediatric and Congenital
Cardiac Services Review Group in 20031.

The standards working group will:

• examine existing standards, including
international standards

• develop standards that will ensure that
children’s heart surgery centres are of the
highest quality, responsive and sustainable.

We will also identify the available evidence
base for our recommendations and
describe how centres will be measured on
their compliance against standards in the
future, though in this draft working
document we wish to emphasise the
standards we aspire to achieve. 

My vision for children that need heart
operations is nothing less than a world-class
service and the very best possible outcomes.
And to deliver this vision we need the
surgeons who operate on these children
and the teams who support them to be
working to world-class standards.  The draft
standards in this document envisage a
model of care that delivers as much care
and treatment as close as possible to where
children and their families live. This
requires the surgical centres, local services
and patients and their families, to work
together to answer the question:

How do we achieve the very best, world
class service? 

This working document offers a first draft of
these standards and we now invite all those
with an interest in children’s heart surgery
services to give us their views on this draft
by 10 November 2009. You can find out how
to do this at the back of this document.

I look forward to hearing your views.

Mr William Brawn
Consultant Paediatric Cardiac Surgeon
Chair of the Standards Working Group for
the Safe and Sustainable Paediatric Cardiac
Surgery Service Programme

05

1 Report of the Paediatric and Congenital Cardiac Services Review Group, 2003, Department of Health; gateway ref: 1981

Page 65



On behalf of the NHS Management Board, the NHS Medical

Director has asked the National Specialised Commissioning

Group to undertake a review of the provision of children’s

heart surgical services in England with a view to

reconfiguration. This is called the Safe and Sustainable

Paediatric Cardiac Surgery Programme. 

The programme is led by a steering group
that includes representation from the
following:

• Children’s Heart Federation and lay
representation

• British Congenital Cardiac Association

• Society for Cardiothoracic Surgery in
Great Britain and Ireland

• Association of Cardiothoracic Anaesthetists

• Royal College of Paediatrics and Child
Health

• Paediatric Intensive Care Society

• NHS commissioners

• NHS public health doctors

• NHS Strategic Health Authorities

• NHS in Scotland 

• Health Commission Wales

• Department of Health.

There are currently 11 children’s heart
surgery centres in England. The centres are
shown in Appendix B.

The programme aims to deliver robust
proposals that will ensure that children’s
heart surgery services are world class into
the future. We believe that children and
their families will benefit from:

• a model of care that plans and delivers
services around the needs of the child
and which takes account of the
transition to adult services

• improved communication and planning
between specialised surgical centres and
local hospitals that links care in an
effective “hub-and-spoke” model

• a network of specialist surgical centres
that collaborate with each other in the
interests of clinical care, audit and research

• an NHS workforce that is highly trained
and expert in the care and treatment of
children and young people. 

Background to the Safe and

Sustainable Programme

06 Page 66



07

The draft standards that are set out in this
working document form the quality
framework that we envisage the centres
will be working to in order to deliver a high
quality, world class service. We welcome
your views on the draft standards and we
encourage you to make your views known. 

The working group recommends that all of
the draft standards in this document, if
agreed, should be mandatory in all
designated surgical centres, though it may
be appropriate for some standards to
become mandatory over a period of time.

The draft standards in this document do
not apply to services for Grown-Ups with
Congenital Heart Disease (GUCH services)
as the NHS is developing a separate set of
standards for GUCH services2. However, we
have included draft standards that address
the transition from child to GUCH services
so that both sets of standards join-up in
the interests of the patient.

No decisions have yet been made on the
future shape of the children’s heart surgery
service in England, but the proposals may
recommend that some existing centres stop
performing surgery and interventional
procedures in the interests of achieving the
best possible clinical outcomes. The
proposals will be developed in 2010 by
NHS commissioners working in
consultation with local stakeholders.

Once the proposals have been considered
by the steering group we will hold a
formal public consultation in 2010 so that
all stakeholders have the opportunity to
comment.

Further information on the Safe and

Sustainable programme including terms of
reference and minutes of meetings can be
found on our website
www.specialisedcommissioning.nhs.uk or
by contacting us (our contact details are
given at the back of this document).

Throughout this document, the term
‘centres’ refers to a number of NHS hospitals
that will be designated in 2010 as specialised
providers of children's heart surgery services. 

2 Designation of Specialist Service Providers for Grown-Ups with Congenital Heart Disease (GUCH)/ Adults with 
Congenital Heart Disease (ACHD)”, East of England Specialised Commissioning Group, 2009 

Page 67



Draft service specification

standards

08

Standard A – The network approach

We believe that care for children who need heart surgery is

improved when all of the NHS services that treat them work

together, and communicate with each other.

A1 Centres will agree pathways of care with their local services that
reflect the principle that as much care and treatment should be
provided as close as possible to the child’s home, while ensuring
the best possible outcome for the child.

A2 Centres should provide comprehensive care which is linked to
local services as well as other tertiary centres. The centres are the
hub of the clinical network providing the full range of surgery
and interventional cardiology for all congenital heart conditions,
and coordinating the care for children in their catchment area.

A3 Centres will collaborate with each other to manage demand
(reflecting that collectively they provide a national service) and to
develop and embed best practice and benchmark performance. 

A4 Centres will establish models of care and service pathway
mapping that will ensure quality care along the entire patient
pathway.

A5 The centres will agree policies for referral criteria and discharge
criteria between primary, secondary and tertiary care.

A6 There will be written guidelines for the centres covering
communication between clinicians, and between clinicians and
parents / carers. The guidelines will be agreed with local referring
paediatricians, paediatric cardiologists and patient groups.

Page 68



09

A7 There will be specific guidelines within each network for the
transfer of children requiring heart surgery.

A8 Centres will provide active leadership and participation in their
clinical networks in order to:

• manage and develop further referral, care and treatment 
pathways, policies, procedures, performance monitoring and 
audit, professional training and development

• facilitate the development of as much care and treatment as 
possible close to the child’s home. 

A9 Children transferring between services will be accompanied by
high quality information, including a health records summary
(with responsible clinician’s name) and a management or follow
up plan when appropriate. 

A10 Children who require assessment for heart transplantation
(including implantation of a mechanical device as a bridge to
heart transplant) will be referred to a designated paediatric
cardiothoracic transplant centre.

A11 The centres will agree clinical guidelines with their local networks,
based upon nationally established standards. They will be
responsible for advising colleagues within the network on the care
for patients requiring associated non-cardiac interventions.

Page 69



10 Page 70



11

Standard B – Prenatal screening

We believe that babies with heart conditions and their mothers

are best served by a specialised patient pathway that begins care

before birth.

B1 Centres will agree and establish protocols with maternity and
neonatal units in their catchment area for the care and treatment
of pregnant women whose fetus has been diagnosed with a
heart condition. The protocols must ensure that pregnant women
are referred to the relevant specialist as early as possible, and
that accurate diagnosis is made promptly.

B2 If the standard prenatal scan indicates that the fetus may have a
heart problem, the mother should be offered a specialist heart
scan as soon as possible, and in any event within 1 week.

B3 If the heart scan suggests that the fetus has a cardiac lesion,
there should be a full medical assessment as soon as possible, and
in any event within 1 week of the heart scan.

B4 All high-risk mothers (for example, where there is a history of
congenital heart disease in the mother, father or previous child)
should be offered a specialist heart scan at 18 -20 weeks.

B5 Parents who have been told that their expected child has a heart
condition should have access to non-directive counselling and
support to help them interpret the diagnosis and possible
outcomes. Parents should also be given contact details for
relevant local and national support groups at this point.

B6 A paediatric heart surgeon or paediatric cardiologist will be
available for antenatal counselling for congenital cardiac anomalies.

B7 At diagnosis, a plan should be agreed between the centre, the
maternity unit, the neonatal team and the parents about
arrangements for the delivery of the baby. 

B8 If the plan is for the delivery of the baby at the local maternity
unit this should include arrangements for the transfer of the
baby to the centre. An experienced paediatrician should be
present at the delivery and a neonatal team must be available to
care for the baby whilst awaiting transfer. There should be a
facility to deliver the baby close to the centre if necessary (for
example, at a linked obstetric unit).

Page 71



12

Standard C – Making choices

We believe that NHS services should fully support parents and

carers in making decisions about their child’s treatment.

C1 Centres should encourage parents and carers to actively
participate at every stage in their child’s care.

C2 Parents and carers should be helped to understand their child’s
condition, the effect it may have on their child’s health and
future life and the treatment that they will receive.

C3 Information should be made available to parents and carers in a
wide range of formats and on more than one occasion. It should
be clear, understandable, and culturally sensitive and evidence
based. When given verbally, information given should be
precisely documented.

C4 When considering treatment options, parents and carers need to
understand the potential risks as well as the benefits, the likely
results of treatment and the possible consequences of their
decisions so that they are able to give informed consent.

C5 Where surgery is planned, the child and their parents or carers
should have the opportunity to visit the centre and to meet the
clinicians who will be responsible for their care, including an
opportunity to discuss the planned operation with a consultant
paediatric heart surgeon who will obtain consent for the procedure.

Page 72



13

C6 Parents, carers and their General Practitioners should be given
details of all who they can contact in the clinical team should
they have any questions or concerns. They should have
immediate, 24-hour access to a member of the clinical team for
advice, information and support.

C7 Parents and carers should receive support and cooperation in
obtaining further opinions.

C8 Parents and carers whose first language is not English must be
provided with appropriate interpreting and translation services.

C9 Parents and carers should be given details of available support
groups. Involvement of these groups should be available early in
the assessment process.

C10 Parents and carers should be given an agreed, written care plan
that includes notes of discussions with the clinical team, the
treatment options agreed and written record of consents.

Page 73



14

Standard D – The patient and family experience

We believe that in addition to the best possible treatment,

children and their families should have the best possible

experience of their hospital.

D1 Each child should have a named cardiac liaison nurse who is
responsible for coordinating their care, and who acts as a liaison
between the clinical team and the child throughout their care.

D2 There must be facilities in place to ensure easy and convenient
access for parents and carers. Facilities and support include
accommodation for the whole family to stay at the hospital and
for parents to stay with their child in the ward 24 hours a day
when appropriate, access to refreshments, and to be able to play
and interact with their child (and their other children). There
should be a quiet room available on the ward or centre
completely separate from general family facilities.

D3 There must be facilities, including access to maternity staff, that
allow the mothers of new-born babies who are admitted as
emergencies to stay with their baby for reasons of bonding,
establishing breast feeding and the emotional health of the
mother and baby. 

D4 There should be dedicated clinical facilities that are designed
around the needs of children (diagnostic, ward, theatre, staffing,
support).

D5 Children should have access to general resources including toys,
books, magazines, computers and other age appropriate activity
coordinated by play therapy teams.

Page 74



15

D6 Parents and carers should be provided with accessible
information about the service and the hospital, including
information about amenities in the local area, travelling, parking
and public transport.

D7 Children, their parents and carers should be encouraged to
provide feedback on the quality of care and their experience of
the service, and they should be encouraged to participate in
national Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMS) surveys.
Centres must make this feedback openly available, and they must
demonstrate how they take this feedback into account when
planning and delivering their services.

D8 Staff in the multi-disciplinary team should have training and be
supported in using communication skills. Staff should be trained
in breaking bad news.

D9 There must be access to culturally appropriate support services
including faith support, social workers, interpreters, clinical
psychologists and bereavement counsellors. These should be
made available at the specialist centre and links to facilitate this
at a local level should also be developed.

D10 Parents, carers and support groups will be regularly updated with
appropriate information on issues of clinical governance and the
results of local and national audits.

D11 There should be formal arrangements for addressing complaints
and other comments made by children, parents and carers.

Page 75



16

Standard E – Access to services

We believe that heart surgery services should be planned and

delivered around the needs of the child.

E1 There will be 24 hour, 7 day a week access to paediatric cardiac
surgical advice and care. The consultant on duty will be available
by phone for urgent advice and able to attend their own centre
within 30 minutes.

E2 Each centre will provide a full 24 hour emergency service,
sufficient to meet the needs of its catchment population.

E3 Each centre will provide interventional cardiology. This should
not be undertaken without on-site surgical back up.

E4 Each cardiology team will have a lead interventionist who is
responsible for assuring the quality of the cardiology team’s work
overall, including involvement in the planning of procedures and
the audit of activity; taking steps to eliminate occasional practice;
and ensuring that interventionists have received training and are
competent in the procedures that they undertake. 

E5 Each centre will be co-located with anaesthetists trained in
paediatric cardiac anaesthesia.

E6 Each centre will be co-located with paediatric critical care services.

E7 All children requiring investigation and treatment will receive
that care from staff trained in looking after children and trained
specifically according to the requirements of their profession or
discipline.

E8 There must be sufficient 24 hour access to the complete range of
supportive paediatric medical and surgical services and other
resources required for end to end management of the child’s
needs for the whole patient journey including Paediatric Intensive
Care Units (PICU), accredited diagnostic laboratory services
(Clinical Pathology Accreditation UK) and blood transfusion.

Page 76



17

E9 Centres will have on-site access to:

• Experienced paediatric Intensivists

• Experienced PICU and High Dependency Unit (HDU) nurses

• Extracorporeal mechanical support 
(for support post-cardiac surgery)

• Transoesophageal Echocardiography (TOE)

• Computed Tomography and Magnetic Resonance Imaging (+/- GA)

• Paediatric competent radiologist

• Infection control nurse experienced in the needs of paediatric 
cardiac surgery patients

• Paediatric pain control nurse cover

• Paediatric pharmacist cover

• Paediatric physiotherapy

• Play therapy staff

• Paediatric dietician

• Paediatric social worker

• Hospital /  school teacher

• Child and adolescent mental health professionals with 
dedicated sessions in congenital heart disease (for patients 
and staff). 

Page 77



18

E10 Centres must be able to provide (in accordance with the
Framework of Critical Inter-Dependencies3):

• Specialised Paediatric Surgery: a transfer to, or visit from, a
paediatric surgical specialist within 4 hours; it is desirable that
this service is co-located but may not be practical in all
configurations

• Paediatric Ear, Nose and Throat (Airway): a transfer to, or visit
from, a paediatric ENT specialist by the next working day

• Paediatric Neurology: a transfer to, or visit from, a paediatric
neurology specialist by the next working day

• Paediatric Respiratory Medicine: a transfer to, or visit from, a
paediatric respiratory specialist by the next working day

• Neonatology: a transfer to, or visit from, a neonatal specialist
by the next working day

• Nephrology: a transfer to, or visit from, a nephrology specialist
by the next working day

• Clinical Haematology: a transfer to, or visit from, a clinical
haematology specialist by the next working day

E11 Admission for planned surgery will be booked for a specific date
rather than from a waiting list.

E12 Same-day cancellations for non-clinical reasons of elective cases
shall not be more than 0.8 per cent. There shall not be more than
0.8 per cent of patients who are not offered a binding date for
operation within 28 days of the cancellation.

E13 Transfers in and out of the centres should be dictated by
individual patient need.

E14 Un-planned readmission to Paediatric Intensive Care Unit (PICU)
should only occur in less than 10 per cent of admissions.

Page 78



19

E15 All paediatric cardiac surgical cases should be carried out on
theatre lists with appropriately trained staff.

E16 Nursing staff numbers will be sufficient to allow HDU nursing and
one to one PICU nursing.

E17 Sufficient staff will be available to provide in-patient beds, critical
care beds, theatre capacity and service provision.

a) There must be sufficient access to on-site beds (suitably staffed)
to guarantee 100 per cent acceptance rates for emergency referrals

b) There must be sufficient access to formal cardiac surgery beds
(suitably staffed) to guarantee 100 per cent acceptance rates

When a centre cannot admit a patient for whatever reason it is
the responsibility of that centre to find another bed (suitably
staffed) at another centre.

E18 There must be an appropriate mechanism for arranging retrieval and
back transfer of patients which takes into account the following:

• clinical transfers should be arranged in a timely manner
according to patient need 

• critically ill children must be transferred/retrieved in accordance
with the standards set out within the designation standards for
Paediatric Intensive Care services4.

E19 Sufficient capacity will be available to allow urgent cases to be
accommodated in daytime lists by providing a dedicated paediatric
cardiac surgery operating theatre with access for emergency cases.

E20 There should be arrangements for accepting patients transferred by
incoming helicopter and fixed wing aircraft. It is not mandatory for
centres to have on-site landing facilities, though this is desirable.

E21 There must be an appropriate network of care to facilitate
repatriation in a timely fashion. Acute beds must not be used for
this purpose once patients have been deemed fit for discharge
from acute cardiac surgical care.

3 “Commissioning Safe and Sustainable Specialised Paediatric Services: A Framework of Critical Inter-Dependencies” 
Department of Health, 2006, Gateway Ref: 10044 

4 Currently draft with a Paediatric Intensive Care Society working party for consultation

Page 79



20 Page 80



21

Standard F – Age appropriate care

We believe that children and adolescents should receive care that

is appropriate to their age and which facilitates the transition to

adult services.

F1 Centres should make the patient aware and responsible for their
condition from an appropriate age.

F2 The patient’s management plan should be reviewed at each
consultation to make sure that it continues to be relevant to their
particular stage of development.

F3 When the patient begins school or moves to a new school the
cardiac liaison service should be available to provide information
or visit the school in person at the parent’s request, in order to
help teachers and other staff understand the patient’s condition.

F4 Centres should provide the patient with information on relevant
life-style issues at an appropriate stage and in a way that is
accessible. Parents should be involved in decisions over timing of
this information.

F5 Young people should have the opportunity to be seen by the
consultant for part of the consultation without a parent being
present.

F6 Appropriate “transition clinic” arrangements should be in place
with designated centres for Grown-Ups with Congenital Heart
Disease to ensure a seamless pathway of care, led jointly by
paediatric and adult cardiologists. There should be access to
adolescent beds for the care and treatment of adolescents and
young people. These adolescent beds may be on site or off site or
part of a broad adolescent unit.

F7 There will not be a fixed point of transition between children’s and
adult services but the process should be initiated no later than 14
years of age. Children, parents and carers should be fully involved
in discussions around the clinical issues. The views, opinions and
feelings of the child should be fully heard and considered.

Page 81



22

Standard G – Excellent Care

We believe that children are entitled to the best possible care and

treatment, delivered by exceptional clinical and nursing staff.

G1 All clinicians and nursing staff will take part in a programme of
continuing professional development.

G2 All clinical teams will operate within a robust and documented
clinical governance framework that includes undertaking clinical
audit.

G3 All members of the Multi-Disciplinary Team (MDT) will take part
in continuing education and continuing professional
development. Training Programmes will where possible submit to
regular external review of content, facilities and results. Staff will
have an annual appraisal and re-licensing and re-validation
consistent with their appropriate professional registration.  There
must be appropriate resources to support educational needs
(such as seminar rooms and technical equipment).

G4 Each centre will have a robust internal database and outcome
monitoring tool, with standardised coding. All aspects of clinical
practice where recognised standards exist, or improvements
might be made, should be considered for audit. Individual and
collective outcomes will be analysed, deficiencies identified and
corrected by formal audit. At least one audit of clinical practice
of demonstrable clinical significance should occur annually.

G5 The patient’s outcome will be assessed with results monitored and
compared against national and international outcome statistics. 

G6 Centres will participate in national programmes for audit and
contribute to national databases:

1. National Central Cardiac Audit Database

2.  In-house computerised database 

There must be a specific paediatric cardiac surgery/cardiology data
collection manager responsible for timely audit and database
submissions, no more than 3 months after patient is discharged.

Page 82



23

G7 Systems will be in place to allow the managed introduction of
new treatments and techniques into the centre. The centres will
follow mandatory NICE guidance and work within the constraints
set within relevant NICE Interventional Procedures Guidance5.

G8 Centres will collaborate at a clinical, audit, research and
administrative level, and will take part in formal inter-unit peer
review. 

G9 Each centre should have, and regularly up-date, a research
strategy and programme which documents current and planned
research activity, the resources needs to support the activity and
objectives for development.

G10 The research strategy shall include a commitment to working in
partnership with other centres in research activity which aims to
address research issues which are important for the further
development and improvement of clinical practice, for the
benefits of children and their families.

G11 Each centre shall strive to continuously improve its research
infrastructure, and such improvements will be monitored regularly.

G12 Each centre will have a dedicated management group for the
internal management and coordination of service delivery. The
group will comprise the different departments and disciplines
delivering the service.

5 A summary of how NICE develops interventional procedures guidance is available at www.nice.org.uk/guidance

Page 83



24

Standard H – Team delivered

We believe that the standard of care is at its highest when the skills

and experience of the whole clinical team is brought to each case.

H1 The management of each patient should be discussed and planned
at combined cardiac surgery and cardiology MDT meetings to
ensure the best possible care and outcomes for children.

H2 Patients will be cared for by MDTs containing adequate numbers
of specifically trained staff.  The team shall include the following
personnel:

• Clinicians directly responsible for patient care, including
paediatric cardiac surgeons, paediatric cardiologists and
paediatric anaesthetists / critical care specialists, together with
junior staff in each of these specialties. All consultant clinicians
are expected to have expertise in the management of patients
with paediatric cardiac disease

• Paediatric cardiac liaison nurses

• Dietician, pharmacist, physiotherapist, social worker

• Clinicians involved in specialist diagnostic services, including
paediatric cardiac radiology, histopathology and microbiology

The composition of the MDT can be adjusted according to the
needs of different aspects of the service (for example, assessment,
post-operative care, clinico-pathological and audit meetings).

H3 Centres must provide appropriately trained and experienced
medical staff sufficient to provide 24 hour, 7 day cover within
legally compliant rotas.

H4 The attendance and activities of the MDT should be maintained
in a register.

Page 84



25

H5 There must be a 24 hour, seven day a week cover by paediatric
cardiology consultants who should do ward rounds on all
paediatric cardiology patients on a daily basis. There must also be
7 day access to interventional cardiology medical cover on an
emergency or elective basis.

H6 The paediatric intensive care unit should be staffed on a 24 hr
basis by PICU consultants with appropriate skills in paediatric
cardiac critical care.

Consultant allocation to paediatric cardiology/surgery care will
allow adequate clinical cover of the centre including on-call
responsibility, management, audit, teaching, retrieval, follow up,
research and development.

H7 Each centre will have a continuous and documented availability
of formally trained paediatric cardiac anaesthetists including a
specialist on-call rota which is separate from the intensive care
rota. Cardiac anaesthetists involved in cardiac surgical services
should have experience and training in the peri-operative care of
the paediatric cardiac patient.

H8 There will be sufficient recovery staff with experience in
paediatric cardiac surgery to allow a constant throughput of
paediatric cardiac patients. Full monitoring of the paediatric
cardiac surgical patient should be available in the immediate
post-operative period.

H9 There must be an appropriate number of paediatric cardiac liaison
nurses within each centre. The Steering Group will make a
recommendation on the minimum number of cardiac liaison nurses.

Page 85



26

Standard I – Safe and Sustainable

We believe that children’s heart surgery services must be safe and

sustainable into the future, taking account of the need to avoid

occasional surgical practice. 

I1

I2

I3

Each centre must perform a
minimum number of surgical
procedures each year.

All children requiring heart surgery
will be managed by consultant
paediatric surgeons.

Each centre must have a minimum
number of paediatric surgeons.

a) Paediatric cardiac surgeon is
defined as having two years
dedicated training in a designated
paediatric heart surgical centre.

b) No new appointments without
the equivalent of a formal two year
fellowship training.

Evidence suggests that centres that
perform a higher number of surgical
procedures have better clinical outcomes.
A summary of the evidence that relates
specifically to children’s heart surgery is
available on our website
www.specialisedcommissioning.nhs.uk

To avoid occasional practice the Steering
Group will make a recommendation on 
the minimum number of annual surgical
procedures per centre.

To ensure that centres are able to
implement a legally compliant rota and to
ensure that centres can deliver the range
of surgical procedures the Steering Group
will make a recommendation on the
minimum number of surgeons within each
centre.

Page 86



27

Related standards

Centres must also meet these related standards and best practice

guidance in full:

Centres must take these standards and best practice guidance

into account: 

National Standards for the Care of
Critically Ill Children

Improving Services for Children in Hospital

“Transition: Getting It Right For Young
People”

The National Service Framework for
Children, Young People and Maternity
Services

Recommendations of the British Paediatric
Cardiac Association for Therapeutic Cardiac
Catheterisation in Congenital Heart Disease

2009, Paediatric Intensive Care Society;
(currently draft) 

2007, Commission for Healthcare, Audit
and Inspection

2006, Department of Health; product
number 271558; gateway ref: 5914

2004, Department of Health, and
Department of Education and Skills;
product number: 40496; gateway ref: 3779

2002, British Cardiac Society

“Designation of Specialist Service
Providers for Grown-Ups with Congenital
Heart Disease (GUCH)/ Adults with
Congenital Heart Disease (ACHD)” 

National Heart and Lung Transplant
Standards

National Service Framework for Long
Term Conditions

2009, East of England Specialised
Commissioning Group

2006, National Specialist Commissioning
Advisory Group

2005, Department of Health; product
number 265109; gateway ref: 2005

Page 87



Appendix A:  Membership of the Standards Working Group

Appendix

Name

Mr William Brawn (Chair)

Dr Martin Ashton-Key

Dr Geoffrey Carroll

Steve Collins

Michaela Dixon

Professor Martin Elliott

Jeremy Glyde

Dr Kate Grebenik

Mr Leslie Hamilton

Dr Sue Hobbins

Dr Ian Jenkins

Anne Keatley-Clarke

Dr Shakeel Qureshi

Peter Ripley

Dr Graham Stuart

Constituency

British Congenital Cardiac
Association (President)

Specialised Commissioning /
Public Health

NHS in Wales

National Specialised
Commissioning Team

Nursing

British Congenital Cardiac
Association

National Specialised
Commissioning Team

Association of Cardiothoracic
Anaesthetists

Society for Cardiothoracic
Surgery in Great Britain and
Ireland (President)

Royal College of Paediatrics &
Child Health

Paediatric Intensive Care
Society (President)

Patients and public

British Congenital Cardiac
Association (President Elect)

Ambulance NHS Trust

British Congenital Cardiac
Association

Role

Consultant Paediatric Cardiac Surgeon,
Birmingham Children's Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust

Medical Adviser, National Specialised
Commissioning Team

Medical Director, Health Commission Wales

Deputy Director Policy and Coordination,
NSC Team

University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation
Trust

Consultant Paediatric Cardiac Surgeon,
Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children
NHS Trust

Programme Manager, NSC Team

Consultant Anaesthetist, Oxford Radcliffe
Hospitals NHS Trust

Consultant Cardiac Surgeon, Newcastle 
upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Consultant Paediatrician, South London
Healthcare NHS Trust

Consultant Intensivist, University Hospitals
Bristol NHS Foundation Trust

Chief Executive, Children's Heart Federation 

Consultant Paediatric Cardiologist, Guy’s 
and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust

Assistant Director of Operations, 
East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust

Adult Cardiologist, University Hospitals Bristol
NHS Foundation Trust

28

Appendix B:  Children’s heart surgery centres in England

• Freeman Hospital, Newcastle

• Leeds Teaching Hospital

• Alder Hey Children’s Hospital, Liverpool

• Glenfield Hospital, Leicester

• Birmingham Children’s Hospital

• Oxford John Radcliffe Hospital

• Bristol Royal Hospital for Children

• Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children, London

• Royal Brompton Hospital, London

• Evelina Children’s Hospital, London

• Southampton General Hospital

Page 88



Glossary

Page 04 National Specialised Commissioning Group:
The group that oversees specialised
commissioning in the NHS in England. 

Page 06 NHS Management Board: The group that
supports the NHS Chief Executive in
managing NHS performance and shaping
policy and strategy in the NHS.

Page 06 NHS strategic health authorities: There
are 10 strategic health authorities in
England, responsible for the local
management of the NHS in their regions.

Page 06 ‘Hub and spoke’: A model of care that has
a specialist centre (the hub) working very
closely with a number of local centres that
each provide the non-specialist element of
care (the spokes).

Page 06 NHS commissioners: NHS commissioners
ensure that health services effectively
meet the needs of the population.
Commissioners assess the health needs of
the population, develop a strategic plan,
procure health services from health
providers and manage their performance
in the delivery of services. 

Page 07 congenital heart disease: An abnormality
of the heart present since birth.

Page 08 primary care: Health services provided in
the local community, such as General
Practitioners and dentists. 

Page 08 secondary care: Health services provided
in hospitals, either on a planned or
emergency basis.

Page 08 tertiary care: Health services that are
provided on a specialised basis in
hospitals, for rare and complex conditions.

Page 08 Paediatrician: A medically qualified doctor
who specialises in the diagnosis and
treatment of children.

Page 08 Cardiologist: A medically qualified doctor
who specialises in the investigation,
diagnosis and treatment of heart disease.
Cardiologists do not perform surgery, but
may undertake interventional cardiology.

Page 11 neonatal: refers to new born infants.

Page 11 cardiac lesion: An abnormality of the
heart.

Page 16 Anaesthetist: A medically qualified doctor
who induces sleep during surgical
procedures.

Page 17 Intensivist: A medically qualified doctor
who specialises in treatment in intensive
care units. 

Page 17 Extracorporeal mechanical support:
A device that removes blood from the
patient’s body, introduces oxygen into the
blood, and then pumps the oxygenated
blood back into the patient’s body.

Page 17 Transoesophageal Echocardiography:
A specialised means of taking ultrasound
images of the heart.

Page 17 Computed Tomography and Magnetic
Resonance Imaging: Specialised methods 
of taking images of the internal body.

Page 17 Radiologist: Medically qualified doctors
who specialise in the use of imaging
techniques to diagnose and treat
conditions.

Page 22 National Central Cardiac Audit Database:
A database available to the public that
provides information on every children’s
heart surgical centre in the United
Kingdom, including the number and
range of procedures they carry out and
survival rates for the most common types
of treatment.

Page 23 National Institute for Health and Clinical
Excellence (NICE): An independent
organisation responsible for providing
national guidance on promoting good
health, and preventing and treating ill
health.

29Page 89



30

How to make your 

views known
We value the opinions of everyone concerned and are
keen for you to contribute to the development of these
draft standards.  You can do so in the following ways:

• write to Jeremy Glyde, Programme Manager, National
Specialised Commissioning Team, 2nd floor, Southside,
105 Victoria Street, London SW1E 6QT

• call Jeremy on 020 7932 3958

• e-mail ChildHeart@nsscg.nhs.uk

Visit our website www.specialisedcommissioning.nhs.uk

Page 90



31Page 91



www.specialisedcommissioning.nhs.uk

Page 92



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

September 2009 

Welcome 
 
Welcome to the first e-bulletin for the Safe and Sustainable review of 

neurosurgical services. 

 

The aim of this and future e-bulletins is to up-date you on progress, key 

developments and diary dates, and remind you how you can contribute to the review.  

The Safe and Sustainable Steering Group wants to hear from as many people as 

possible, so please pass this bulletin onto your colleagues.   

 

Building a world class service 
 
In 2009, the NHS Medical Director, Professor Sir Bruce Keogh asked the National 

Specialised Commissioning Group (NSCG) 

neurosurgical services in England. 

 

The aim of the review is to deliver, within two years, robust proposals that will secure 

a safe, sustainable and world class service for children and their families.   

 

The NSCG has established a Steering Group to lead the review, chaired by Mr Paul 

Chumas, a consultant paediatric neurosurgeon and former chair of the British 

Paediatric Neurosurgeons Group.  The Steering Group will report regularly to the 

NSCG. 

 

The Steering Group is supported by a working group, responsible for developing 

service specification 

jointly chaired by Mr Ian Pople, a consultant paediatric neurosurgeon and member of 

the Society of British Neurological Surgeons and Dr Geoffrey Carroll, Medical 

Director of Health Commission Wales. 

Page 93



- 2 - 

 

Secretariat support for the review is provided by the National Specialised 

Commissioning Team. 

 

Full details of the membership of these groups, terms of reference and meeting 

papers can be found at www.specialisedcommissioning.nhs.uk or by contacting 

the review team (contact details are provided below). 

 

Review update 
 
The focus for the Safe and Sustainable Steering Group in 2009 is to: 

 ical services including levels 

of need and activity in each of the 15 centres in England 

 develop criteria for a formal designation 

neurosurgical services meet service specification standards, as well as meet 

national demand 

 develop service specification standards that will form a national quality framework 

within which childre  

 

services. 

 

The Steering Group will be asking for views on the draft designation and service 

specification standards at its first national stakeholder event in November 2009.  See 

the item below for event details. 

 

Delivering recommendations 
 
The process for developing recommendations for future service configuration will be 

overseen by the National Specialised Commissioning Group (NSCG). In 2010 the 

NSCG 

NHS commissioners to develop recommendations for future service configuration. 

These recommendations will be worked up in consultation with local stakeholders, 

and the NSCG will ensure that recommendations are consistent with the overall aims 

of the Safe and Sustainable programme. 

 

Once the NSCG has considered the recommendations, it will seek views and 

opinions from all stakeholders via a comprehensive public consultation. 

Page 94



- 3 - 

 

National stakeholder event 
 
The NSCG and the Steering Group want the process for review to be inclusive and 

for all stakeholders to be able to contribute to the work of the review. A series of 

stakeholder events will be held over 2009 and 2010, starting with a national event in 

London on 30 November 2009.    

 

Then secure your place at the first national stakeholder event for the Safe and 

Sustainable chi by contacting Robin Matheou 

on 020 7932 9122 or robin.matheou@nsscg.nhs.uk 

 

Event details are as follows: 

Date:   Monday, 30 November 2009 

Time:  From 9.30am to 4.30pm 

Venue: Dexter House, No.2 Royal Mint Court, Tower Hill, London, EC3N 4QN. 

 

     

Have your say 
 
The Safe and Sustainable Steering Group wants to hear from anyone who has 

 

 

You can do so by: 

 writing to Jeremy Glyde, Programme Manager, National Specialised 

Commissioning Team, 2nd floor Southside, 105 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 

6QT 

 call Jeremy on 020 7932 3958 

 e-mailing ChildNeuro@nsscg.nhs.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th October, 2009 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

THURSDAY, 17TH SEPTEMBER, 2009 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor R Brett in the Chair 

 Councillors A Carter, J L Carter, 
R Finnigan, S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand, 
J Procter, K Wakefield and J Monaghan 

 
  Councillor R Lewis – Non-voting advisory member 
 

85 Exclusion of the Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during the 
consideration of appendices 2 and 3 to the report referred to in Minute No. 87, 
under the terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information, as disclosure could prejudice the 
commercial interests of the Council and other outside bodies. 

      
86 Late Items  

There were no late items submitted for consideration, however, a revised 
version of exempt appendix 2 and exempt appendix 3 to agenda item 5 were 
circulated prior to the meeting (Minute No. 87 refers).  
 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

87 Leeds United Thorp Arch Academy  
Further to Minute No. 73, 26th August 2009, the Director of Resources, the 
Director of City Development and the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate 
Governance) submitted a joint report regarding an approach received from 
Leeds United Football Club with respect to possible Council involvement in 
the purchase of the Thorp Arch training facility. 
 
A revised version of exempt appendix 2 and appendix 3 to the report were 
circulated prior to the meeting for Members’ consideration. 
 
Following consideration of appendices 2 and 3 to the report, designated as 
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which were 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the Director of Resources, the Director of City Development and 

the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) be authorised to 
continue negotiations with the Club with a view to agreeing terms that 
incorporate the conditions now specified by the Executive Board; and  

(b) That, subject to such terms as finally negotiated being agreed by the 
Chair, the Executive Member for Development and Regeneration, the 
Leader of the Morley Borough Independent Group and the Leader of 
the Labour Group, the officers named above be given delegated 

Page 97



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th October, 2009 

 

authority to enter into any documentation necessary to conclude the 
relevant transactions. 

 
 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  21st September 2009 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 28th September 2009 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12.00 noon on 
29th September 2009) 
 
 
 

Page 98



APPENDIX 5 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10 – updated October 2009 

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date – 20 October 2009 

Scrutiny Inquiry – 
promoting good public 
health 

Session 1: 
To consider issues associated with improving 
sexual health and reducing the level of teenage 
pregnancies, such as:  

• The role of the Council and its NHS health 
partners in developing and delivering 
appropriate strategies that: 
o Raises general public awareness of the 

health risks associated with poor sexual 
health and the impact of teenage 
pregnancies. 

o Identifies and targets those groups most at 
risk of poor sexual health and teenage 
conceptions. 

o Promotes easy access to associated 
services and treatments. 

o Assesses the quality and effectiveness of 
associated services and treatments. 

• Progress against the recommendations 
identified in the Scrutiny Inquiry report – 
Improving Sexual Health Among Young People 
(April 2009). 

 

 RP/DP 

P
a
g
e
 9

9



APPENDIX 5 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10 – updated October 2009 

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date – 24 November 2009 

Scrutiny Inquiry – 
promoting good public 
health 

Session 2: 
To consider issues associated with reversing the 
rise in levels of obesity and promoting an 
increase in the levels of physical activity, such as:  

• The role of the Council and its NHS health 
partners in developing and delivering 
appropriate strategies that: 
o Raises general public awareness of the health 
risks associated with obesity and inactive 
lifestyles. 

o Identifies and targets those groups most at 
risk of becoming obese and leading inactive 
lifestyles. 

o Assesses the quality and effectiveness of 
services and treatments associated with 
obesity. 

o Promotes easy access to leisure facilities and 
activities. 

• The role of the Council in terms of its power of 
well-being through planning policies and 
associated enforcement/ control procedures. 

• The role of commercial sector partners in 
promoting healthier lifestyles. 

 

 RP/DP 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
0



APPENDIX 5 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10 – updated October 2009 

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date – 15 December 2009 

Update on local NHS 
priorities 

To consider an update on the previously identified 
priorities for each local NHS Trust. 

Updates from:  

• NHS Leeds 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Trust  

• Leeds Partnerships NHS 
Foundation Trust  

PM 

Quarterly Accountability 
Reports 

To receive quarter 2 performance reports  PM 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

To monitor progress against the recommendations 
agreed following previous Scrutiny Board inquiries. 

 MSR 

Health Scrutiny – 
Department of Health 
Guidance 

To receive and consider revised guidance 
associated with health scrutiny and any 
implications for local practice. 

Guidance due to be published in 
November 2009 

B 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   

P
a
g
e
 1

0
1



APPENDIX 5 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10 – updated October 2009 

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date – 19 January 2010 

Scrutiny Inquiry – 
promoting good public 
health 

Session 3: 
To consider issues associated with promoting 
responsible alcohol consumption, such as:  

• The role of the Council in terms of licensing 
policy and associated enforcement/ control 
procedures. 

• The role of the Council and its NHS health 
partners in developing and delivering an alcohol 
strategy that: 
o Raises general public awareness of the health 
risks associated with alcohol consumption. 

o Identifies and targets those groups most at 
risk from the affects of alcohol abuse, 
ensuring they have access to the most 
appropriate services and treatments. 

o Assesses the quality and effectiveness of 
services and treatments associated with 
reducing alcohol related harm. 

• The social responsibility role of breweries, 
retailers and licensees and how this shapes the 
consumption of alcohol in Leeds. 

 

 RP/DP 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
2



APPENDIX 5 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10 – updated October 2009 

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date – 16 February 2010 

Scrutiny Inquiry – 
promoting good public 
health 

Session 4: 
To consider issues associated with reducing the 
level of smoking , such as:  

• The role of the Council and its NHS health 
partners in developing and delivering 
appropriate strategies that: 
o Raises general public awareness of the 

health risks associated with smoking. 
o Identifies and targets those groups most at 

risk of smoking and smoking related 
illnesses. 

o Assesses the quality and effectiveness of 
services and treatments associated with 
smoking cessation. 

 

 B/RP 

Meeting date – 16 March 2010 

Update on local NHS 
priorities 

To consider an update on the previously identified 
priorities for each local NHS Trust. 

Updates from:  

• NHS Leeds 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Trust  

• Leeds Partnerships NHS 
Foundation Trust  

PM 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
3



APPENDIX 5 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10 – updated October 2009 

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Quarterly Accountability 
Reports 

To receive quarter 3 performance reports  PM 

Annual Health Check 

To receive and consider the local NHS Trusts self 
assessment against the 24 “core standards” set by 
Government under the domains: 

• Safety; 

• Clinical and Cost Effectiveness;  

• Governance; 

• Patient Focus; 

• Accessible and Responsive Care; 

• Care Environment and Amenities; and, 

• Public Health 

Precise timing and scope to be 
confirmed 

PM 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

To monitor progress against the recommendations 
agreed following previous Scrutiny Board inquiries. 

 MSR 

Meeting date – 27 April 2010 

Scrutiny Inquiry – 
promoting good public 
health 

To agree the Board’s final inquiry report.   

Annual Report 
To agree the Board’s contribution to the annual 
scrutiny report 

  

P
a
g
e
 1

0
4



APPENDIX 5 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10 – updated October 2009 

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Working Groups (TBC) 

Working group Membership Progress update Dates 

Health Proposals Working 
Group 

All Scrutiny Board 
members.  Core 
membership of Cllr. 
Dobson and Cllr. 
Chapman 

• Working group re-established and terms of reference 
agreed. 

• Membership established 

To be confirmed 

Supporting working age 
adults with severe and 
enduring mental health 
problems 

Cllr. John Illingworth 
Mr. Eddie Mack 

This inquiry is being undertaken by the Scrutiny 
Board (Adult Social Care) with nominated 
representatives from Scrutiny Board (Health) 

• Working group re-established and terms of reference 
agreed. 

• Membership established 

• Initial meeting dates arranged 

19 October 2009 
15 December 
2009 

    

P
a
g
e
 1

0
5



APPENDIX 5 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10 – updated October 2009 

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

 

Unscheduled / Potential Items 

Item Description Notes 

Provision of Renal Dialysis at Leeds 
General Infirmary 

To consider proposals around the 
provision of renal dialysis services across 
the City, with particular reference to the 
previously proposed unit at LGI. 

28 July 2009 – proposals considered at 
the Scrutiny Board on and position 
statement produced for LTHT Board 
meeting 30 July 2009. 

30 July 2009 – LTHT Board decision 
deferred. 

7 August 2009 – request for additional 
information/ series of questions issued to 
health partners. 

3 September 2009 – follow-up letter to 
request sent 7 August 2009. 

10 September 2009 – letter from LTHT 
advising that it was hoped to respond 
formally in 2nd week of October 2009 
(following the Trust Board meeting on 7 
October 2009) 

6 October 2009 – letter to LTHT seeking 
clarification on progress, given that no 
formal report scheduled for the LTHT 
Board meeting on 7 October 2009. 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
6



APPENDIX 5 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10 – updated October 2009 

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Unscheduled / Potential Items 

Item Description Notes 

Provision of dermatology services at 
Ward 43 (Leeds General Infirmary 
(LGI)) 

To consider proposals around the 
provision of dermatology services at 
Ward 43 (Leeds General Infirmary (LGI)) 

2 separate requests for scrutiny received. 

8 October 2009 – letter sent to LTHT / 
NHS Leeds seeking a moratorium on the 
proposals until more detailed examination 
by the Scrutiny Board. 

Use of 0844 Numbers at GP Surgeries 

To consider the impact of the recent 
Government guidance on local GP 
practices and any implications for 
patients. 

Various correspondence exchanged and 
clarification sought. 

The Board to maintain a watching brief 
and kept up-to-date with any 
developments 

Openness in the NHS 
To consider how the Department of 
Health guidance is interpreted and 
implemented locally. 

An outline of the approach adopted by the 
local NHS Trusts requested. 

Responses from NHS Leeds and LPFT 
received.   

Reply from LTHT awaited. 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
7



APPENDIX 5 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10 – updated October 2009 

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Unscheduled / Potential Items 

Item Description Notes 

Children’s Cardiac Surgery Services  
To contribute to the national review and 
consider any local implications. 

First newsletter published (August 2009) 

National stakeholder event scheduled for 
22 October 2009. 

Draft clinical standards issued for 
consultation. 

Children’s Neurosurgery Services  
To contribute to the national review and 
consider any local implications. 

First bulletin published (September 2009) 

National stakeholder event scheduled for 
30 November 2009. 

Specialised commissioning 
arrangements 

To consider the current arrangements for 
specialised commissioning within the 
region and the role of scrutiny. 

The planned Department of Health (DoH) 
consultation on developing / strengthening 
Health Scrutiny may have an impact. 

Hospital Discharges 

To consider a follow up report on 
progress against the recommendations 
(i.e. 15, 16 and 17) detailed in the 
Independence, Wellbeing and Choice 
inspection report 

Consider report in September/ October 
2009. 

Out of Area Treatments (Mental 
Health) 

To consider the report prepared by Leeds 
Hospital Alert and the response from 
LPFT. 

Leeds Hospital Alert report received 1 July 
2009.  Response from LPFT requested on 
1 July 2009. 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
8


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Scrutiny Inquiry: The role of the Council and its partners in promoting good public health (Session 1)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	8 Updated Work Programme 2009/10
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5


